
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
November 09, 2021 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, November 09, 2021 6:30 PM 
 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

 

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Kerri Howell, Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 and the Governor’s proclamation of a State of Emergency due to the 

coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the Folsom City Council, staff, and members of the 

public may participate in this meeting via teleconference. 

 

Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via teleconference may 

email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting to obtain call-in 

information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via teleconference 

must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public comment 

at City Council meetings. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
mailto:CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


3 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming the Month of November as 
Veterans and Military Families Month in the City of Folsom 

2. City Manager's Financial Update for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2021-22 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

3. Resolution No. 10738 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 
to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-052) with Holistic System Integration Solutions for 
Additional Professional Services for the Implementation of the New TRAKiT Permitting System 

4. Resolution No. 10739 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction 
Agreement with Allied Construction Services for the Fire Station No. 36 Roof Replacement 
Project and Appropriation of Funds 

5. Resolution No. 10740 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks & Recreation Department 
and Appropriation of Additional Funds 

6. Resolution No. 10741 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Professional 
Services Agreement with Solitude Lake Management for the American River Canyon North 
Waterfall Rehabilitation Project 

7. Resolution No. 10742 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program 
Supplement Agreement F029 Rev. 1 to Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal-Aid 
Projects No. 03-5288F15 with Caltrans for the Empire Ranch Interchange US-50 at Empire 
Ranch Road Project, Federal Project No. 5288(043), Project No. PW1804 and Appropriation of 
Funds 

8. Resolution No. 10743 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Water Systems Optimization, Inc. to Complete the Water Distribution System Leak and Loss 
Detection Survey 

9. Resolution No. 10745 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the South Coast Air Quality 
Management District for the Replacement of Two Diesel Refuse Trucks with Two Zero Emission 
Electric Refuse Trucks 

10. Resolution No. 10746 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Bennett Engineering Services Inc. for Design Services for the Basin 4 Sewer Phase 1 
Project 

11. Resolution No. 10750 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Eight Ford Pickup Trucks for the Public Works Department 
and the Environmental and Water Resources Department 

NEW BUSINESS: 

12. Appointment of At-Large Utility Commissioner 

13. City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended Improvement 
Area No. 3 and Improvement Area No. 7 

i. Resolution No. 10747 - A Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of Folsom 
to (1) Amend the Boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community 
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch); (2) Amend the Rate and Method of  Apportionment for 

Page 3



4 

Improvement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom 
Ranch), and (3) Amend the Appropriations Limit and the Maximum Bonded Indebtedness and 
Related Matters 

ii. Resolution No. 10748 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving a 
Proposed Boundary Map and Designating Improvement Area No. 7 within the “City of Folsom 
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)” and to Levy Special Taxes therein 

iii. Resolution No. 10749 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring the 
Necessity for Incurring Bonded Indebtedness in and for Improvement Area No. 7 within the City 
of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and Calling for a Public Hearing 
thereon 

14. Resolution No. 10744 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Fiber Networks 
Installation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation of a Fiber Optic 
Network in the City of Folsom 

15. Ordinance No. 1318 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 10.20.510 of the 
Folsom Municipal Code to Increase Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic District 
(Introduction and First Reading) 

16. Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 3.20.040 of the 
Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal Services (Introduction 
and First Reading) 

17. Ordinance No. 1320 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Replacing the 
Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code to 
Incorporate New State Law Mandates (Introduction and First Reading) 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

Page 4



5 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 6



PROCLAMATION 

OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM 
DECLARING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 

as 
VETERAN AND MILITARY FAMILIES MONTH 

IN THE CITY OF FOLSOM 

WHEREAS, the United States is a beacon of hope, freedom, and opportunity to people around 
the world and the Soldiers, Sailors, Airmen, Marines, and Coast Guard members who fight to 
defend our liberty embody courage, patriotism and loyalty; and 

WHEREAS, America's military men and women and their families are vital to the security and 
prosperity of our Nation, we have a responsibility to protect and serve those who have made 
countless sacrifices for love of country; and 

WHEREAS, throughout our Nation's history, our military men and women have boldly answered 
the call of duty to defend our nation's independence and precious liberties, risking life and limb 
for their fellow Americans; and 

WHEREAS, military families exemplify the courage and resolve that define our national 
character, they rise to the challenges of multiple deployments and frequent moves-spouses 
who care and provide for children in their partner's absence, kids who make new friends and 
leave known comforts behind. They are the force behind the force, patriots who support their 
family members in uniform while enriching the communities they call home; and 

WHEREAS, since we are a Nation that leaves no American behind and that includes our 
veterans and their family members, we recognize that our obligation to our military men and 
women does not end after their time in uniform; and 

WHEREAS, each warrior who fights for our Nation, along with their families, has earned our 
eternal gratitude, we ask that all Americans thank and support them. Together, we remain 
committed to fostering a national community of support for these brave heroes and their 
families; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Michael D. Kozlowski, Mayor of the City of Folsom, on behalf of the 
Folsom City Council and the Folsom community, do hereby proclaim the month of November as 
Veteran and Military Family Month. I urge each individual in the community to thank and support 
Veterans and military families for their contributions to our Nation. 

PROCLAIMED this 9th day of November 2021. 

Attest: 

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Page 7

11/09/2021 Item No.1.



 

 

 

 
This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 8

11/09/2021 Item No.1.



.fr.f|LetoFr

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the City Manager's Financial
Update for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 202I-22.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Section 5.05R of the Charter of the City of Folsom requires the City Manager submit to the
City Council a financial and management report showing the relationship between budgeted
and actual revenues, and expenditures and encumbrances on a quarterly basis.

This Quarterly Financial Update is an analysis of the unaudited financial status of the City's
major funds for the first quarter of Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22, covering the three-month period
from July 2021 through September 2021. This report is a modified version of previous
quarterly reports. We do not usually provide a first quarter report, due to lack of available data
this early in the fiscal year, however, considering the evolving financial impacts of COVID-
19 we wanted to report to the council as early as possible.

POLICY / RULE

Section 5.05R of the Charter of the City of Folsom requires the City Manager submit to the
City Council a financial and management report showing the relationship between budgeted
and actual revenues, and expenditures and encumbrances on a quarterly basis.

1

MEETING DATE: tU9l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: City Manager's Financial Update for the First Quarter of Fiscal
Year 2021-22

FROM: Finance Department

Page 9

11/09/2021 Item No.2.



Section 3.02.050 (b) of the Folsom Municipal Code states ".... within 30 days after the end of
each quarter during the fiscal year, and more often if required by the City Council, the City
Manager shall submit to the City Council a hnancial and management report."

ANALYSIS

Unemployment as of September 2021 was 6.4Yo and 6.lYo in California and Sacramento
County respectively and in Folsom the unemployment rate was 3.9%. The table below shows
the unemployment rate over the last three years to illustrate the effects of the pandemic on
employment and the ongoing recovery.

Unemployment Rate

September of each year 2021 2020 2019

California 6.4 10.7 3.5
Sacramento County 6.1 9.6 3.1

Folsom 3.9 6.1 2.3

For FY 2022, the General Fund is projected to end the year with an unassigned fund balance
of $20.84 million. As a comparison, the unassigned fund balance in FY 2020 was $13.78
million (audited) and in FY 2021it is currently estimated to be $19.70 million (unaudited and
currently incomplete). The percentage of unrestricted fund balance to expenditures is projected
at2L04oh (FY 2022) and an estimated 21.93% in FY 2021 andboth years would be an increase
fromthe FY 2020 amount of 14.4%o. Fiscal Year2021-22projected revenues of $99.81 million
is an increase of $4.99 million or 4.49Yo over the estimated FY 2021 revenues of $95.52
million. The increase is mostly due to increases in property tax, sales tax, charges for services
and intergovernmental revenues. Projected expenditures of $99.05 million is an increase of
$9.23 million or I0.28Yo from the estimated FY 2021expenditures of $89.82 million.

The FY 2022 projected revenue increase over appropriated revenues of $92.52 million is seen

mostly in charges for services, intergovernmental revenue and sales tax. Property hx is not
received in the first quarter, however, the projection for fiscal yearend is estimated to be $32.99
million, an increase of $500,000 from the appropriated amount, and an increase of $1.74
million from FY 2021 (5.56%). A comparison of home sales during the first quarter of FY
2022 andFY 202I shows the number of homes sold decreased by 6l or 19.87%o. The average
median sales price through the first quarter of FY 2022 was $728,333 which is an increase of
20.58% over fiscal year 2021.

Sales tax is projected to end the fiscal year at $26.50 million, an increase of $ 1 .95 million over
the budgeted amount of $24.55 million (7.93%). In comparison to FY 202I sales tax receipts
are projected to inuease by approximately $651,000 or 2.52%. The FY 2021 amount was

$25.85 million.

Through the first quarter, charges for services were $2.76 million and the current projection
for the end of Fiscal Year 2022 is $12.63 million. The projection of $12.63 million is an

2 Page 10

11/09/2021 Item No.2.



increase from the budgeted amount of $9.95 million and a decrease of $1.33 million from the
estimated Fiscal Year 202I amount. The increase over the budgeted amount is mostly in Parks
and Recreation charges of $1.53 million, development charges of $400,000 and charges in
Police and Fire of $750,000. Charges in the Public Safety Departments are estimated
reimbursements from the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) for wildfire strike
teams. The decrease in Charges for Services when compared to the prior fiscal year is in
development charges of approximately $1.00 million, Fire Department charges of
approximately $500,000 and other charges of approximately $500,000. The reduction in
development fees is reflective of a slight slowing in building activity which may rebound by
the end of the fiscal year. The reduction in the Fire Department is a reduction of the
reimbursement from CaIOES and should also be reflected in a reduction in overtime expenses

when compared to the prior fiscal year.

The FY 2022 projected expenditures are $99.05 million, $6.52 million (7.05%) more than the
appropriated amount ($92.52 million). The projected expenditures include increases in salaries
of $3 .3 5 million, a decrease in benefits of $2 1 0,000, an increase in contracts of $3 .23 million
and an increase in capital outlay of $90,000. The projected increase in salaries is in the Police
Department ($1.18 million), the Fire Department ($2.2 million) and Parks and Recreation
($180,000). The salary increases in the public safety departments will be partially offset by
reimbursements for overtime due to wildfires (Police $490,000, Fire $480,000). The salary
increase in Parks and Recreation is mainly due to increased temporary salaries as programs
reopened. The increase to capital outlay is a cost carry over for renovations at the Aquatic
Center.

The Solid Waste, Water and Wastewater Utility Operating Funds are all projected to end the
fiscal year with operating revenues exceeding operating expenses. Net assets in all three funds
are projected to decrease once capital expenses are included. In the case of Water and
Wastewater, the capital outlay is for capital projects and in Solid Waste it is the purchase of
replacement vehicles. A comparison of the current fiscal year end projection to FY 2021
expenses and revenues shows charges for service revenues in Water are currently projected to
increase by $170,000 (0.94%) and operating expenses are projected to increase by $946,000
(8.23%). Wastewater Operating charges for services revenues are projected to increase by
$120,300 (1.41%) and operating expenses are projected to increase by $751,000 (14.82%).
Solid Waste Operating charges for services revenues are projected to increase by $ 1.1 1 million
(7 .09%) and operating expenses are projected to increase by $ 1 .52 million (11.30%). Increases
in expenses are mainly due to employee and contract costs.

Expenses for capital improvements are currently projected to increase across all three
proprietary funds due to budgeted project and vehicle replacement costs.

The negative cash balance in the Trail Grant Fund ended the first quarter at a negative
$160,700. The negative cash balance at the end of FY 2021 was $1.14 million. In August
2021 the grant reimbursement for the Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing project was received
in the amount of $985,000.

a
J Page 11

11/09/2021 Item No.2.



The Compensated Leaves Fund is estimated to end Fiscal Year 2022 with an unrestricted fund
balance of $57,527. The current projection is for the unrestricted fund balance to remain the
same as the projection for Fiscal Year 2021.

Submitted,

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Tamagni
Finance Director/CFO

4 Page 12

11/09/2021 Item No.2.



Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully requests that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10738 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. I to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-
2120-052) with Holistic System Integration Solutions for Additional Professional Services for the
Implementation of the New Development Permitting System.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Due to delays from the software vendor, Central Square Technologies, the launch of the City's
new online development processing and permitting system called Community Development or
ComDev (formerly called TRAKiT) has been delayed until at least the end of the year. As a result,
the City needs to extend its contract with Holistic System Integration Solutions (HSIS) to cover
this additional period since the original launch date was October 18th. HSIS has provided essential
expertise assisting Community Development Department staff with the setup and configuration of
ComDev beyond the basic instructions provided by the vendor. ComDev is the new online
development processing and permitting system that will allow for customers to conduct all
development application, processing, and payment activities online. The cost of the amendment,
would be in the amount of $ 15,000 with a recommended contingency of $5,000. The cost of the
contract amendment and contingency will be covered by State grants. This will bring the total
contract amount from $50,000 to $65,000 with the budget for the contract increased to $70,000.

MEETING DATE: tU9l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10738 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager
to Execute Amendment No. I to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21
20-052) with Holistic System Integration Solutions for Additional
Professional Services for the Implementation of the New TRAKiT
Permitting System

F'ROM: Community Development Department

Page 13

11/09/2021 Item No.3.



Services Description Fee
Advisory Services On-going advisory services to CDD

staff for the configuration and test of
the ComDev system as well as

preparation of permits and reports in
SSRS format (3 additional months)

$15,000

Continsency $5,000
Total Cost $20,000.00

Table I
of Additional Services

All the cost of Amendment 1 including the contingency will be covered by the two grants the City
received from the State Housing and Community Development (HCD) Department under Senate

Bill 2, the Planning Grant Program (PGP) and the Local Early Action Planning (LEAP) grant
program. The goal of both grant programs is to provide funding to jurisdictions to improve their
development processes and encourage the production of housing in California given the ongoing
housing crisis.

POLICY / RULE

Pursuant to Section 2.36.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code, contracts for services exceeding the
City Manager's contracting authority shall be awarded by the City Council. In this case, even
though the original contract was $50,000 and was within the City Manager's contracting authority,
the increase from Amendment 1 results in a total contract amount that exceeds the City Manager's
contracting limit of $62,657. Thercfore, this amendment requires approval by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

Due to delays from the City's software vendor, the City's launch date for the new development
processing and permit tracking software has been delayed until at least the end of the year.

Angelica Zarco of Holistic System Integration Solutions,Inc. has been assisting City Community
Development Department (CDD) staff with the detailed set up, configuration, testing and
troubleshooting of the new software. The advisory services being provided by Holistic System
Integration Solutions are critical to the successful operation of the new ComDev permitting
software as she has been able to provide staff with a level of instructions that is above and beyond
the basic information and instructions provided by the vendor.

In addition to providing advisory services, HSIS will also prepare specialized permit and reports
for the system using SQL Server Reporting Services (SSRS). City staff do not have this skill and
these permits and reports in SSRS format are necessary for the permitting system to work correctly.
As noted earlier, the total cost of the amendment will be covered by State grant funds. No City
funds will be used.

City staff is recommending a $5,000 contingency to ensure that if additional support and services
are needed by staff or customers that those services will be available after launch of the new
software without delay.

Page 14

11/09/2021 Item No.3.



FINANCIAL IMPACT

This Council action will approve the amendment with Holistic System Integration Solutions in the
amount of $15,000 for the advisory services and permit/report preparation for the ComDev
development project and permit tracking system for a grand total of $65,000 plus a contingency
of $5,000. These costs will be covered by State grants that the Community Development
Department received in Fiscal Year 2021. No City funds are required.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The execution of an amendment to an existing contract for additional advisory services for the
configuration of the ComDev development project and permitting software is not considered a

project under the California Environment Quality Act (CEQA) in accordance with CEQA
Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3). As a result, this action is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10738 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-052) with Holistic System
Integration Solutions for Additional Professional Services for the Implementation of the
New TRAKiT Permitting System

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

I

Page 15

11/09/2021 Item No.3.



RESOLUTION NO. 10738

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO
EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE AGREEMENT

(CONTRACT NO. 173-2120-052) WITH HOLISTIC SYSTEM
INTEGRATION SOLUTIONS f,'OR ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NEW TRAKIT

PERMITTING SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Software License and Services Agreement and
several subsequent amendments with Central Square Technologies (formerly known as SunGard
Public Sector Inc. and then later Superion LLC) to provide development processing and
permitting software for the Community Development Department;

WHEREAS, on December 8, 2020, the City Manager executed a Consultant and
Professional Services Agreement with Holistic Systems Integration Solutions in the amount of
$50,000 to provide supplemental advisory services associated with the configuration, testing,
training, and troubleshooting of the new Community Development or ComDev software,
formerly known as TRAKiT;

WHEREAS, Holistic Systems Integration Solutions has extensive experience with the
successful configuration and launch of ComDev software for multiple jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, in September 2021, City staff received notice that the original launch date
of October 18,2021would not be achieved and would be rescheduled to at least the end of the
year, which was beyond the original timeframe envisioned in the agreement with Holistic
Systems Integration Solutions; and

WHEREAS, on April 9,2019, in Resolution No. 10269 the Council authorized the
Community Development Department to apply for $310,000 in Senate 8i112 - Planning Grant
Program (PGP) grant funds from the State Department of Housing and Community Development
(HCD) and on February 8,2020, the City executed an agreement with HCD for the grant funds;
and

WHEREAS, on April 28,2020, in Resolution No. 10424 the Council authorized the
Community Development Department to apply for $300,000 in Local Early Action Planning
(LEAP) grant funds from HCD and on December 28,2020, the City executed an agreement with
HCD for the grant funds; and

WHEREAS, the improvements to the City's new development permitting software and
the consultant advisory services associated with the configuration of the software are eligible
expenses under the terms of the PGP and LEAP grants; and

WHEREAS, approval of the amendment to the agreement and the allocation of funding
is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Resolution No. 10738
Page I of2 Page 16

11/09/2021 Item No.3.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

1. Authorizes the City Manager or her designee to execute Amendment No. 1 to the
Consultant and Professional Services Agreement with Holistic Systems Integration
Solutions in the amount of $15,000 for a total agreement of $65,000.

2. Authorizes the City Manager or her designee to establish a contingency of $5,000.

3. Authorizes the City Manager to use the PGP and LEAP grant funds for the costs
associated with Amendment No. 1 and the contingency.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 9th day of November 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10738
Page? of2

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 17

11/09/2021 Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 18

11/09/2021 Item No.3.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: rU9l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT Resolution No. 10739 - A Resolution authorizing the City
Manager to execute a construction agreement with Allied
Construction Services for the Fire Station No. 36 Roof
Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10739

- A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction agreement with Allied
Construction Services for the Fire Station No. 36 Roof Replacement Project and Appropriation
ofFunds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Constructed in 1986, Fire Station No. 36 serves the northern region of the City of Folsom.
Except for previous minor repairs, the existing roof has served for 35 years and has been
leaking in several locations for the last few years. To maximize and continue utilizing the
current building, a new roof is needed to protect the structure from dry rot conditions due to
water damage. A metal roof has been specified and designed for consistency with the other
Fire Stations in Folsom.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that
contracts for supplies, equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of
562,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

1

Page 19

11/09/2021 Item No.4.



ANALYSIS

Public Works staff prepared the bid package, and the project was publicly advertised on
September 17 , 2021. Bids were opened on October 7 , 2021, with the following submissions
received:

1. Allied Construction Services $ 199.837
2. MCM Roofine Co..Inc. $ 288,000
3. D. K. Entemrises, Inc. DBA Kines Roofins $ 367.76s

The engineer's estimate for this project was $150,000

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The contract with Allied Construction Services would be authorized for $199,837 with a total
project budget of $219,821, which includes a ten percent contingency of $19,984 for potential
unseen repairs after roof removal.

The Fiscal Year 202I-22 General Fund Operating Budget included the repairs at $125,000.
Staff is requesting an additional appropriation of $94,821which would utilize the General
Fund contingency that was included in the General Fund Operating Budget in Fiscal Year
2021-22 to tully tund the project.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(b)(3) of the California
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENT

l. Resolution No. 10739 - A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a

construction agreement with Allied Construction Services for the Fire Station No. 36
Roof Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

2

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

Page 20

11/09/2021 Item No.4.



RESOLUTION NO. 10739

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT WITH ALLIED CONSTRUCTION SERVICES F'OR

THE FIRE STATION NO. 36 ROOF REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND
APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to replace the roof on Fire Station 36; and

WHEREAS, this project was publicly advertised on September 17, 2021, and the bids
were received on October 7,2021, with Allied Construction Services being the lowest responsible
bidder; and

WHEREAS, the agreement with Allied Construction Services would be executed in the
amount of $199,837; and

WHEREAS, the project budget would include a ten percent contingency in the amount of
$19,984 for a total project budget of $219,821; and

WHEREAS, funds in the amount of $$125,000 was included in the Fire Department
Operating Budget in Fiscal Year 2021-22; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation in the amount of $94,821 will be needed for this
project; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a construction agreement with Allied Construction
Services in the amount of $199,837 for the Fire Station No. 36 Roof Replacement Project.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate
$94,821 from the General Fund (Fund 010) contingency in Fiscal Year 2021-22 to the Fire
Department Operating Budget for the Fire Station No. 36 Roof Replacement Project for a total
project budget of $21 9,821.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day ofNovember 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10739
Page I of I

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 21

11/09/2021 Item No.4.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 22

11/09/2021 Item No.4.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MMENDATION / CITY

The Parks & Recreation Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt
Resolution No. 10740 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks & Recreation
Department and Appropriation of Additional Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On May 25,2021, The City Council appropriated $100,000 for the purchase of two trucks for
the Parks and Recreation Department in the General Fund.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states , inpart, that contracts for supplies,
equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of $62,657 or greater shall be
awarded by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

Nationwide, the supply of vehicles is limited, and the price of the vehicles has been steadily
increasing over the last several months. Staff received three bids for the trucks with the
lowest bid received at $59,994.25 per truck from Folsom Lake Ford. While this is higher than

I

MEETING DATE: tU9l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10740 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to
Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks & Recreation
Department and Appropriation of Additional Funds

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 23

11/09/2021 Item No.5.



anticipated, we expect that these costs will continue to rise and recommend that we move
forward with the purchase of the two vehicles.

The vehicles are needed to replace an aging vehicle in the Facilities division that is no longer
reliable as well as to obtain a properly outfitted vehicle for park maintenance staff assigned
to irrigation. Three quotes were obtained from local Ford dealerships with the lowest bid
received coming from Folsom Lake Ford in the amount of $59,994.25 which includes both
tax and tire fees.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

A total of $100,000 has already been appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2021-22Parks &
Recreation Operating budget to purchase the two trucks. The Facility Services division is
able to absorb the additional$9,994.25 for one vehicle, however an additional appropriation
will be needed for the Parks Maintenance vehicle. Staff is proposing to appropriate the
additional $9,994.25 fromtheGeneralParkEquipmentFund(Fund 452).The appropriation
will be as an increase to expenditures in the General Fund and a transfer of revenue from the
General Park Equipment Fund. The increased appropriation in the General Park Equipment
Fund would come from available fund balance.

There are sufficient funds available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22Parks & Recreation Operating
Fund (Fund 010) to absorb the increase for one vehicle as well as the additional appropriation
in the General Park Equipment Fund (Fund 452) for the second vehicle.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This purchase is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental

Quality Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10740 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks &
Recreation Department and Appropriation of Additional Funds

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks and Recreation Director

2 Page 24

11/09/2021 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. IO74O

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH FOLSOM LAKE FORD TO PURCHASE TWO FORD TRUCKS

X'OR THE PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND APPROPRIATION OT'
ADDITIONAL F'UNDS

WHEREAS, on }lay 25, 202I, City Council appropriated $100,000 to replace two
vehicles for Parks and Recreation; and

WHEREAS, three quotes were obtained and the lowest cost for each vehicle is
$59,994.25 at Folsom Lake Ford, requiring an additional appropriation of $9,994.25 for one
vehicle; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Fiscal Year 202I-22 Parks and
Recreation General Operating Fund (Fund 010) Budget for the Facilities division vehicle and
additional appropriation will be required for the second vehicle.; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting an additional appropriation from the General Park
Equipment Fund (Fund 452) as a transfer to the General Fund (Fund 010) in the amount of
$9,994.25.

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute an agreement, in a form acceptable to the
City Attorney, with Folsom Lake Ford to purchase two Ford trucks for the Parks & Recreation
Department in a not-to-exceed amount of $l 19,988.50.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate
an additional$9,994.25 from the General Park Equipment Fund (Fund 452) as a transfer to the
General Fund (Fund 010) to be used for a replacement truck for the Parks Maintenance division.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9ft day of November, 202lby the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10740
Page I of2

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 25

11/09/2021 Item No.5.



ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10740

Page2 of2 Page 26

11/09/2021 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / COI]NCII, ACTION
Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 10741 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with Solitude
Lake Management for the American River Canyon North Waterfall Rehabilitation Project

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The waterfall at American River Canyon North (ARCN) is managed under the ARCN
Landscaping and Lighting District. The waterfall was constructed as part of the original
improvements to the district over 30 years ago. Over the past several years, the waterfall has

had multiple operational and mechanical issues. Such issues range from an inoperable
filtration system and an undersized chlorine erosion feeder, to more significant items such as

having a failed liner in the upper basin that is contributing to inefficient water-use and
circulation. In the past, the city has utilized the existing waterfall maintenance contractor on
an as-needed basis to assist with minor repairs and troubleshooting. Due to the scale and
magnitude of repairs, staff initiated a Request for Qualification (RFQ process to seek out the
appropriate professional services to assist with the repairs and mechanical evaluations.

POLICY / RULE
In accordance with Chapter 2.36.090 (A)(1) and236.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code,
professional services are not subject to competitive sealed bidding requirements, and those
costing $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

I

MEETING DATE: tU9l202l

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10741 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager
to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with Solitude Lake
Management for the American River Canyon North Waterfall
Rehabilitation Proj ect

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

ANALYSIS

Page 27

11/09/2021 Item No.6.



On August 24,202I, the Parks and Recreation Department advertised a Request for

Qualifications for the American River Canyon North Waterfall Rehabilitation. The RFQ was

posted on ClPlist.com as well as distributed to firms that had previously expressed interest
in the RFQ. On September 7th there was a pre-proposal meeting on site to give interested

firms access to all areas of the water feature and ask staff any questions they might have. The
responses were due to the City on September 16,202I. An internal review team was

assembled of Parks and Recreation Staff. The criteria for ranking the qualifications were
based on the following areas: experience with similar kinds of work, materials to be utilized,
foresight for additional work, their proximity to the site, and ability to maintain insurance.

Three responses were received. Firms with scores of at least 85 out of 100 would advance to
the interview process. After reviewing the provided responses and compiling their scores

Solitude Lake Management was the only firm that had a passing score. In the interview they
further demonstrated their qualification based on their responses to our questions, expertise,

and experience with similar projects. The scoring breakdown has been included below:

Solitude Lake Management Water Works California Waters
Experience 20 t3.3 13.3

Materials 29.3 28 1 1.6

Extra work 26 15 1 1.6

Proximity 8 4.6 9.6

Insurance 10 9.3 10

Total 93.3 70.2 56.1

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The agreement will be for a not-to-exceed amount of $250,000 and will be funded through the
American River Canyon North Landscaping and Lighting District (Fund 266) and funding is

currently available in that District.

ATTACHMENT
Resolution No. 10741 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Professional
Services Agreement with Solitude Lake Management for the American River Canyon North
Waterfall Rehabilitation Proj ect

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks & Recreation Director

2 Page 28

11/09/2021 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. IO74I

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PROF'ESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SOLITUDE LAKE

MANAGEMENT F'OR THE AMERICAN RIVER CANYON NORTH
WATERFALL REHABILITATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to award a consultant service agreement for an
initial period beginning December I,2021 through December 1,2022, for professional services
associated with various repairs and mechanical evaluations needed for the American River
Canyon Waterfall; and

WHEREAS' Requests for Qualifications were solicited in accordance with Folsom
Municipal Code Section 2.36.090 (A)(1) and advertised on August 24,2021; and

WHEREAS, Solitude Lake Management was deemed the most qualified, responsible,
and responsive firm for providing the needed services; and

WHEREAS, the agreement with Solitude Lake Management will be in the amount of
$250,000; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney and
includes provisions for canceling the contract if necessary and without cause; and

WHEREAS, adequate funding is available in the American River Canyon North
Landscaping and Lighting District Fund (Fund 266); and

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a professional services agreement with Solitude Lake
Management for the Rehabilitation of the American River Canyon North Waterfall for a not-to-
exceed amount of $250,000.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9ft day ofNovember 202lby the following roll call vote

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10741
Page 1 of 1

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 29

11/09/2021 Item No.6.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 30

11/09/2021 Item No.6.



Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITV COTINCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10742 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program Supplement
Agreement F029 Rev. I to Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal-Aid Projects
No. 03 -5288F 1 5 with Calhans for the Empire Ranch Interchange US-50 at Empire Ranch Road
Project, Federal Project No. 5288(043), Project No. PWl804 and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City first began work on the Empire Ranch interchange in200712008, completing much
of the preliminary design and environmental clearance using Federal funds. Work on the
project was halted though, when the City shifted their design and funding priorities to the
Folsom Lake Crossing Project. ln 2016, staff was informed by Caltrans that $1,295,856 in
federal funds left over from the prior work on this interchange had been made available for the
City's use. The City executed Program Supplement Agreement F029 with Caltrans to receive
the available federal funding.

In November 2017, Council passed and adopted Resolution No. 10039, authorizing the City
Manger to execute a consultant services agreement with Drake, Haglan & Associates to
prepare the project authorization and environmental documentation for the project and for an

1

MEETING DATE: Il/9/2021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10742 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement F029 Rev.
1 to Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal-Aid
Projects No, 03-5288F15 with Caltrans for the Empire Ranch
lnterchange US-50 at Empire Ranch Road Project, Federal
Proj ect No. 52 88(043), Project No. PW 1 804 and Appropriation
ofFunds

F'ROM: Public Works Department

Page 31

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



appropriation of funds for a not-to-exceed amount of $1,308,950. Work associated with that
agreement is ongoing and reimbursements in the amount of $868,421.14 from Caltrans have
been received to date.

Additional federal funding in the amount of $2,500,000 has been made available for the next
phase of project design through a grant awarded in2021by the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments. A revision to the previously executed Program Supplement Agreement with
Caltrans is required for the City to be reimbursed with the available federal funds.

Staff will retum to Council after the RFP process and consultant selection for the next phase
ofproject design,

POLICY / RULE

Execution of an Administering Agency-State Agreement and or Program Supplement
Agreement requires City Council approval.

ANALYSIS

The City of Folsom is required to execute the Program Supplement Agreement Revision with
Calhans Local Assistance to proceed with the next phase of project design. The City must
invoice Caltrans in order to receive any Federal or State reimbursement. Prior to invoicing
Caltrans, the City must approve a Program Supplement Agreement Revision for the Empire
Ranch Interchange US-50 at Empire Ranch Road Project. The Program Supplement
Agreement is a Caltrans standard form that has previously been approved by the City Attomey
for other projects, including:

o Folsom Boulevard Improvements
r Historic Folsom Station Phase I project
r Street Repair and Resurfacing Project - 2005, Phase I
o Street Repair and Resurfacing Project-2004, Phase II
o Folsom/El Dorado Transit Conidor Study
r Rainbow Bridge Rehabilitation
o Riley Street Extension
o Folsom/Auburn Road Widening Projects
o Green Valley Road Widening

FTNANCTAL IMPACT

The Empire Ranch Road Interchange Project was included in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget
for $50,000 utilizing Transportation Improvement Funds (Fund 446). This project will require
an appropriation in the amount of $2,500,000, all ofwhich would be eligible for reimbursement
by the aforementioned Federal funds. Normally, these Federal funds require a local match, but
Caltrans has authorized the City to utilize toll credits in lieu of a local match requirement. Staff
requests an appropriation in the amount of $2,500,000 from the Transportation Improvement

2

Page 32

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



Fund (Fund 446) to the Empire Ranch Interchange Project (Project No. PW1804) for a total
project budget of $3,808,950.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Part of this project's scope of services is to perform a California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) environmental review, which could clear the project for construction. Staff will seek
City Council certification of the environmental document at a later date.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10742 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program
Supplement Agreement F029 Rev. 1 to Administering Agency-State Agreement for
Federal-Aid Projects No. 03-5288F15 with Caltrans for the Empire Ranch Interchange US-
50 at Empire Ranch Road Project, Federal Project No. 5288(043), Project No. PWl804
and Appropriation of Funds

2. Program Supplement No. F029 Rev. I to Administering Agency-State Agreement for
Federal-Aid Projects No. 03-5288F1 5

Mark PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

3

Page 33

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



Attachment I

Page 34

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10742

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENT FO29 REV. 1 TO ADMINISTERING AGENCY.STATE
AGREEMENT FOR F'EDERAL.AID PROJECTS NO. 03.5288F15 WITH CALTRANS

FOR THE EMPIRE RANCH INTERCHANGE US.sO AT EMPIRE RANCH ROAD
PROJECT, FEDERAL PROJECT NO. 5288(043), PROJECT NO. PW 1804, AND

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to continue preliminary engineering, right-of-way
and environmental documentation for the freeway interchange on US Highway 50 at Empire
Ranch Road (US-50/Empire Ranch Interchange); and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom previously executed Master Agreement No. 03-5288 for
Federal-Funded Projects with the State of California Department of Transportation in order to
receive funding; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom previously executed Program Supplement Agreement
F029 to Administering Agency-State Agreements for Federal-Aid Projects No. 03-5288F15 with
Caltrans for Federal Project No. 5288(043) to receive $1,295,856; and

WHEREAS, the City ofFolsomwill execute Program SupplementAgreementF029 Rev.l
to Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal-Aid Projects No. 03-5288F15 with
Caltrans for Federal Project No. 5288(043) to receive $2,500,000; and

WHEREAS, staff will come back to City Council after the RFP process and consultant
selection for the next phase ofproject design; and

WHEREAS, an appropriation is needed in the amount of $2,500,000 from the
Transportation Improvement Fund (Fund 446); and

WHEREAS, funds received will be credited to the Transportation Improvement Fund
(Fund 446); and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
Authorizes the City Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement F029 Rev. 1 to
Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal-Aid Projects No. 03-5288F15 with Caltrans
for the Empire Ranch Interchange US-50 at Empire Ranch Road Project, Federal Project No.
5288(043), Project No. PWI 804.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is
directed to appropriate $2,500,000 from the Transportation Improvement Fund (Fund 446) Io the
Empire Ranch Interchange Project, Project No. PWl804 for atotal project budget of $3,808,950.

Resolution No. 10742
Page I of2 Page 35

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day ofNovember 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10742
Page2 of2

Page 36

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



Attachment 2

Page 37

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



PROGRAMSUPPLEMENT NO. F029 Rev. 1

to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.STATE AGREEiIIEI{T

FoRFEDERALTAIDPROJECTSNO 0&5288F15

Adv. Projecf lD
0318000300

Date: September 30, 2021

Location: 03€AG-50-FOL
Project Number: H PLULN-52SS(043)

E.A. Number:
Locode:5288

This Program Supplement hereby adoptl and lncorporates the Admlnlstedng Agency-State Agreement for Federal Ald
whlch weB entered into bebv66n the Adrninistering Agenc,y and fie State on 10ngnmts and is subjectto all the tenns and
condi6ons thereof. This Prograrn Supptement is executed ln accordance witl,t Article I of the aforementoned Master
Agreement under authority of Resolutlon No. approved by the Administedng Agency on
(See copy aftached).

The Adminietering Agency further slipulates that as a conditlon to lhe payment by the State of any funds derived from
sourc€rs noted belou/ obligabd to this PROJECT, the Administedng Agency accepb and will comply with the special
covenants or rernarks eet fiorth on the follotrlng pagee.

PROJECT LOCATTON: US-50 at Empire Ranch Road

TYPE OF WORK: Construct4 Lane lnterchange LENGTII: 0.0(MILES)

HYtO
zg20
724E

1

LYlO

zi007
zs10

9246,376,00
$35,130.00

s844,596.00
$67,477.00

$1,049,480.00
$1,17,6,179,00

$r40,613.00
9246,105.00

LOCAL OTHER

$3,795 $0,00 $0.00

Federal Funds

CITYOF FOLSOM STAiliE OFSAUFORNIA
Departnent of Transpoilation

By

Chief, Office of Project lmplementation
Dlvlglon of Local Aoslstance

Dab ,

BV

Title

Dats

Afrest

I hereby cerliff upon my personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for this enoumbrance:

Detc LI $3,79s,8s6.00Accounting Officer

Prcgram $upplement 03€288F{$F029-Ri-

o

Fage I ol7

Page 38

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



03-sAc-50-FoL
HPLULN-5288(043)

1

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

A. The ADMINISTERING AGENCY will advertise, award and administer this project in
accordance with the current published Local Assistance Procedures Manual.

B. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that it will only proceed with work authorized for
specific phase(s) with an "Authorization to Proceed" and will not proceed with future phase(s)
of this project prior to receiving an "Authorization to Proceed" from the STATE for that
phase(s) unless no further State or Federal funds are needed for those future phase(s).

C. STATE and ADMINISTERING AGENCY agree that any additional funds which might be
made available by future Federal obligations will be encumbered on this PROJECT by use of
a STATE-approved "Authorization to Proceed" and Finance Letter. ADMINISTERING
AGENCY agrees that Federal funds available for reimbursement will be limited to the amounts
obligated by the Federal Highway Administration.

D. Award information shall be submitted by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY to the District
Local Assistance Engineer within 60 days of project contract award and prior to the submittal
of the ADMINISTERING AGENCY'S first invoice for the construction contract.

Failure to do so will cause a delay in the State processing invoices for the construction phase.
Attention is directed to Section 15.7 "Award Package" of the Local Assistance Procedures
Manual.

E. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, as a minimum, to submit invoices at least once every
six months commencing after the funds are encumbered for each phase by the execution of
this Project Program Supplement Agreement, or by STATE's approval of an applicable
Finance Letter. STATE reserves the right to suspend future authorizations/obligations for
Federal aid projects, or encumbrances for State funded projects, as well as to suspend
invoice payments for any on-going or future project by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if
PROJECT costs have not been invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for a six-month
period.

lf no costs have been invoiced for a six-month period, ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to
submit for each phase a written explanation of the absence of PROJECT activity along with
target billing date and target billing amount.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit the final report documents that collectively
constitute a "Report of Expenditures" within one hundred eighty (180) days of PROJECT
completion. Failure of ADMINISTERING AGENCY to submit a "Final Report of Expenditures"
within 180 days of PROJECT completion will result in STATE imposing sanctions upon
ADMINISTERING AGENCY in accordance with the current Local Assistance Procedures
Manual.

Program Supplement 03-5288F15-F029-R1- Page 2 ol7

Page 39

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



03-sAc-50-FoL
HPLULN-5288(043)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

F. Administering Agency shall not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, age, disability,
color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any Federal-assisted contract or
in the administration of its DBE Program lmplementation Agreement. The Administering
Agency shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure
nondiscrimination in the award and administration of Federal-assisted contracts. The
Administering Agency's DBE lmplementation Agreement is incorporated by reference in this
Agreement. lmplementation of the DBE lmplementation Agreement, including but not limited
to timely reporting of DBE commitments and utilization, is a legal obligation and failure to carry
out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this Agreement. Upon notification to the
Administering Agency of its failure to carry out its DBE lmplementation Agreement, the State
may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases,
refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil
Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

G. Any State and Federal funds that may have been encumbered for this project are
available for disbursement for limited periods of time. For each fund encumbrance the limited
period is from the start of the fiscal year that the specific fund was appropriated within the
State Budget Act to the applicable fund Reversion Date shown on the State approved project
finance letter. Per Government Code Section 16304, all project funds not liquidated within
these periods will revert unless an executed Cooperative Work Agreement extending these
dates is requested by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY and approved by the California
Department of Finance.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY should ensure that invoices are submitted to the District Local
Assistance Engineer at least 75 days prior to the applicable fund Reversion Date to avoid the
lapse of applicable funds. Pursuant to a directive from the State Controller's Office and the
Department of Finance; in order for payment to be made, the last date the District Local
Assistance Engineer can foruvard an invoice for payment to the Department's Local Programs
Accounting Office for reimbursable work for funds that are going to revert at the end of a
particular fiscal year is May 1Sth of the particular fiscal year. Notwithstanding the unliquidated
sums of project specific State and Federal funding remaining and available to fund project
work, any invoice for reimbursement involving applicable funds that is not received by the
Department's Local Programs Accounting Office at least 45 days prior to the applicable fixed
fund Reversion Date will not be paid. These unexpended funds will be irrevocably reverted by
the Department's Division of Accounting on the applicable fund Reversion Date.

H. As a condition for receiving federal-aid highway funds for the PROJECT, the Administering
Agency certifies that NO members of the elected board, council, or other key decision makers
are on the Federal Government Exclusion List. Exclusions can be found at www.sam.gov.

Program Supplement 03-5288F15-F029-R1- Page 3 ol7

Page 40

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



03-sAc-50-FoL
HPLULN-5288(043)

2.

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

A. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall conform to all State statutes, regulations and procedures
(including those set forth in the Local Assistance Procedures Manual and the Local
Assistance Program Guidelines, hereafter collectively referred to as "LOCAL ASSISTANCE
PROCEDURES') relating to the federal-aid program, all Title 23 Code of Federal Regulation
(CFR) and 2 CFR Part 200 federal requirements, and all applicable federal laws, regulations,
and policy and procedural or instructional memoranda, unless othenrvise specifically waived
as designated in the executed project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT.

B. lnvoices shall be formatted in accordance with LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES.

C. ADMINISTERING AGENCY must have at least one copy of supporting backup
documentation for costs incurred and claimed for reimbursement by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit supporting backup documentation
with invoices if requested by State. Acceptable backup documentation includes, but is not
limited to, agency's progress payment to the contractors, copies of cancelled checks showing
amounts made payable to vendors and contractors, and/or a computerized summary of
PROJECT costs.

D. lndirect Cost Allocation Plan/lndirect Cost Rate Proposals (ICAP/ICRP), Central Service
Cost Allocation Plans and related documentation are to be prepared and provided to STATE
(Caltrans Audits & lnvestigations) for review and approval prior to ADMINISTERING AGENCY
seeking reimbursement of indirect costs incurred within each fiscal year being claimed for
State and federal reimbursement. ICAPs/|CRPs must be prepared in accordance with the
requirements set forth in 2 CFR, Part 200, Chapter 5 of the Local Assistance Procedural
Manual, and the ICAP/ICRP approval procedures established by STATE.

E. STATE will withhold the greater of either two (2) percent of the total of all federal funds
encumbered for each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT or $40,000 until ADMINISTERING
AGENCY submits the Final Report of Expenditures for each completed PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT PROJECT.

F. Payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY for PROJECT-related travel and subsistence
(per diem) expenses of ADMINISTERING AGENCY forces and its contractors and
subcontractors claimed for reimbursement or as local match credit shall not exceed rates
authorized to be paid rank and file STATE employees under current State Department of
Personnel Administration (DPA) rules. lf the rates invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY
are in excess of DPA rates, ADMINISTERING AGENCY is responsible for the cost difference,
and any overpayments inadvertently paid by STATE shall be reimbursed to STATE by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY on demand within thirty (30) days of such invoice.

Program Supplement 03-5288F15-F029-R1- Page 4 ot7

Page 41

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



03-sAc-50-FoL
HPLULN-5288(043)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

G. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with 2 CFR, Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards,

H. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, and will assure that its contractors and
subcontractors will be obligated to agree, that Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48
CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31, et seq., shall be used to
determine the allowability of individual PROJECT cost items.

l. Every sub-recipient receiving PROJECT funds under this AGREEMENT shall comply with 2
CFR, Part 200, 23 CFR, 48 CFR Chapter 1, Part 31, Local Assistance Procedures, Public
Contract Code (PCC) 10300-10334 (procurement of goods), PCC 10335-10381 (non-A&E
services), and other applicable STATE and FEDERAL regulations.

J. Any PROJECT costs for which ADMINISTERING AGENCY has received payment or credit
that are determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 2 CFR, Part 200, 23 CFR,
48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31, and other applicable STATE and FEDERAL regulations, are
subject to repayment by ADMINISTERING AGENCY to STATE.

K. STATE reserves the right to conduct technical and financial audits of PROJECT WORK
and records and ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, and shall require its contractors and
subcontractors to agree, to cooperate with STATE by making all appropriate and relevant
PROJECT records available for audit and copying as required by the following paragraph:

ADMINISTERING AGENCY, ADMINISTERING AGENCY'S contractors and subcontractors,
and STATE shall each maintain and make available for inspection and audit by STATE, the
California State Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of STATE or the United States
all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the
performance of such contracts, including, but not limited to, the costs of administering those
various contracts and ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall furnish copies thereof if requested.
All of the above referenced parties shall make such AGREEMENT, PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT, and contract materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable
times during the entire PROJECT period and for three (3) years from the date of submission
of the final expenditure report by the STATE to the FHWA.

L. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractors and subcontractors shall establish and
maintain a financial management system and records that properly accumulate and segregate
reasonable, allowable, and allocable incurred PROJECT costs and matching funds by line
item for the PROJECT. The financial management system

Program Supplement 03-5288F15-F029-R1- Page 5 ol7

Page 42

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



03-sAc-50-FoL
HPLULN-5288(043)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractors and all subcontractors shall conform to
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, enable the determination of incurred costs at
interim points of completion, and provide support for reimbursement payment vouchers or
invoices set to or paid by STATE.

M. ADMINISTERING AGENCY is required to have an audit in accordance with the Single
Audit Act of 2 CFR 200 if it expends $750,000 or more in Federal Funds in a single fiscal year
of the Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance.

N. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to include all PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTS adopting
the terms of this AGREEMENT in the schedule of projects to be examined in
ADMINISTERING AGENCY's annual audit and in the schedule of projects to be examined
under its single audit prepared in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200.

O. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not award a non-A&E contract over $5,000, construction
contracts over $10,000, or other contracts over $25,000 [excluding professional service
contracts of the type which are required to be procured in accordance with Government Code
sections 4525 (d), (e) and (f)l on the basis of a noncompetitive negotiation for work to be
performed under this AGREEMENT without the prior written approval of STATE. Contracts
awarded by ADMINISTERING AGENCY, if intended as local match credit, must meet the
requirements set forth in this AGREEMENT regarding local match funds.

P. Any subcontract entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY as a result of this
AGREEMENT shall contain provisions B, C, F, H, l, K, and L under Section 2 of this
agreement.

ln the event that right of way acquisition for or construction of this project of the initial federal
authorization for preliminary engineering is not started by the close of the tenth fiscal year
following the fiscal year in which the project is authorized, the ADMINISTERING AGENCY
shall repay the Federal Highway Administration through Caltrans the sum of Federal funds
paid under the terms of this agreement.

4. Appendix E of the Title Vl Assurances (US DOT Order 1050.2A)

During the performance of this agreement, the ADMINISTERING AGENCY,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY'S contractors and subcontractor, (hereinafter referred to as the
"contractor") agrees to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and authorities;
including but not limited to:

Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities :

A. Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.2000d et seq.,78 stat.252), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.
B, The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of

3

Program Supplement 03-5288F15-F029-R1- Page 6 ol7

Page 43

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



03-sAc-50-FoL
HPLULN-5288(043)

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

1970, (42 U.S.C. 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property
has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);
C. Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. 324 el seq,), (prohibits discrimination on the
basis of sex);
D. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. 794 et seq.), as amended,
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Parl 27:
E. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age);
F. Airport and Airway lmprovement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C.4 71, Section 4 7123), as
amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
G. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage
and applicability of Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975
and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms
"programs or
activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients,
subrecipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or
not);
H. Titles ll and lll of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems,
places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C.12131-12189) as
implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38;
l. The Federal Aviation Administration's Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
J. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-lncome Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;
K. Executive Order 13166, lmproving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title
Vl, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to
your programs (70 Fed. Reg. a|74087 to 74100);
L. Title lX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

Program Supplement 03-5288F15-F029-R1- Page 7 ol7

Page 44

11/09/2021 Item No.7.



Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10743 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Water Systems Optimization, Inc. to Complete the Water Distribution System
Leak and Loss Detection Survey.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EWR) Department is requesting that Water Systems
Optimization, Inc. provide Leak and Loss Detection Surveys of the City's Water Distribution
System, including the Ashland area and the development South of US-50. The City's water
distribution system consists of approximately 400 miles of water pipes and is comprised of
transmission mains, distribution mains, service lateral connections (approximately 23,000),
blow-offs, fire hydrants, backflow preventors, valves, and other appurtenances. The City's
water pipes range in size from 1-inch service lines to 24-inchtransmission mains. The previous
comprehensive leak detection survey was performed on the City's water system in the Spring
of2020.

The work will consist of performing two acoustic leak and loss detection surveys on the City's
water distribution system (including the Ashlandarcaand the area South of US-50) in order to
identiff leak locations in need of repairs. The first leak and loss detection survey and
associated report will be performed during this winter (December I,202I through March 1,

1

MEETING DATE: tU9l202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10743 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Water Systems
Optimization, Inc. to Complete the Water Distribution System
Leak and Loss Detection Survey

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 45

11/09/2021 Item No.8.



2022). The second leak and loss detection survey and associated report will be performed
during the next winter (December 1,2022 through March I,2023).

The City issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to provide Leak and Loss Detection Surveys of
the City's Water Distribution System. Because of their knowledge and experience with Leak
and Loss Detection services, Water Systems Optimization, Inc. has proven to be uniquely
qualified in having the technical expertise to provide these services. City staff recommends
authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with Water Systems Optimization, Inc.
for professional services for the Leak and Loss Detection of the City's Water Distribution
System.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,
and construction with a value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The two leak and loss detection surveys will include a comprehensive survey of the City's
water system. All detected leaks (both city-side leaks and customer-side leaks) will be
documented and the leak flow rates will also be estimated. Whenever a leak is found, the field
project team will document identifiing factors about the leak such as address and location,
pressure zone, leak type, estimated volume of leak (gallons per minute), cost of water (dollar
per acre feet), priority rating, and other factors associated with record keeping.

At the conclusion of each survey, Water Systems Optimization, Inc. will deliver a final report
to the City that details the findings of all the leak locations, loss rates, and any other pertinent
information for the City to successfully make the necessary repairs to the water system. The
City will be responsible for repairing the leaks that are discovered.

The City issued the RFP on September 16,2021 for the Water Distribution System Leak and
Loss Detection Survey and received five proposals. EWR staff evaluated the proposals based
on the consultant's project understanding of the background and requirements of the project,
relevant project experience, the qualifications and experience of the consultant's team, and
their responses to a supplemental questionnaire. Because of their knowledge, understanding of
the project, experience with leak and loss detection services, and total project costs, Water
Systems Optimization, Inc. was selected to provide these services.

During the review of the submitted proposals, EWR staff identified Water Systems
Optimization, Inc. as being the most qualified, had the most experience, and would provide the
best value to the City. American Leak Detection and Consulting Engineering, Inc. did not
submit all of the answers to the supplemental questionnaire, which was included in the RFP,
and therefore their proposals were considered to be non-responsive. M.E. Simpson, McKim
& Creed and Water Systems Optimization, Inc. provided responsive proposals. Below is a

ranking of the proposals prior to reviewing costs.

2
Page 46

11/09/2021 Item No.8.



Company Score (out of200)
American Leak Detectionl 68

Consulting Engineering, Inc. I 115

M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. r67
McKim & Creed 17t

Water Systems Optimization" Inc. 188

Table L Consultant ranking prior to reviewing the costs of the proposals.

After reviewing the proposals based on the understanding of the work, experience with similar
work, the project team, and answers to the supplemental questionnaire, EWR staff reviewed
total project costs. Proposal costs from each consultant were required to be submitted under a
separate sealed envelope. A table showing the companies that submitted proposals and their
fees is shown below.

Company
Fee for First Leak
and Loss Survey

Fee for Second
Leak and Loss

Survey Total Fee
American Leak

Detectionl
$82,140 $88,300 $170,440

Consulting
Ensineerins" Inc.l

$104,800 $l12,500 $217,300

Water Systems
Optimization. Inc.

$123,422 $ 1 32,1 88 $255,610

McKim & Creed $148.800 s168.000 $316,800
M.E. Simpson Co.,

Inc.
$371,700 $401,200 $772,900

Table 2. Consultant project costs associated with the RFP.

Based on the consultant's understanding of the background and requirements of the project,
relevant project experience, the qualifications and experience of the consultant's team, their
responses to a supplemental questionnaire, proposal costs, and overall best value to the City,
EWR staff proposes to utilize Water Systems Optimization, Inc. for these services for a not-
to-exceed amount of $255,610.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Sufficient funds have been budgeted in the Water Operating Fund (520) for this agreement in
the FY 2021-22 budget. The second survey will be included inthe Water Operating Fund (Fund
520) during the budget process for FY 2022-23. The Environmental and Water Resources
Department recommends that the contract be awarded to Water Systems Optimization, Inc. for
a not-to-exceed amount $255,610.

I Proposals were deemed non-responsive because they did not answer each of the questions in the supplemental
questionnaire.

J
Page 47

11/09/2021 Item No.8.



The Regional Water Authority (RWA) applied for, and received, a Regional Leak Detection
and Repair Project grant through the California Department of Water Resources. Participating
RWA member agencies include the City of Sacramento, the City of Folsom, Sacramento
Suburban Water District, and Placer County Water Agency. The total grant amount is for
$1,000,000 with each participating agency receiving up to $250,000. The total City cost share

is $224,864 for a total project cost of $474,864, which includes the grant amount. The local
cost share may include eligible project costs incurred after January 1,2015. Since 2015, but
not including this contract, the City has spent approximately $604,000 related to leak and loss
detection.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act, Section 15301 "Existing Facilities."

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. I 0743 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Water Systems Optimization, Inc. to Complete the Water Distribution System Leak and
Loss Detection Survey

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4 Page 48

11/09/2021 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10743

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH WATER SYSTEMS OPTIMIZATIONN INC' TO COMPLETE
THE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM LEAK AND LOSS DETECTION SURVEY

WHEREAS, the City has identified this project as a priority to maintain integrity and
operation of the water distribution system; and

WHEREAS, this project consists of two Leak and Loss Detection Surveys of the Crty's
Water Distribution System, including the Ashland area and the development South of US-50.

WHEREAS, the Environmental and Water Resources Department issued a Request for
Proposals on September 16,2021 for the Water Distribution System Leak and Loss Detection
Survey; and

WHEREAS, Water Systems Optimization, Inc. by reason of their past experience,
abilities for performing these types of services, and overall best value for these services, is
qualified to perform the required water distribution system leak and loss detection survey; and

WHEREAS, the Water Distribution System Leak and Loss Detection Survey was
included in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for FY 2021-22, in the amount of $123,422;
and

WHEREAS, suffrcient funds are budgeted and available in the FY 2021-22 Water
Operating Fund (Fund 520); and

WHEREAS, the second survey of the Water Distribution System Leak and Loss
Detection Survey will be included in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) during the FY 2022-
23 budget process; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Water Systems Optimization, Inc. to
complete the water distribution system leak and loss detection survey for a not-to-exceed amount
of $255,610; and,

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of November,202I, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10743
Page I of2 Page 49

11/09/2021 Item No.8.



Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10743
Page2 of2

Page 50

11/09/2021 Item No.8.



h
Folsom City Council

Staff rt

MEETING DATE: tr/912020

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10745 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from
the South Coast Air Quality Management Disfict for the
Replacement of Two Diesel Refuse Trucks with Two Zero
Emission Electric Refuse Trucks

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10745 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the South Coast Air Quality Management
District for the Replacement of Two Diesel Refuse Trucks with Two Zero Emission Electric
Refuse Trucks.

BACKGROT]ND / ISSUE

The Folsom 203 5 General Plan adopted by the Folsom City Council includes a goal of reducing
the consumption of carbon-intensive fuels. In Fiscal Year 2020-21 the City of Folsom
purchased 217,000 gallons of diesel fuel. Nearly 90 percent of that was utilized in the City's
fleet of refuse collection vehicles. The exhaust from diesel engines exposes the community to
dangerous green-house gas emissions. Converting to electric refuse trucks has the potential to
significantly reduce green-house gas emissions produced by City operations. In addition, while
the initial purchase price of an electric refuse truck far exceeds the cost of the diesel tnrcks, the
operating cost is much lower, so long term savings are expected.

As authorized by Resolution No. 10515, the Solid Waste Division (Division) applied for
$400,000 of Volkswagen Environmental Mitigation Trust (VW) funding on August L8,2020.
The City has been notified by the administering agency, South Coast Air Quality Management
District (SCAQMD), that ourproject was approved for funding.

1

Page 51

11/09/2021 Item No.9.



Initially, and as stated in a previous report to Council, the Division had received information
that this grant was eligible to stack with a previous grant award of $102,361 from the
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SMAQMD). The Division has
since leamed that stacking will not be available with this grant.

Due to the high cost of electric refuse vehicles, the Division is working to maximize the use of
grant funding to pilot two trucks. Cunently the VW grant is the single largest source that has
been awarded for this project. To secure the SMAQMD funding, it is necessary to enter into
an agreement accepting the terms of this grant; howevero this does not obligate the City to
complete the project. The agreement will secure the funding in the event the City decides to
complete the project within the specified timeframe.

In addition to the VW funding and previous award from SMAQMD, the Division has applied
for two other grants to fund electric refuse trucks. In March 2021the Division Applied for an
additional $200,000 from SMAQMD and in May 2021the Division applied for $240,000 from
Hybrid and Zero-emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive Project (HVIP) funding.
SMAQMD has informed the Division that both of their grants may be stacked together with
HVIP funding. The Division has also received notice that the additional SMAQMD and HVIP
funding have both been awarded to Folsom's project. Pending executed contracts of stackable
funding, the Division will opt for the highest combination of funding available and request
authorization to proceed with the best option available.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council Adopted Resolution No. 7332 Financial Policies of the City of Folsom on
May 25, 2004. Section D - Intergovernmental Revenues, Paragraph C - Grant Project
Resolutions states, "All grants received from the Federal or State govemment for operating or
capital purposes shall be recognized in separate grant project resolutions. A balanced grant
project resolution must be adopted prior to beginning the project."

ANALYSIS

The Division has applied for and been awarded four grants toward the purchase of two electric
refuse trucks. The VW funding is the single largest funding source at $400,000. Since the
award of the VW funding the Division became aware of other grants that may be stackable and
when combined provide funding higher than VW. With this Resolution, the Division seeks to
sectue the VW funding; however, if the other funding sources are secured the Division will
select highest combination of funding for this project and will be required to forgo the other
grants.

This technology has the potential to eliminate emissions from refuse collection vehicles;
howeveto since the technology is relatively new and very costly, the Division would like to
purchase two residential side loaders, which are the largest portion of the collection fleet, to
pilot the technology and evaluate the effectiveness within the operation.

2

Page 52

11/09/2021 Item No.9.



The Lion Electric Co. has been awarded a cooperative bidding contract from the Califomia
Department of General Services for class 8 refuse trucks. The Lion class 8 trucks are 100
percent electric so in addition to eliminating emissions, they will eliminate the possibility of
hydraulic spills which are costly to clean up and leave stains on City streets. The purchase
price for two Lion Electric Co. refuse trucks is estimated at $1,300,000.

The cost of the vehicles less available funding is expected to make the purchase price
comparable to the amount we would pay for a residential side loader. The cost of a side loader
in fiscal year 2027-22 is approximately $400,000. The reduced cost of electricity versus fuel
and lower maintenance cost are expected to provide year over year savings.

In addition to the truck purchase price, the Division would also need to invest in charging
infrastructure. The Division previously reported an estimate of approximately $93,000 as
provided by an electrician Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) contracted with to
provide the quote. Since then, it has been determined that an additional hansformer or a
transformer upgrade will be necessary for the charging infrastructure. An updated estimate is
not available at this time but is expected to be much higher than the original estimate.
Infrastructure planning will include conduit and power necessary to minimize the impact of
expanding the electric refuse fleet in the future. SMUD has funding available to contribute to
the cost of infrastructure; however, no funding has been secured for the infrastructure at this
time.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Acceptance of the VW grant does not have a direct financial impact. Upon final determination
of all available funding, the Division will request approval to proceed with the purchase of two
electric refuse vehicles. If the VW grant is the best option, there would be an initial outlay of
Solid Waste enterprise funds of approximately $1,300,000. After reimbursement from the
grant the net cost to the City is estimated at $900,000. The purchase price of equivalent diesel
trucks is $800,000; however, the electric vehicles are expected to have a lower overall cost of
ownership because of reduced fuel and maintenance cost.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

l. Resolution No. 10745 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the South Coast Air
Quality Management District for the Replacement of Two Diesel Refuse Trucks with
Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks

3

Page 53

11/09/2021 Item No.9.



Mark , PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

4

Page 54

11/09/2021 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10745

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT F'ROM THE SOUTH COAST
METROPOLITAN AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT F'OR THE

REPLACEMENT OF'TWO DIESEL REf,'USE TRUCKS WITH TWO ZERO EMISSION
ELECTRIC REFUSE TRUCKS

WHEREAS, the Folsom 2035 General Plan includes a commitment to reduce the
consumption of carbon-intensive fuels through the purchase of more efficient vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste Division desires to purchase two electric refuse vehicles to
pilot the feasibility of the technology within the City of Folsom waste collection operation; and

WHEREAS, the South Coast Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD)
provides funding for zero emission vehicles through the Volkswagen Environmental Mitigation
Trust (VW); and

WHEREAS, in August 2020 the Solid Waste Division applied for VW funding for the
purchase of two zero emission electric refuse vehicles and disposal of two diesel refuse vehicles;
and

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste Division was approved for grant funding in the amount of
$400,000; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with SCAQMD accepting VW grant
funding in the amount of $400,000.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day ofNovember 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10745
Page I of I Page 55

11/09/2021 Item No.9.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 56

11/09/2021 Item No.9.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10746 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Bennett Engineering Services Inc. for Design Services for the Basin 4 Sewer
Phase 1 Project.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources (EWR) Department identifies infrastructure
rehabilitation and replacement projects through water and sewer master plans, ongoing
condition assessment programs, and regulatory changes. EWR staff completed an analysis of
potential Wastewater projects through the City's Sanitary Sewer System Management Plan.
Through these efforts, EWR staff identified the Basin 4 Sewer Phase 1 Project as a priority
project.

The Basin 4 Sewer Phase 1 Project consists ofrehabilitating and replacing approximately 3,200
lineal feet of sanitary sewer pipeline and the rehabilitation and repair of one manhole. The
project includes rehabilitating and replacing approximately 400 feet of sewer pipeline near
Granite Park along Reading Street from MormonA.{atoma Alley to Figueroa/Monnon Alley,
approximately 1,800 feet of sewer pipeline within the Natoma-Persifer Alley between Sibley
Street and Riley Street, approximately 1 ,000 feet of sewer pipeline along Sutter Street between

1

MEETING DATE: tU9l202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10746 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Bennett Engineering
Services Inc. for Design Services for the Basin 4 Sewer Phase I
Project

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 57

11/09/2021 Item No.10.



Scott Street and Coloma Street, and the rehabilitation and repair of a manhole by California
Family Fitness on Oak Avenue Parkway.

This project will reduce inflow and infiltration, minimize anrrual maintenance costs, and

minimize the risk of sewer overflows.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Bennett
Engineering Services Inc. for design services for the Basin 4 Sewer Phase I Project in the
amount of $154,585.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The Basin 4 Sewer Phase I Project will reduce inflow and infiltration, minimize annual

maintenance costs, and minimizethe risk of sewer overflows.

This project consists of rehabilitating and replacing approximately 3,200 lineal feet of sewer
pipeline. The sewer pipeline that requires rehabilitation/replacement is located in the Historic
District area of Folsom. These sewer pipelines are aging, with some of the pipelines dating
back to the 1940's. The existing sewer lines run under existing buildings and in backyards

with limited to no access. These aging pipelines are prone to leaks, breaks, clogs, and require
extra maintenance. The repair and replacement of these sewer pipes will lower annual

maintenance costs, reduce inflow and infiltration, and minimize the risk of sewer overflows.

The design will involve the rehabilitation and replacement of approximately 3,200 lineal feet
of sewer pipeline and the repair of a manhole. City staff is recommending the following scope

of work:

o Develop 650 ,90yo, and 100% plans and specifications for review by the City
o Final Bid Package (plans, specifications, and estimate)

In October 2018, the EWR Department completed a pre-qualification process for consultants

for design and construction administration services for water and wastewater projects. The
consulting firm Bennett Engineering Services Inc. was one of the firms selected to provide
these services for this type of project through this pre-qualification process. Due to their recent
experience in wastewater design work in the Historic District and the availability of their
project team to meet the City's schedule for this project, EWR selected Bennett Engineering
Services Inc. to perform the work. Bennet Engineering Services Inc. is uniquely qualified for

2 Page 58

11/09/2021 Item No.10.



this specific project based on their recent work regarding construction related impacts to
private property within the Historic District, their understanding of the necessary requirements
for rights of entry onto private property for construction related activities, and the various
mitigation requirements required for private property disturbance during construction. The
other pre-qualified consulting firms are currently working on other City projects.

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council
authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Bennett Engineering Services, Inc.
for a not-to-exceed amount of $154,585.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Basin 4 Sewer Phase I Project was included in the FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Plan.

Sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530) and the
Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the contract be awarded to
Bennett Engineering Services Inc. for $154,585.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is a rehabilitation project of existing infrastructure and therefore is categorically
exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act as noted
in Title 14 - California Code of Regulations, Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the
California Environmental Quality Act, Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Section 15302 -
Replacement or Reconstruction.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10746 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Bennett Engineering Services Inc. for Design Services for the Basin 4 Sewer Phase 1

Project

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J Page 59

11/09/2021 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. 10746

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH BENNETT ENGINEERING SERVICES INC. FOR DESIGN

SERVICES FOR THE BASIN 4 SEWER PHASE 1 PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City has identified this project as a priority to maintain the integrity and
operation of the City's sanitary sewer system; and

WHEREAS, the Basin 4 Sewer Phase 1 Project consists of rehabilitating and replacing
approximately 3,200lineal feet of sanitary sewer pipeline and associated manholes; and

WHEREAS, Bennett Engineering Services Inc. by reason of their statement of
qualifications, past experience, abilities for performing these types of services, and recent design
services within the Historic District, are qualified to perform the required design services for this
project; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds have been budgeted and are available in the Sewer

Operating Fund (Fund 530); and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Bennett Engineering Services Inc. for
design services for the Basin 4 Sewer Phase I Project for a not-to-exceed amount of $154,585;
and,

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of November,202l, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No, 10746
Page I of I Page 60

11/09/2021 Item No.10.



.;.;i. r , ...,1 a. lr .i. t:

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works and Environmental and Water Resources Departments recommend that the
City Counoil pass and adopt Resolution No. 10750 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager
to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Eight Ford Pickup Trucks for the
Public Works Department and the Environmental and Water Resowces Department.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Public Works Department Fleet Management must maintain a fleet of staffvehicles ttrat is
able to provide efficient and reliable service. The City's requirement for these vehicles is based
on the need to replace its aging fleet and to maintain current service levels. The vehicles being
purchased will replace eight vehicles currently being used by Public Works and Environmental
and Water Resources Departments' stafi all of which have exceeded their expected service life
in terms of age, mileage, ongoing maintenance costs, or some combination thereof. The
proposed replacement Ford pickup trucks will benefit from modern technology to provide a
more reliable and safer working environment for staff while providing an estimated 30%
improvement in fuel efficiency, based on Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) miles per
gallon ratings, all of which should result in a significant reduction in operating costs.

I

MEETING DATE: tu9l202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10750 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to
Purchase Eight Ford Pickup Trucks for the Public Works
Deparbnent and the Environmental and Water Resources
Department

f,.ROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department
Public Works Department

Page 61

11/09/2021 Item No.11.



This resolution authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Folsom Lake Ford
for the purchase of eight Ford pickup trucks. The total cost for the purchase of these vehicles
will not exceed $483,259.03,

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies,
equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of $62,657 or greater shall be
awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.100 of the Folsom Municipal Code provides for a five percent price differential to
local bidders in contracting. The success of local businesses and vendors positively impacts
Folsom's economy as a whole, as well as the City's ability to provide quality services and
programs, The City strives to use Folsom vendors in purchasing services and products when
quality, service, and other factors are equal.

ANALYSIS

The Public Works Department received a total of three competitive bids from dealers solicited.
The dealers and corresponding bids are shown in the table below. Folsom Lake Ford submitted
the winning bid by virtue of being the lowest bid.

Dealer Bid Amount

Downtown Ford

Folsom Lake Ford*

National Auto Fleet Group

*Selected bid

FINANCIAL IMPACT

$ 490,140.70

$ 483,259.03

$ 528,500.93

Model of
Truck

No. of
Trucks

Amount

Staff is requesting that the new contract be authorized for a not to exceed amount of
$483,259.03. Sufficient funds to purchase the replacement vehicles are budgeted and available
inthe Fiscal Year 2021-22 Public Works Fund (Fund 023), Solid Waste Enterprise Fund (Fund
540), Fleet Management General Fund (Fund 010), Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530), and
Water Operating Fund (Fund 520).

DepartmentlDivision Fund

Public Works
Streets
Public Works
Solid Waste

023

s40

F250 J

I

$ 159,378.81

$ 30,701.37

2

F250

Page 62

11/09/2021 Item No.11.



Public Works
Hazardous Materials
Public Works
Fleet Management
Environmental & Water

, Resoutces
Sewer

Environmental & Water
Resources
Water

540 F250

010 F350

$

$

$

I

1

I

720.65

I,455

8o

37

5

s30 F250

s20 F550

Total 8 $ 483,259.03

Replaced vehicles will be disposed of in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code, section
2.36.22A, Disposition of surplus personal properly.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the Califomia Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10750 - A Resolution Authorizing the Ctty Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Eight Ford Pickup Trucks

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

I

61,616.97

$ 135,386.12

rL
Marcus Vasutake, ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES DIRECTOR

"tb

J

Page 63

11/09/2021 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10750

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH FOLSOM LAKE FORD TO PURCHASE EIGHT F'ORD PICKUP
TRUCKS FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT AND THE ENVIRONMENTAL

AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the Public Works and the Environmental and Water Resources Departments
have validated their need to purchase eight Ford pickup trucks based on an approved replacement
schedule; and

WHEREAS, this purchase has been competitively bid by three different vendors with
Folsom Lake Ford submitting the winning bid by virtue of being the lowest bid; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22Public
Works Fund (Fund 023), Solid Waste Enterprise Fund (Fund 540), Fleet Management General
Fund (Fund 010), Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530) and Water Operating Fund (Fund 520)
Budgets for the purchase of vehicles; and

WHEREAS, replaced equipment will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code

section 236.220, Disposition of surplus personal property; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to purchase eight
Ford pickup trucks for a not-to-exceed amount of $483,259.03 including tax and delivery.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day ofNovember 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10750
Page I of I Page 64

11/09/2021 Item No.11.



ffii
Ir{3,Ls$Str

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: tU9l202t

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Appointment of At-Large Utility Commissioner

FROM: City Clerk's Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the Mayor appoint, with approval from the City Council, an at-large
member to the Utility Commission to fill the unexpired term ending in December 2022.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Utility Commission's purpose is to establish a communication process that will inform
and educate all city residents and businesses as to the necessity and function of city utilities,
such as water, sewer and solid waste and the associated costs to operate and maintain these
city functions.

The Committee is composed of seven members - five members who are individually appointed
by each City Council Member, and two at-large members appointed by the City Council.

POLICY/ RULE

Folsom Municioal Code Section 2.35.030 states, in part, that an "at-large appointment" is an
appointment made by a majority vote of the city council or an appointment made by the Mayor
with the approval of the city council.

I
Page 65

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



ANALYSIS

There is currently an at-large vacancy with the term ending in December 2022. The vacancy
was created due to the resignation of a current at-large appointment prior to the expiration of
the existing appointment's two-year term. A Notice of Vacancy was posted on the City's web
page, the bulletin boards at City Hall and at the Georgia Murray Library as well as published
in the Folsom Telegraph newspaper.

ATTACHMENTS

Applications received from the following individuals:

1. George Condon
2. Mark Menz

Respectfu lly Submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

2 Page 66

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 67

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



:{;t''a66reld
3tfr 41xtoLElolr

'f hE?\'fifll_!!:Ri 

j'5DEPT

Ihank you for your interest in sendng on a Folsom commission or committee,
Dt.trr rr Yl a. IlTtt t

BeforeYouBegin:
. Pleaseread this form and insnuctionscarefirlly,
. Completedlpuge" andsigntheapplication.
. Applieationsremain active for six months aftersubmittal.

Retum coqileted applicadons to:
City ClerlCs Deparhent, Folsom Cirty Hall, 5o Natoma Slreet, Folsom, CA 9563o

Appllcant Informdon: (All information is requircd)

Name:

ResidenceAddress:

Email:

Phone:

Employer and Ocorpation :

George Condon

jllmmmG@comcast.net

Currently Servingon a Commission/Committee? Ifyes, please speciff:
No

FolsomBesidency/ ndsteredVoterVerylfieadon; CormmissionandCommitteemembersmustbe
rcsideuts and registeredvoters of Folsom.

Yes
R€gist€redtorrcte? IndicateYes/ No

Finandal Disclosure / Ethics TFatnlrrg:

I undenEtand that commiscion and committee members mwt file statements disdosing
financial information.

I understand that commission and committee members must conplete ethics and
harassmenttraidng.

IlalicateYes /N
Yes

IndicateYes / N

Yes

Ifailh and Aeuracy: I certifr tlat the information contained on this form is true and accurate:

Novembet 1,2021
Signahrre: Date:

ftnportant Priblic Remrds ftrfonnation: the city may receirre nequests from tle public to revieru documents
this form and the city is obligated to release t}ese pubHc records, including all information contained on the form.

UpdatedMayzoer
Page 1 of4

Page 68

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



Clroice of Commission or Comrnittee:
(If you are interested in multiple commissions, please rank them numerically according to your preference)

Arhs and Culture Commission

Historic District Commission*

Please identiffwhich seatyou qualiff for:

=[iHLUlf 
ffi l#ffit#ffi ffi{#l'"-

-ffi#ffi'fu:l:H$:Hffirff 
ff*H'ffiy#Hi:"cp*ser

Iandscaping anil Lightitrg District Advisory Committee*

Please advise which I*L Districtyou live in:

Disnictof Residence:

LibraryCommision

Parla and Recreation Conmission

PlanningCommission

traffc Safety Committee*

Ptease identify which seat you qualify frr:

representative representing a wide c,mss sectiou of interests
representativewho has demonstrated an interest in or a concenr for pedestrian and bicycle

x utilityconmission

Other:

rApplication Supplemerrt Reqnired:
Sulrylemental information is required for the Historic District Conmission, Iandscape and Lightiry DistrictAdvir
Co4mittee, and the Traffic SaftW Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain se

Continueto nextpage

Page? of 4

Page 69

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



ryr -v-

for):

r. Whydoyouwanttosenre on this commissionor cnrmmittee:

I have been a resident of Folsom for 16 years. I also owned rental property in Folsom and
worked well with the city departments during that time.
I continue to feel that the City of Folsom is a very well run city that offers many different
services to the citizens.
I continue to believe that this city has strong police and fire departments. The many different
committees and commissions pro\re to me the city is strong and wonderful place to live and
raise a family.
I think with my involvement on the Boad of Directors of the Empire Ranch HOA and my rnany
years in the constuction business, as a Plumbing Contractor and a General Contractor, will
give me good insight into the commission's work.

a. What do you think is(are) the top issue(s) frcing this commisgion or onrnittee:

lmplementation of the organics recycling program as mandated by the state and water supply.

Cont'nueto nwtpage

Page 3 of4

Page 70

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



S. Briefly describe hor,v your experiences qualifi you to sewe on the commission or committee:

As I stated above my 60 years in the oonstruction industry.
Before retiring my last position was Project Manager of the Sacramento lntemational

Airport Terminal B. I was part of the Design Build Team primarily focused on the

Plumbing and Utilities.

+. Which commission or ommittee megtiugs have you attended?

END OFAPPLICATIONFORM

Retum completed aPPlications to:
Clty ClerlCs Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, CA gS6go

I

Page 4 of 4

Page 71

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 72

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATTON

thailryou foryour inb!€st in scoairy on a Polrom tommissioa or

cormittee

BcfoneYouBcgln:
. ?leacer€adtblsform andinstruetions carefirlly'

r Completc allpagco anil olgn theapplication'
. *ppfi."Uo*idanas*eforslxmontls aftersubnittal'

R:tum coupl&d qrPlicatiorr to:
6i:ia*rci pfir,u-rilt -r"t 

", 
ctty llutt, 5o Natoma street, Folsom, C,A 9563o

nfuinnados: (All infrrmation is requirecl)Applicant

Name:

ResidenceAddress:

Email:

Phone:

Enployer and Occupation;

m arI< Q rrnQ.n2-.v s

k

currently serving on a commission/Gommittee? If ye"s' pleaee

speciff:

Foleorn Recidcnqy/ ngftt3rcdVoterVerlfica$ona Commiseion and Committee nembers must be

resid€nts and registered voters of Iolsom'

Rcgisteredtovote? rnilicate@/ No Select One

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Ilaining:

I unilerstand t.hat commission and committee m€mbers must file statements disclosing

financial information-

I understand that commission and committee m-embers must co.mplete edhics aDd

harassment training.

roai"at"@7wo,

Select One
Indiate@/No:
Select One

Truthand

Signature:

I the information contained on this forur is true and accurate:

Date: /0-/s-adel

such as

Upilated October zor8

Pagel of 4

Page 73

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



FOI,IIOM COMMISSION AI{D COMMITTEE APPLICATION

t Hen'z-ApplicantNane: Or

Choice of @rnrnifsiea or Cornmittee:
(Ifyou are interestAir -iipji-Io--i"tio*, please rankttrem numerically accorilingto yourpreference)

t

Arts antl Gtrltural CommiPsion

Histodc District Commission*

Iandscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee*

Library Commission

Parks anil Recr€ation Comrniesion

Planning Conntsdon

Tlafic SafetY Conmitteef

X UtilityCommission

Otben:

ts

Continue to nent Page

DtobtttAdvisory
for ccetaln acats.

Comnitter, andthe Traffc

Etstoric Dlstdct Conniscion:
Please identif whie! seat you qualify for:

rqnesentative who is actively itvolved wittr historic prse'rvation;

representative who is a resident of ttre Historic District

rfrresentattve who owns a busin6ss within the Sutter Street Subarea

Plannidg Commissioners

rcpresentatine ftom a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarca

"r.ldt""t, 
l*drcape architecl or other ilesign pmfessional with exp9dse in historic preservation

Iandscaplng enil I'igbttog pistrict Advisory Committeel
pleaee advisewbtch t&L Dieaictyou livein:

District ofresidence,_ -

Traffic Safety Committee:
Please identi& which seat yog qualifu for:

n representatirrcs representin6 awide cross section ofinterests
-t- ffi;;;i;dr;;fit;a;"nsrrstod an tntemstin or a concem for peilestian and bicvcle safetv

Page 2 of 4

Page 74

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



FOI.SOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLIC,AIION

ApplicantName: 2-

Continue to nextPagc

for):
Informetional euestionrs: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or comnittees you are aplilying

r. Why do pu ilant to 8€n'e oD t&is conmlesion or Gomhittee:

Afte,r *r;r**'*I'-'?a {h-nT bel'e'* T Aa''v( 4

;;[,;d;t* 0*, #,p ee,n,,tt;,h , r. a(to have 4 +1ctr'rr cq (

"b-k 
X .ou-l and B4 a a)dry€ oq UT( l, es' (wq{er t sed nr ,,po,e'n).

T Adtr< ho/ b*.x an ,lgv b*r4 o{ g*"nol nor-pn#}s 4n4 p*ft'
Cc:ntpait4, T cqu aunl7re- en4 uto/e,'glq,4 +.rlrp\cal )ssug

and pf. bfem-s,

z. what do you think ls(are) the top issue(s) faqing this commission or com'nlttee:

ftianaSiug +4n or;fu r t isues ard Seater iss'teJ ead t*

mana1r'Jat 41ra 7"o,^/'tl^ 
t'n b''ft'

Page 3 of4

Page 75

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



FOI.SOM COMMISSION AIVD COMMITIEE APPLICATION

ApplicantNane: f{o lfen,z--

g. Briedy itescribe howyour enperiences Eralifyyou to senre on the commisgion or committee:

T houe JC,. f<c'h,u"ol llto*"ld7e qnd erlFe!'adc€

f, houc b".^ 6\n 9e{<ta( bca'd s

T houc +f.e maNaSevn** *tyit"o il(e'

T bre, [ii, rh ks"n an/c'ho^eautr't{ f* E++ yuo6

a Which ooomissiotl or co-tnittee meetings have you attendea?

e4, *"'o Lnnt{' -p
&"t"t r P*c Me&t'-, s

$rhuL Co.,^tci ( rr*t'u1-f
R rai //e rT /,4 ( ep't -,nirr.* weafi y:

END OFA?PLIC.AfiONFORM

Retur:r completed applicatioDs to!
City ClerlCs Departrnen! Folsom City Hall" 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 95630

Page 4 of4

Page 76

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



Christa Freemantle

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

mark@menz.us
Friday, October 15,2021 1:23 PM

City Clerk Dept
Application for the open seat on the Utility Commission attached

UtilCommisionAppl ication.Pdf

CAUTIOII: This email originated from outsldE of the organizatlon. Do not click llnks or open attachments unlgss you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

Attached is my application for the open seat on the Utility Commission.

Thank you for your attention

Mark Menz
9t6.705.7783

I

Page 77

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 78

11/09/2021 Item No.12.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

1

MEETING DATE: rU9l202l

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Amended Improvement Area No. 3 and Improvement
Area No. 7

Resolution No. 10747 - A Resolution of Consideration of the
City Council of the City of Folsom to (1) Amend the
Boundaries of Improvement Area No.3 within the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom
Ranch); (2) Amend the Rate and Method of Apportionment
for Improvement Area No.3 within the City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch), and
(3) Amend the Appropriations Limit and the Maximum
Bonded Indebtedness and Related Matters.

Resolution No. 10748 - A Resolution of the City Council of
the City of Folsom Approving a Proposed Boundary Map
and Designating Improvement Area No. 7 within the "City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom
Ranch)" and to Levy Special Taxes therein.

Resolution No. 10749 - A Resolution of the City Council of
the City of Folsom Declaring the Necessity for Incurring
Bonded Indebtedness in and for Improvement Area No. 7
within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) and Calling for a Public Hearing thereon.

FROM: Finance Department

Page 79

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



It is recommended that the City Council adopt the following resolutions

Resolution No. 10747 - A Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of
Folsom to (1) Amend the Boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch); (2) Amend the Rate and Method of
Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), and (3) Amend the Appropriations Limit and the Maximum
Bonded Indebtedness and Related Matters.

Resolution No. 10748 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving a

Proposed Boundary Map and Designating Improvement AreaNo. 7 within the "City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" and to Levy Special Taxes

therein.

Resolution No. 10749 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring the
Necessity for Incurring Bonded Indebtedness in and for Improvement Area No. 7 within the
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and Calling for a
Public Hearing thereon.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP"), approved by
the City Council on January 28, 2014 via Resolution 9298, is an $877 million plan that
describes the backbone infrastructure and facility requirements, presents a comprehensive
financing strategy, and sets forth the estimated time horizon for the development of the Folsom
Plan Area ("FPA").

Landowners within the FPA previously requested to form the City of Folsom Community
Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD No. 23"), including six separate Improvement
Areas, designated as Improvement Area No. 1 through Improvement Area No. 6. The City
Council previously approved the Resolution of Formation (ResolutionNo. 10435) onMay 26,

2020 to form CFD No. 23, designate Improvement Area No. 3, authorize a special tax to
finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities and certain public services,

authorize the issuance of debt to finance the public facilities, and establish the appropriations
limit and maximum bonded indebtedness for Improvement Area No. 3.

The landowners within Improvement Area No. 3 have requested to amend the boundaries of
Improvement Area No. 3 to exclude property expected to be developed into traditional market
rate single family residences, to amend the Rate and Method of Apportionment to adjust the
maximum special tax rates based on the planned development of remaining property within
Improvement Area No. 3, and amend the appropriations limit and maximum bonded
indebtedness for Improvement Area No. 3 . Further, the landowners have requested to designate

a new Improvement Area No. 7 to include the property expected to be developed into
traditional market rate single family residences that is being excluded from Improvement Area
No.3.

2 Page 80

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



The location of the amended Improvement Area No. 3 and proposed Improvement Area No.
7, along with the property included within each Improvement Area, is identified in the
amended boundary map for Improvement Area No. 3 (Attachment 4) and the boundary map

for Improvement Area No. 7 (Attachment 6). The proposed development plan for the amended

Improvement Area No. 3 includes 919 active adult units zoned as single-family/single-family
high density. The proposed development plan for Improvement Area No. 7 includes 211

traditional market rate units all zoned as single-family/single-family high density.

The attached resolutions begin the proceedings to amend the existing Improvement Area No.
3 and designate a new Improvement Area No. 7. Resolution 10747 will consider the amended
boundaries, the amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, and the amended appropriations
limit and maximum bonded indebtedness for Improvement AreaNo. 3. Resolution 10748 will
approve a boundary map, designate a new Improvement Area No. 7 and authorize the City to
levy special taxes within Improvement Area No. 7. Resolution 10749 declares the necessity to
incur bonded indebtedness within Improvement AreaNo. 7.

Ifthese resolutions are approved, a Public Hearing conceming the amendment of Improvement
Area No. 3 and a Public Hearing designating the new Improvement Area No. 7, will be

scheduled, along with an election of owners of property within Improvement Area No. 3 and

the proposed Improvement Area No. 7, for December 14,202I.

POLICY / RULE

Chapter 5 of the Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan authorizes the formation
of CFDs to finance the construction, acquisition, and servicing of FPA backbone infrastructure
and public facilities

Section 2.5.3 of the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement authorizes
the formation of infrastructure CFDs.

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

ANALYSIS

CFD No. 23 is structured as an extended-term CFD and will provide the necessary funding to
help fund all or a portion of the project's share of PFFP backbone infrastructure and facilities,
including related environmental mitigation obligations. The PFFP backbone infrastructure and
facilities will be financed using both bond proceeds and PAYGO special tax revenues. The
extended-term CFD structure is proposed to help to meet the challenge of high-cost
infrastructure and facilities while also aligning the timing of future funding availability with
the need for such funding.

J Page 81

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



The proposed amendment to Improvement Area No. 3 will exclude property expected to be

developed into traditional market rate single family residences, leaving only property that is
expected to be developed into active-adult single-family residences. Further, amendments to
the Rate and Method of Apportionment for Improvement AreaNo. 3 will adjust the maximum
special tax rates based on the active-adult planned development within the amended

Improvement Area No. 3. A comparison of the approved CFD No. 23 Improvement Area No.
3 Rate and Method of Apportionment and the changes proposed within the Amended CFD No.
23 Improvement AreaNo. 3 Rate and Method of Apportionment is included in Attachment2.

The special tax revenue generated from taxable parcels within the amended Improvement Area
No. 3 will be comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax to fund services.
The amended202ll22 maximum facilities special tax rates and maximum services special tax
rates, for each developed land use category, are provided in the table below:

The proposed Improvement Area No. 7 will include the property excluded from the amended
Improvement Area No. 3 and is expected to be developed into traditional market rate single-
family residences. The special tax revenue generated from taxable parcels within Improvement

4

Land Use Category

Residential
Floor Area

(square
footage)

202U22
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate

202U22
Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate Per

Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zoning

2,200 $890 $100 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -

SF/SFHD Zoning
2,000 -2,199 790 100 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -

SF/SFHD Zoning
1,800 - r,999 690 100 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -

SF/SFHD Zoning
I t799 590 100 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -
MLD Zoning

N/A 490 100 Unit

MMD Multi-Family Attached
Property

N/A 30,000 500 Acre

MHD Multi-Family Attached
Property

N/A r1,700 1,000 Acre

Non-Residential Property N/A 11,700 1,000 Acre

Page 82

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Land Use Category

Residential
Floor Area

(square
footage)

202U22
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate

202U22
Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate Per

Zone l: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning >2,900 $2,450 $r77 Unit

Zone l: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 2,700 -2,899 2,390 177 Unit

Zone l: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning <2,699 2,350 177 Unit

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning > 3,325 3,075 177 Unit

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 3,000 -3,324 2 t9s0 177 Unit

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning 2,999 2 ) 845 177 Unit

Single-Family Detached Property -
MLD Zoning

N/A 2,350 177 Unit

MMD Multi-Family Attached
Property

N/A 30,000 500 Acre

MHD Multi-Family Attached
Property

N/A 11,700 1,000 Acre

Non-Residential Property N/A 11,700 1,000 Acre

Area No. 7 will be comprised of a special tax to fund facilities and a special tax to fund services.
The 2021122 maximum facilities special tax rates and maximum services special tax rates, for
each developed land use category, are provided in the table below:

The facilities special tax can be levied and collected through Fiscal Year 2079180 for each
Improvement Area. Each fiscal year, commencing with 2,022123, the maximum facilities
special tax r, ;te will be increased by 2% annually. The services special tax can be levied and
collected in perpetuity for each Improvement Area. Each fiscal year, commencing with
2022123, the maximum services special tax rate will be increased by the June annualized
percentage change of the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers, for the San

Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to exceed 4Yo.

5
Page 83

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Upon passage of these resolutions, a Public Hearing conceming the amendment of
Improvement Area No. 3 and a Public Hearing designating the new Improvement Area No. 7,

will be scheduled, along with an election of owners of property within Improvement AreaNo.
3 and the proposed Improvement Area No. 7, for December 14,2021.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct General Fund impact on the City of Folsom. The Improvement Area No. 3
amendment, designation of a new Improvement Area No. 7 and expenses are solely the
responsibility of Improvement Area No. 3. The General Fund is not impacted by the
Improvement Area No. 3 Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment and Improvement
Area No. 7 Rate and Method of Apportionment.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Folsom Plan Area
Backbone Infrastructure Project were previously prepared for, and adopted by the City Council
on February 24,2015, in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental

Quality Act. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378(c), the term "project" does not mean

each separate govemmental approval for an approved activity which may be subject to several

discretionary approvals by governmental agencies. Additionally, the creation of govemment

funding mechanisms which do not involve any commitment to any specific project which may
result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment is not defined as a
"project" under CEQA. CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(bX4) and 15061(b)(3).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10747 - A Resolution of Consideration of the City Council of the City of
Folsom to (1) Amend the Boundaries of Improvement AreaNo. 3 within the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch); (2) Amend the Rate and

Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 3 within the City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), and (3) Amend the Appropriations
Limit and the Maximum Bonded Indebtedness and Related Matters.

2. Resolution No. 10748 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Approving a Proposed Boundary Map and Designating Improvement Area No. 7 within
the "City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" and to Levy
Special Taxes therein.

3. Resolution No. 10749 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
the Necessity for Incurring Bonded Indebtedness in and for Improvement Area No. 7

within the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and

Calling for a Public Hearing thereon.

4. Amended Boundary Map of Improvement Area No. 3.

6
Page 84

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



5. Redline Amendments to Rate and Method of Apportionment for City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 3.

6, Boundary Map of Improvement AreaNo. 7.

Finance Director

7 Page 85

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 86

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. 10747

A RESOLUTION OF'CONSIDERATION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF'

THE CITY OF FOLSOM TO (1) AMEND THE BOUNDARTES OF
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3 WITHIN THE CITY OF'F'OLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH); (2)

AMEND THE RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3 WITHIN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACTLITIES DTSTRTCT NO.23 GOLSOM RANCH), AND
(III) AMEND THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT AND THE MAXIMUM

BONDED INDEBTEDNESS AND RELATED MATTERS

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City")
conducted proceedings under and pursuant to the terms and provisions of the "Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982," being Chapter 2.s,Part 1, Division 2,Title 5 (beginning with
Section 53311) of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act"), among other things,
(i) to form a community facilities district within the City of Folsom, designated and known as
*CiW of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" (the "Community
Facilities District"), (ii) to designate Improvement Area No. 3 therein, (iii) to authorize a special

tax (the "special Tax") to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities (the

"Facilities") and certain public services (the "Services"), (iv) to authorize the issuance of debt to
finance the Facilities, and (v) to establish the appropriations limit for Improvement Area No. 3 of
the Community Facilities District, all as set forth in the City Council's Resolution No. 10435 (the

"Resolution of Formation"), adopted on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, the Facilities and Services authorized to be financed through the Community
Facilities District are set forth in Exhibit A and Exhibit B to the Resolution of Formation,
respectivelyi and

WHEREAS, the authorized rate and method of apportionment and manner of collection
of the special tax (the "RMA") for Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities District
is set forth in Exhibit D-3 to the Resolution of Formation; and

WHEREAS, at a special, mailed ballot election held on }l4ay 26,2020, at least two-thirds
of the votes eligible to be cast in such election were in favor of levying the special tax in and for
the Community Facilities District pursuant to the RMA; and

WHEREAS, the owners of the land subject to the special tax within the Community
Facilities District (the "Owners") have requested that the authority to levy the special taxes be

amended to (i) amend the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities
District to include only property expected to be developed into active adult single family
residences, (ii) amend the RMA to adjust the maximum special tax rates based on the planned
development within Improvement Area No. 3, and (iii) amend the appropriations limit and

maximum bonded indebtedness; and

WHEREAS, these proposed changes in the authority conferred upon the City Council by
the Community Facilities District are referred to herein as the "Proposed Amendments"; and

Resolution No. 10747
Page I of35

Page 87

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



WHEREAS, there has been no change in the name of the Community Facilities District
since its formation, nor is any contemplated here; and

WHEREAS, there has been no change to the Facilities and Services authorized to be

financed by the Community Facilities District since the formation of the Community Facilities
District, nor is any contemplated here; and

WHEREAS' the original boundaries of the Community Facilities District are shown on
the boundary map approved by ResolutionNo. 10414, adopted on April 14,2020, which map was

recorded in the official records of the County of Sacramento on April 20, 2020, in Book 130 of
Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts at page 27; and

WHEREAS' the proposed amended boundaries of Improvement AreaNo. 3 are shown on
the boundary map entitled "Map of Amended Boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 of City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)," on file with the City Clerk (the
ooAmended Boundary Map"); and

WHEREAS, no debt has been issued for Improvement Area No. 3 and therefore the

changes contemplated herein would not interfere with the timely retirement of any debt; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the public convenience and necessity

require the consideration of the Proposed Amendments; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is fully advised in this matter:

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom as

follows

Section 1. The City Council hereby specifically finds and declares that the actions
authorized hereby constitute and are with respect to public affairs of the City and that the
statements, findings and determinations of the City set forth above are true and correct and that
the consideration of the Proposed Amendments to the authority conferred upon the City Council
by the Community Facilities District is important to the public welfare of the residents of the City,
and involve significant public benefits.

Section 2. It is proposed to (i) amend the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 as

shown in the Amended Boundary Map, provided, however, that the overall boundaries of the
Community Facilities District shall remain unchanged, (ii) replace the Rate and Method of
Apportionment as set forth in Exhibit D-3 to the Resolution of Formation, with the Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, (iii) adjust the appropriations
limit for Fiscal Year 2021-22 to $4,700,000, and (iv) adjust the maximum principal amount of
bonded indebtedness that may be issued for and paid by Improvement Area No. 3 to $15,750,000.

Section 3. The City Council hereby sets Tuesday, December 14,2021, at 6:30 p.m., or
as soon thereafter as the City Council may reach the matter, at the City Hall, 50 Natoma Street,
Folsom, CA 95630, as the time and place for a public hearing to be held by the City Council to
consider the Proposed Amendments and all other matters set forth in this resolution. At the public
hearing, any persons interested, including all taxpayers, property owners, and registered voters

Resolution No. 10747
Page2 of35

Page 88

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



within the Community Facilities District, may appear and be heard, and the testimony of all
interested persons or taxpayers for or against the adoption of the Proposed Amendments or on any

other matters set forth herein, will be heard and considered.

Section 4. Any protests to the proposals in this resolution may be made orally or in
writing by any interested persons or taxpayers, except that any protests pertaining to the regularity
or sufficiency of these proceedings must be in writing and must clearly set forth the inegularities
and defects to which objection is made. The City Council may waive any irregularities in the form
or content of any written protest and at the public hearing may conect minor defects in the
proceedings. All written protests not presented in person by the protester at the public hearing
must be filed with the City Clerk at or before the time fixed for the public hearing in order to be

received and considered. Any written protest may be withdrawn in writing at any time before the
conclusion of the public hearing.

Section 5. Written protests by a majority of the registered voters residing and

registered within the Community Facilities District (if at least six such voters so protest), or by the
owners of a majority of the land area within the Community Facilities District not exempt from
the special tax, will require suspension of these proceedings for at least one year. If such protests

are directed only against certain elements of the Proposed Amendments, only those elements need

be excluded from the proceedings.

Section 6. The public hearing may be continued from time to time, but shall be

completed within 30 days, except that if the City Council finds that the complexity of the
Community Facilities District or the need for public participation requires additional time, the
public hearing may be continued from time to time for a period not to exceed 6 months.

Section 7. At the public hearing, the City Council may modifu this resolution by
eliminating or modifuing (by reducing the extent of) any of the Proposed Amendments.

Section 8 At the conclusion of the public hearing, the City Council may abandon these
proceedings or may, after passing upon all protests, determine to proceed with conducting special
mailed-ballot elections within the Community Facilities District to determine'if the Proposed
Amendments should be adopted. If, at the conclusion of the public hearing, the City Council
determines to proceed with the elections, it expects that the proposed voting procedure will involve
an election by the landowners within the Community Facilities District voting in accordance with
the Act, as the City Council is informed that during the 90 days prior to the date set for the hearing,
there were no registered voters residing within the Community Facilities District. The City
Council will require this information to be confirmed before ordering the election.

Section 9. The City Clerk shall give notice of the time and place of the public hearing
by publishing a Notice of Public Hearing substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B
once in a newspaper of general circulation published in the area of the Community Facilities
District, pursuant to section 6061 of the Califomia Government Code, and publication must be
completed at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for such public hearing.

Resolution No. 10747
Page 3 of35

Page 89

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Section 10. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of November 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10747
Page 4 of35

Page 90

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



EXHIBIT A

AMENDED RATE AND METHOD OF'APPORTIONMENT

Resolution No. 10747
Page 5 of35

Page 91

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



AMENDED RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACITITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area No. 3

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 3 (CFD

No. 23 lA3) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
through the application of the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of
the real property within CFD No. 23 lA3, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be

taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAT DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre orAcreage" meansthe land area of an Assessor's Parcelas shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured rolldata, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of L982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessoy's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessoy's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light
maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA3 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 ,A3" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3.

Resolution No. 10747
Page 6 of35 A-1

Page 92

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

"CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries" means the amended boundaries for CFD No. 23 lA3 as set

forth in Attachment E.

"CitV" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA3

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Propefi" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in
Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA3 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Propefi" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to
Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

Resolution No. 10747
Page 7 of35 A-2

Page 93

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



SpecialTaxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legalcounsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or
SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

23 lA3, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually.

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the

City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit
enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Fiscal Yea/' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other
instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from
time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Propertly'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

Resolution No. 10747
Page 8 of35 A-3

Page 94

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family

Residential Units.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Services SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means 7.8O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,

that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA3 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this

Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-FamilyAttached Property" means allAssessor's Parcels forwhich a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,zOLt and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parceldesignated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcelthat is designated for residential

land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the

Assessor's Parcelshall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

Resolution No. 10747
Page 9 of35 A-4

Page 95

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,207L and as amended by the City Council.

"Non-Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries which (a)

has been designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as

open space, or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has

been irrevocably offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of
California, the County, the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is

encumbered by an easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property

to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Propefi" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 231A3, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended

by the future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No.

23 tA3.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verifli the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location
and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property'' means any property within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended

Boundaries, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific

boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property.

As used in this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

Resolution No, 10747
Page l0 of35 A-5

Page 96

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"Proportionately'' means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and

the Seruices Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.)within CFD No.23 lA3.

"Public Propefi" means any property within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries, which (a) is

owned by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is

designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map. as property,

which will be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the

federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the

Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to

Resolution No. 10747
Page 11 of35 A-6

Page 97

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



exceed four percent (4%1.ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"Selices Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist il in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the

CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2Ot1, and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2O7L and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Propefi" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the
subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66470 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

Resolution No. 10747
Page 12 of35 A-7

Page 98

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Propefi" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended

Boundaries that are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA3 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F

below.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENTTO IAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries shall be designated as

either Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACITITIES SPECIAI TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA3

according to the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

Resolution No. 10747
Page 13 of35 A-8

Page 99

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2O2L-2O22 is set forth in Attachment B of this

Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July 1,2022, the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum

Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessor's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there
will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the

Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

B of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Propefi
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Resolution No. 10747
Page 14 of35 A-9

Page 100

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the

Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the

expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial

prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately

increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A3,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rate for all Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA3.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated

average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to the

Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Amended

Resolution No. 10747
Page l5 of35 A-10

Page 101

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property

land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to

the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth

the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for
each Residential Property land use category.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will

be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessoy's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future

Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more

Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Propefi
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

Resolution No, 10747
Page l6 of35 A-11

Page 102

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments

to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the

Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, untilthe sum of the totalexpected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated

to reflect any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already

classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Propefi and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the

Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the

Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

Resolution No. 10747
Page 17 of35 A-t2

Page 103

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the

Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equalto the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot

Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the

amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Resolution No. 10747
Page l8 of35 A-13

Page 104

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property
for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Resolution No. 10747
Page 19 of35 A-14

Page 105

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July I,2022, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient

to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the

Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the

amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order

to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the

three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in orderto satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any otherTaxable Property by more than

ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

Resolution No. 10747
Page 20 of35 A-15

Page 106

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall classifli the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the

Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility

easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in
the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or

dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shallcontinue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities SpecialTax. An exception to this

may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessot/s Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to

be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.l above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to

the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A3, the City may permit the tra nsfer

of Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from

one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assesso/s Parcel to another

Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction

in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment

to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the

transfer in the CFD No. 23 lA3 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or,

Resolution No. 10747
Page2l of35 A-16

Page 107

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of

Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that

do not materially affect the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition,

the interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.

lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

I. REVIEWAPPEATS

The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake

the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall interpret this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual

administration of the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the SpecialTax with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator

claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not

later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant

must be current in all payments of SpecialTaxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.

The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA3 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator's decision relative to the

appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action, if any, by the City

Manager, the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice

with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior

years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing

any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COTLECNON

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA3, may, at the sole discretion of the

City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner

as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

Resolution No. 10747
Page 22 of 35 A-T7

Page 108

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACITITIES SPECIAT TAX

The Facilities SpecialTax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with

respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator

with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA3 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel'

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full

As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax described in Section C. lf

an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on the assignment

of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C. lf the

Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) shall be assigned as though

the Assesso/s Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the

calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that

point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessot's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined

in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would

produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the

Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equalthe Redemption Amount.

Resolution No. 10747
Page23 of35 A-18

Page 109

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows:

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum

Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA3, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the

current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount

of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from

the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest

redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the

reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the

redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the

balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund

below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest

payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to

Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption

Amount").

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

Resolution No. 10747
Page24 of35 A-19

Page 110

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation

of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the

Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the

Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the

amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that

may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full

Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following

formula:

PP=((PE-A)xF)+A

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.l above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the

Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assessor's Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially

prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date

is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the

lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator

shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA3 that there has been a partial prepayment of the

Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to

the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Resolution No. 10747
Page25 of35 A-20

Page 111

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

L. TERM OF SPECIAT TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2027-2O22 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services SpecialTax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 202I-2022 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer

needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Resolution No. 10747
Page26 of35 A-21

Page 112

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Resolution No. 10747

Page21 of35

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Maximum Special Tax Rates

(Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-2O221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

202L-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s100

L00

100

100

100

s00

1,000

1,000

s100

100

202t-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Ratell)

Sago

790

690

s90

490

30,000

LL,7OO

LL,7OO

Ssgo

490

Residential
Floor Area

> 2,2OO

2,OOO-2,L99

1,800 - 1,999

<t,7gg

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MH D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Small Lot Final Map Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

A-22
Page 113

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2l-2O221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July 7,2022, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July 7, 2022, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the

Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

Resolution No. 10747

Page 28 of 35

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

2021-2022
Maximum

Services Special
Tax Rate(z}

s1,ooo

s1,000

$1,000

202t-2022
Maximum

Facilities Special
Tax Rate(l)

S11,7oo

s18,ooo

s18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Propefi

Large Lot Propefi

Undeveloped Propefi

A-23
Page 114

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3

Minimum Facilities Revenue
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2l-2O221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July t, 2022, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities

Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(21 As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.

(3) The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations

being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(4) Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning with
Residential Floor Area of less than 1,799 square feet.

Resolution No. 10747

Page29 of35

202t-2022
Minimum Facilities

pgygnus(rx3l

s443,090

82,320

0

o

0

S525,410

2021-2022
Developed Propefi
Maximum Facilities
SPeciall3x X21s(rxz)

sse0

490

30,000

LL,700

LL,7OO

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

75t

1"68

0.0

0.0

0.0

land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+)

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

A-24
Page 115

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Resolution No. 10747

Page 30 of35

ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2l-2O221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

202t-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPeciall3x P31s(rxzl

$ago

790

690

590

490

30,000

tr,700

tI,700

sseo

490

Residential
Floor Area

>2,200

2,OOO-2,199

1,800 - 1,999

< L,799

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD M ulti-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Small Lot Final Map Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

A-25
Page 116

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-2O221

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

Resolution No. 10747

Page 3l of35

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

2021-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Speciallsx g31g(rxz)

S11,7oo

518,000

s18,000

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Propefi

Large Lot Propefi

Undeveloped Property

A-26
Page 117

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2l-2O221

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate and Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

set forth in this table.
(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 1,799 square feet.

Resolution No. 10747

Page 32 of35

2021-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

pgygnus (rx4(a)

s443,090

82,320

0

0

0

S525,410

202t-2022
Developed Propefi
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

p31g(rXzxs)

Ssgo

490

30,000

LL,700

71,700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(11

75r

158

0.0

o.o

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(st

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

A-27
Page 118

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Resolution Na. 10747

Page 33 of35

ATTACHMENT E

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Amended Boundaries

{'cET r er I

f

+
g--rE s-il9

tr& r.af

IHiffiE@E-eB+

dq
6fmc*nbw,grs

d4
dilri:El4l@cilE.qE

IEEEII)
qlE.
fficmqs.F

iri-ra-ariai

- 

rdru-

W77n *r'r*.'

frzffie
tofi-otb-rss)

A-28
Page 119

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



EXHIBIT B

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
REGARDING PROPOSED CHANGES TO

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3 OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM'S COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRTCT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

Tuesday, December 14, 2021
6:30 p.m.

Folsom City Hall
50 Natoma Street, tr'olsom, California

On Tuesday, November 9,202I, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of
Folsom (the "City") adopted its Resolution No. 10747 (the "Resolution of Consideration") by
which it has scheduled a public hearing to give consideration to amending the powers currently
conferred upon the City Council by the City's Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") for its Improvement Area No. 3.

At a special election within Improvement Area No. 3 held on May 26, 2020, the City
Council was authorized, among other things, to levy a special tax to finance the acquisition and

construction of certain public facilities (the "Facilities") and certain public services (the
o'services") and to issue debt to finance the Facilities. The Community Facilities District was

formed under the "Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982," Chapter 2.5,Pafi 1, Division
2,Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California, commencing with Section 53311 (the

"Act").

The Act provides that changes in the powers conferred upon the City Council by the

Community Facilities District may be considered and submitted to the qualified electors of the

Community Facilities District. The first step in that process is to describe the proposed changes

and to schedule and hold a public hearing on them. In its Resolution of Consideration, the City
Council has set forth the proposed changes (the "Proposed Amendments") and scheduled the
public hearing.

This Notice contains a brief summary of the Proposed Amendments, but you are referred

to the Resolution of Consideration for the definitive description of the Proposed Amendments,

including a description of the amended rate and method of apportionment.

The Public Hearine: The City of Folsom City Council will hold the public hearing on

Tuesday, December 14,202I,at6:30 p.m. atthe City Hall, 50Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 95630.

At the public hearing, any persons interested, including alltaxpayers, property owners and

registered voters within the Community Facilities District, may appear and be heard, and the oral
or written testimony of all interested persons or taxpayers for or against any of the proposed

changes to the authority confened on the City Council by the Community Facilities District, will
be heard and considered.

Resolution No. 10747

Page 34 of35 B-1 Page 120

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Any protests to the proposed changes may be made orally or in writing by any interested
persons or taxpayers, except that any protests pertaining to the regularity or sufficiency of the
proceedings shall be in writing and shall clearly set forth the irregularities and defects to which
objection is made. The City Council may waive any inegularities in the form or content of any

written protest and at the public hearing may corect minor defects in the proceedings. All written
protests not presented in person by the protester at the public hearing must be filed with the City
Clerk at or before the time fixed for the public hearing in order to be received and considered. Any
written protest may be withdrawn in writing at any time before the conclusion of the public
hearing.

Written protests by a majority of the registered voters residing and registered within the
Community Facilities District (provided they number at least 6), or by the owners of a majority of
the land area within the Community Facilities District not exempt from the special tax, will require
suspension ofthese proceedings for at least one year. If such protests are directed only against

certain elements of the proposed changes, only those elements need be excluded from the
proceedings.

The Proposed Amendments: The proposed changes are to amend the authority to (i) amend
the boundaries of Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities District to include only
property expected to be developed into active adult single family residences, (ii) amend the RMA
to adjust the maximum special tax rates based on the planned development within Improvement
Area No. 3, and (iii) amend the appropriations limit and maximum bonded indebtedness. For a
definitive description of the Proposed Amendments you are referred to the Resolution of
Consideration itself, a copy of which is available from the City Clerk.

For the Proposed Amendments to take effect, a public hearing must be held on the Proposed
Amendments and the qualified electors within the Community Facilities District must approve the
Proposed Amendments by atwo-thirds vote. As the Community Facilities District is uninhabited,
or inhabited by fewer than 12 registered voters, the qualified electors are, pursuant to the Act, the
owners of property within the Community Facilities District.

Dated: l" J,2021.
City Clerk
City of Folsom

Resolution No. 10747

Page 35 of35 B-2
Page 121

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 122

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. 10748

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
APPROVING A PROPOSED BOUNDARY MAP AND DESIGNATING

IMPROVEMENT AREA NO 7 WITHIN THE (CITY OF F'OLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRTCT NO.23 (F'OLSOM RANCH)'

AND TO LEVY SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN

WHEREAS, the City Council (the *City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City")
conducted proceedings under and pursuant to the terms and provisions of the "Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982,'being Chapter 2.5,Part 1, Division 2,Title 5 (beginning with
Section 53311) of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Act"), among other things,

(i) to form a community facilities district within the City of Folsom, designated and known as
*CiW of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)" (the "Communlty
Facilities District"), and (ii) to authorize a special tax (the "special Tax") to finance the acquisition
and construction of certain public facilities (the "Facilities") and certain public services (the

"services"), all as set forth in the City Council's Resolution No. 10435 (the "Resolution of
Formation"), adopted on May 26,2020; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Section 53312.7 and 53345.8 of the

Catifornia Government Code, the City Council previously adopted the Local Goals and Policies
(the "City Goals and Policies") concerning the use of the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53350 of the Act, it is proposed to designate a new
improvement arca within the Community Facilities District named "City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No .7" ("lmprovement Area No. 7");
and

WHEREAS, the proposed boundaries of Improvement Area No. 7, are shown on the

boundary map entitledooMap of Boundaries City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No .7 ," onfile with the City Clerk (the "Boundary Map"); and

WHEREAS, the Facilities and Services authorized to be financed through the Community
Facilities District are set forth in Exhibit A and Exhibit B to the Resolution of Formation,

respectively; and

WHEREAS, the City finds thatthe Facilities and Services are necessary to meet increased

demands placed upon the City as the result of new development occurring and anticipated within
Improvement Area No. 7; and

WHEREAS, the types of incidental expenses proposed to be incurred are set forth in
Exhibit C attached to the Resolution of Formation;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,

as follows:

Section 1.

and correct.

Resolution No. 10748

Page 1 of36

The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true

Page 123

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Section 2. The City Council hereby designates Improvement Area No. 7 within the

Community Facilities District. The City Council hereby finds and determines that Improvement

Area No. 7 is in compliance with the City Goals and Policies, and to the extent of any non-

compliance with the City Goals and Policies, such compliance is hereby waived by the City.

Section 3. The boundaries of the tenitory proposed for inclusion in Improvement Area

No. 7 are more particularly described and shown on the Boundary Map now on file in the office

of the City Clerk. The City Council hereby approves the Boundary Map and adopts the boundaries

shown on the Boundary Map as describing the extent of the territory included in Improvement

Area No. 7. The City finds that the Boundary Map is in the form and contains the matters

prescribed by Section 31 10 of the California Streets and Highways Code and directs the City Clerk

to certifu the adoption of this resolution on the face of the Boundary Map, and to file a copy of the

Boundary Map with the County Recorder for placement in the Book of Maps of Assessment and

Community Facilities Districts no later than fifteen (15) days after the adoption of this resolution.

Section 4. It is the intention of the City Council to finance the Facilities and fund the

Services described in Exhibits A and B, respectively, attached to the Resolution of Formation and

made aparthereof. All of the Facilities to be financed will have an estimated useful life of at least

five (5) years. They are public facilities that the City or another governmental entity is authorized

by law to construct, own or operate or to which they may contribute revenue. The Facilities to be

financed need not be physically located within the Community Facilities District.

Section 5. Except where funds are otherwise available, special taxes sufficient to pay

for all Facilities and Services will be annually levied within Improvement Area No. 7. Upon

recordation of a notice of special tax lien pursuant to Section 3114.5 of the California Streets and

Highways Code, a continuing lien to secure the related levy of the special tax shall attach to all
nonexempt real property within Improvement Area No. 7, and the lien shall continue in force and

effect until the special tax obligation (or any portion thereof) is paid or prepaid and permanently

satisfied and the related special tax lien is cancelled in accordance with law or until collection of
the related special tax by the City ceases. The rate and method of apportionment of the special tax

to be levied in Improvement Area No. 7 is set fonh in Exhibit A, attached to this resolution. The

special tax with respect to the Facilities on any parcel within Improvement Area No. 7 shall not be

levied after the earlier of (i) Fiscal Year 2079-80 or (ii) the Fiscal Year occurring 50 years

following (a) the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or (b) the first series of
bonds or other debt issued for Improvement Area No. 7. The special tax with respect to the

Services shall be levied perpetually until the collection of the special tax by the City ceases. In
the case of any special tax to pay for the Facilities and to be levied against any parcel used for
private residential pu{poses, under no circumstances will the special tax levied against any parcel

be increased as a consequence ofdelinquency or default by the owner ofany other parcel or parcels

within Improvement Area No. 7 by more than 10 percent of the special tax for Facilities that would

be levied in that Fiscal Year but for such delinquencies or defaults.

Section 6. Advances of funds or contributions of work in kind from any lawful source,

specifically including owners of property within Improvement Area No. 7, may be reimbursed

from bond proceeds or from special tax revenue or both to the extent ofthe lesser ofthe value or

cost of the contribution, but any agreement to do so shall not constitute a debt or liability of the

City.

Resolution No. 10748

Page2 of36 Page 124

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



To the extent the Facilities will not be constructed by the City, in the opinion of the City
Council, the public interest will not be served by allowing the property owners in the Community
Facilities District to intervene in a public bidding process pursuant to Section 53329.5(a) of the

Act.

Section 7. The City intends to reserve to itself the right and authority to allow bond

tenders from any interested landowner within Improvement Area No. 7 to be accepted under

Government Code sections 53344.1 and 53356.8 in full or partial payment of any installment of
the special taxes or the interest or penalties thereon.

Section 8. The City Council hereby sets Tuesday, December 14,2021,6:30 p.m., or as

soon thereafter as the City Council may reach the matter, at the City Hall, 50 Natoma Street,

Folsom, CA, 95630, as the time and place for the public hearing on the designation of Improvement

Area No. 7. At the hearing, oral and written testimony concerning the designation of Improvement
AreaNo. 7 and the furnishing of the Facilities and Services will be heard andprotests will be

considered from registered voters residing within Improvement Area No. 7 and persons owning
real property within Improvement Area No. 7. Written protests against the designation of
Improvement Area No. 7 by a majority of the registered voters (if at least six such voters protest)

or by the owners of a majority of the land which would be subject to special taxation within the

Improvement AreaNo. 7 will require the suspension of proceedings to designate the Improvement
Area No. 7 and to levy the specified special tax for at least one year. If such protests constitute a

majority protest and are directed only against a specified type or types ofthe Facilities and Services

or against levying a specified special tax, only those types of Facilities, Services or the specified
special tax will be eliminated from the proceedings. Any protests pertaining to the regularity or
sufficiency of the proceedings shall be in writing and shall clearly set forth the inegularities and

defects to which objection is made. Written protests must be filed with the City Clerk at or before
the time fixed for the hearing.

Section 9. Any bonds issued in these proceedings shall be callable in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and as more specifically to be set forth in any resolution authorizingthe
issuance of bonds or indenture authorized thereby.

Section 10. It is anticipated that the special tax will be billed as a separate line item on

the regular secured property tax bills, and will be subject to the same enforcement mechanism, and

the same penalties and interest for late payment, as regular ad valorem property taxes. However,

the City reserves the right, under Section 53340,1o utilize any method of collecting the special tax
which it shall, from time to time, determine to be in the best interests of the City, including, but
not limited to, direct billing by the City to the property owrrers and supplemental billing, and when
lawfully available, judicial foreclosure of the special tax lien.

Section 11. The City Manager or his/her designee is directed to study Improvement
Area No. 7 and prepare for filing at the public hearing the report required by Section 53321.5 of
the Act (the "Hearing Report"). The City Manager may delegate to consultants the duty to perform
the study and prepare the Hearing Report.

Resolution No. 10748
Page 3 of36

Page 125

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Section 12. If elections are held in these proceedings, it is the intention of the City
Council that the electors will be the owners of property within Improvement Area No. 7 pursuant

to Sections 53326 and 53350 of the Act.

Section 13. The City Council also intends to establish the annual appropriations limit of
Improvement Area No. 7 at $3,800,000, for the 2021-22 fiscal year.

Section 14. The City Clerk is hereby directed to have the Notice of Public Hearing in
the form attached to this resolution as Exhibit B published once in a newspaper of general

circulation in the vicinity of Improvement Area No. 7, no later than ten ( I 0) days prior to the public

hearing.

Resolution No. 10748

Page 4 of36 Page 126

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



15. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of November,202l, by the following roll-call

vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10748
Page 5 of36 Page 127

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



EXHIBIT A

RATE AND METHOD OF'APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX
CITY OF'FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRTCT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH),
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7

Resolution No. 10748

Page 6 of36
Page 128

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT FOR

CITY OF FOLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOISOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area No.7

A SpecialTax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within

the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 7 (CFD No.

23 lATl and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator

through the application of the Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of the real

property within CFD No. 231A7, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for
the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Acf' means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 7982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Assessoy's Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessorr's Parcet Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA7.

"Bond Yea/' means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September lst in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA7 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 aA7" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7.

Resolution No. 10748

Page 7 of36 A-1
Page 129

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"CFD No. 231A7 Administrator" means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

"CFD No. 23 lA7" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7.

"CFD No. 231A7 Boundaries" means the boundaries for CFD No. 231A7, including the area designated

as Zone 1 and Zone 2, as set forth in Attachment E.

"CitV" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 231A7.

"County" means the County of Sacramento.

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any FiscalYearon anyAssessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA7 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to

Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the SpecialTax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property.

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

Resolution No. 10748

Page 8 of36 A-2
Page 130

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

SpecialTaxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of
the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 231A7, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or

SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

2g lA7, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to

applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA7, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 231A7 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to

completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 231A7 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the

City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit

enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 231A7 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA7.

"Fiscal Yeaf means the period starting July L and ending on the following June 30.

"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other

instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from

time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Resolution No. 10748

Page 9 of36 A-3
Page 131

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family

Residential Units.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property'

"Maximum Seruices SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined

in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Seruices SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Services SpecialTax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any FiscalYear on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" mean s L.80Yo, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,

that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA7 Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-FamilyAttached Property" means allAssessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,lOLL and as amended by the City Council.

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel'

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for residential

land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcelcontains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

Resolution No. 10748

Page l0 of36 A-4
Page 132

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the

Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property'

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessot's

Parcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2}tt and as amended by the City Council.

"Non-Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building

permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

"Open Space Property" means property within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries, which (a) has been

designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as open space,

or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open space, or (c) has been irrevocably

offered for dedication as open space to the federal government, the State of California, the County,

the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit organization, or (d) is encumbered by an

easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture

pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to

the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA7.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements

have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family

Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 231A7, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended by the

future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No. 23147.

"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated

average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location

and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries,

which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with specific boundaries and

Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property. As used in this

definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-association.

Resolution No. 10748

Page ll of36 A-5
Page 133

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"Proportionately'' means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) and
the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 231A7.

"Public Property" means any property within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries, which (a) is owned by a
public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or (c) is designated
with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property, which will be

owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the federal
government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or
similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA7

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential
Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached
Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code.

"Selices Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the
costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA7, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or
application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts
estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23',A7 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"Services SpecialTax" means the annual SpecialTax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Selvices Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the
Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to

Resolution No. 10748

Page 12 of36 A-6
Page 134

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



exceed four percent(4o/ol.ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 231A7 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an a mount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or

replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to

the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the

Facilities SpecialTax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities SpecialTax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the

CFD No. 231A7 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MtD ?oning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property

for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or

attached Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre and more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2OtL and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Toning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully

described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,201I and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, allTaxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small lot Final Map Remainder Propefi" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not
yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without

further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

Resolution No. 10748

Page 13 of36 A-7
Page 135

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California.

"Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries that are

not exempt from the CFD No. 231A7 Special Tax pursuant to law or Section F below.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to

the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to

be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof.

"Undeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

"Zone 1" means that area within the CFD No. 231A7 Boundaries as set forth in Attachment E

"Zone 2" means that area within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries as set forth in Attachment E

B. ASSIGNMENTTO IAND USE CATEGO&IE

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the CFD No. 23 lA7 Boundaries shall be designated as either Taxable

Property or Tax-Exempt ProPertY.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

C. FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 23 lA7

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment.

Resolution No. 10748

Page 14 of36 A-8
Page 136

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2027-2022 is set forth in Attachment B of this

Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July !,2022, the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum

Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

C.1. Future Assessoy's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Propefi Subdividing into Large Lot Property

When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property'

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there

will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for

the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the

Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total

current Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

B of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the -Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

M ulti-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Resolution No. 10748

Page 15 of36 A-9
Page 137

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Propefi and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the

Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the

expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial

prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately

increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment B of this Rate and Method of
Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A7 ,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be

updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate for all

Taxable Property in CFD No. 23 lA7.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

As part of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, a Price Point Study will be prepared and estimated

average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Resolution No, 10748

Page 16 of36 A-10
Page 138

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equalto the

Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Rate and

Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to

the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the

Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each

Residential Property land use category.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated

to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenue.

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment
will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C,3. Future Assessoy's Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future

Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more

Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large lot Propefi
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

Resolution No, 10748

Page l7 of36 A-11
Page 139

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments

to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the

Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the totalcurrent EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect

any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the

Undeveloped Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Property.

Large Lot Property Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for allTaxable Property as if allof the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the
planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the

Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Resolution No. 10748

Page l8 of36 A-12
Page 140

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the

Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-

Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equalto the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot Property

subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed Property,

Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the

amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Resolution No. 10748

Page l9 of36 A-13
Page 141

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lfadditional moniesareneededtosatisfytheFacilitiesSpecialTaxRequirementafterthe
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 700% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for

the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first two steps have been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property

for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the

first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 1.00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the

entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

D. SERVICES SPECIAI TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No. 231A7 according to the

Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Rate and Method of

Apportionment.

Resolution No. 10748

Page20 of36 A-14
Page 142

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



D.1. lncrease in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July L,2022, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall be

increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 231A7 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient

to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services SpecialTax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

Special Tax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA7.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the

amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services SpecialTax in orderto satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

E. DETINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA7 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

Fiscal Year, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA7 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than

Resolution No. 10748

Page2l of36 A-15
Page 143

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults'

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 231A7 Administratorshallclassifythe following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the

Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessot's Parcels with public or utility

easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in

the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or

dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this

may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public
property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property

becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to

be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to

the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A7 , the City may permit the transfer

of Maximum Facilities Special Tax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from

one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor's Parcel to another

Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction

in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Resolution No. 10748

Page22 of36 A-16
Page 144

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Maximum Facilities SpecialTax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment

to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method

of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the transfer in the CFD

No. 23 lA7 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or, following an Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Rate and Method of Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that

do not materially affect the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition, the

interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.

lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

I. REVIEWAPPEATS

The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake

the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator shall interpret this Rate and Method

of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual administration of

the SpecialTax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator

claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not

later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant

must be current in all payments of SpecialTaxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.

The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA7 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator's decision relative to the

appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action, if any, by the City

Manager, the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice

with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA7

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior

years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing

any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COTLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 23 lA7, may, at the sole discretion of the

Resolution No. 10748

Page23 of36 A-17
Page 145

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



City, directly bill the SpecialTax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner

as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor/s Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with

respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator

with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA7 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of

redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax described in Section C. lf
an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on the assignment

of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C. lf the

Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) shall be assigned as though

the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property'

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the

calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined

in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would

produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2'

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the

Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount. lf the Prepayment

Resolution No. 10748

Page 24 of 36 A-18
Page 146

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equalthe Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows:

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum

Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA7, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the

current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount

of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount")'

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4: Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from

the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest

redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds.

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet

been paid.

Step 5: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the

reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the

redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the

balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund

below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest

payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equalto the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to

Steps 2, 3,4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 andT (the "Redemption

Amount").

Resolution No. 10748

Page25 of36 A-19
Page 147

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation

of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses").

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or all of the current property tax bill and the portion attributable to the payment of the

Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the

Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the

amount of Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2. Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full

Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following

formula:

PP=((PE-AlxF)+A

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the

Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assesso/s Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially

prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii) the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date

is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the

lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA7 Administrator

shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA7 that there has been a partial prepayment of the

Resolution No. 10748

Page26 of36 A-20
Page 148

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Facilities Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

t. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2027-2022 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2t-2022 and shall be

levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no longer

needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Resolution No. 10748

Page27 of36 A-21
Page 149

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Resolution No. 10748
Page28 of36

ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

Maximum Special Tax Rates
( Fisca I Y ear 2O2l-2O221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

202t-2022
Maximum
Services Special
Tax Rate(21

5L77

!77

L77

!77

L77

L77

L77

500

1,000

1,000

5]-77

t77

t77

2021-2022
Maximum
Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

S2,450

2,390

2,350

3,O75

2,95O

2,845

2,350

30,000

L1,,700

LL,7OO

S2,350

2,845

2,350

Residential
Floor Area

> 2,900

2,700-2,899

<2,699

>3,325

3,000 - 3,324

s2,999

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Zone L: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone2: Single-Family Detached Propefi - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M MD M ulti-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

A-22
Page 150

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENTA
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 7

Maximum Special Tax Rates
(Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-2O221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July t,2022, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation

Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) On each July 1, commencing on July 7,2022, the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the Services

Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

ResolutionNo. 10748
Page29 of36

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

202t-2022
Maximum
Services Special
Tax Rate(2)

s1_,000

s1_,000

S1,ooo

202t-2022
Maximum
Facilities Special
Tax Rate(1)

S11,7oo

sL8,000

S18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Propefi

Large Lot Propefi

Undeveloped Propefi

A-23
Page 151

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
Minimum Facilities Revenue

(Fiscal Y ear 2O2L-2O221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July t,2o22,the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities

Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(21 As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for

Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.
(3) The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations

being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(4) Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD

Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,699 square feet and Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,999 square feet.

Resolution No. 10748
Page 30 of36

202L-2022
Minimum
Facilities
pgysnug (rXrl

S237,350

312,950

0

0

0

0

Ss5o,3oo

202t-2022
Developed Propefi
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallsx 331s(rxz)

s2,350

2,845

2,350

30,000

LL,7OO

L!,700

Planned
Number of
Residential
Units / Acres

101

110

0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(nl

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+l

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M M D M ulti-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

A-24
Page 152

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ResolutionNo. 10748
Page 31 of36

ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2l-2O221

Taxed Per

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

2021-2022
Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallsx i31s(rxzl

S2,450

2,390

2,350

3,O75

2,950

2,845

2,350

30,000

LL,7OO

tL,700

S2,350

2,845

2,350

Residential
Floor Area

> 2,900

2,7OO-2,899

s2,699

>3,325

3,000 - 3,324

<2,999

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone L: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Tone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

A-25
Page 153

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2l-2O221

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

Resolution No. 10748
Page32 of36

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

202t-2022
Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Speciall3x P31g(rxzl

S11,7oo

s18,0oo

S18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Propefi

Large Lot Propefi

Undeveloped Propefi

A-26
Page 154

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2L-2O221

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/Acres, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in this table.

(4) The total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zoning with Residential Floor Area of less than 2,699 square feet and Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning with
Residential Floor Area of less than 2,999 square feet.

Resolution No. 10748
Page 33 of36

202t-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Psvsnus (rxzxr)

S237,350
312,950

0

0

0

0

S5so,3oo

202t-2022
Developed Property Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special

13x psls(rX4(a)

S2,350
2,845

2,35O

30,000

LL,7OO

7L,700

Planned
Number of
Residential

Units /
Acres(1)

L01

110

0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:
Zone 1: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(sl

Zone 2: Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoningtst

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zoning

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

M HD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

A-27
Page 155

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Resolution No. 10748
Page34 of36

ATTACHMENT E

CiU of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 7
Boundaries and Zones

SHEr r I

7
crw(FFqlfl . 6lFY(F8r5ntEflro.af/tEccx,FoFrlA

+
L,,r-_-ra_,,__,-ii

*ftI'

ffdia
e5rffidE

gril&rv)og(

(072 fft00'10$

dC
qFffi€

ruru-r
G l-maEG.'4_r
{GflruIffi@M

iq5eisrlir ffiQ'ctm(m

V/////A alr*n?

A-28
Page 156

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



EXHIBIT B

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING THE FORMATION OF THE
CITY OF'F'OLSOM

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH), DESIGNATION OF TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7 WITHIN THE

DISTRICT
AND LEVYING OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Tuesday, November 9,2020, the City of Folsom
(the "City") duly adopted its Resolution No. 10748 (the "Resolution Designating Improvement
Area") wherein it declared its intention to designate a new improvement area within City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") to be

knownas "City ofFolsom Community Facilities DistrictNo.23,ImprovementAreaNo. T (Folsom

Ranch)" ("Improvement Area No. 7"), and to levy a special tax within Improvement Area No. 7
and to pay the costs of certain public facilities, including, transportation, water system, recycled
water, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway and open space, and infrastructure
required by the specific plan infrastructure fee; and other incidental expenses and bond issuance

costs (collectively, the "Facilities") and of certain services, including reconstruction and/or
rehabilitation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of open space improvements,
landscape corridors and paseos, streetlights, medians, neighborhood parks, storm water
management, and water quality controls, and certain costs related to the maintenance of the

services described above (collectively, the 'oservices"), all as more specifically described in the
Resolution Designating Improvement Area, ffid its Resolution No. 10749 (the "Resolution
Declaring the Necessity for Incurring Bonded Indebtedness") wherein it declared its intention to
incur bonded indebtedness in a principal amount not to exceed $ 14,250,000 for Improvement Area
No. 7, to finance the acquisition and construction of the Facilities under and pursuant to the terms
and provisions of the ooMello Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982," being Chapter Z.S,Part l,
Division 2,Tttle 5 of the Government Code of the State of Califomia (the "Act").

This Notice contains a brief summary of the Proposal (as described below), but you are

referred to the City's Resolution Designating Improvement Area and its Resolution Declaring the

Necessity for Incurring Bonded Indebtedness on file with the City Clerk for the definitive
description of the Proposal, including a description of the Facilities and the Services, a list of
incidental expenses and bond issuance costs and the rates and methods of apportionment of the
special tax.

The Proposal consists of the aulhorization of (1) a special tax within Improvement Area
No. 7, (2) the issuance of bonds for Improvement Area No. 7 to frnance the Facilities and (3) the
annual appropriations limit of the Community Facilities District for Improvement Area No. 7 of
$3,800,000 for the 2021-22 fiscal year.

In order to confer the authority upon the City to levy the special tax and to issue the bonds,

a public hearing must be held on the Proposal, the City must determine to designate Improvement
Area No. 7 and the qualified electors within Improvement Area No. 7 must approve the Proposal
by a two-thirds vote. Where a proposed improvement area is uninhabited or inhabited by fewer
than 12 registered voters (there are no registered voters inhabiting Improvement Area No. 7) the

Resolution No. 10748
Page 35 of36

B-l Page 157

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



qualified electors are, pursuant to the Act, the owners of property within the proposed

improvement area.

THIS IS THE NOTICE OF THE PUBLIC HEARING

The public hearing will be held during the City Council meeting on Tuesday, December 14,

202I, at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as the City Council may reach the matter, at the City Hall,
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA, 95630.

At the hearing, oral and written testimony of all interested persons or potential special

taxpayers for or against the designation of Improvement Area No. 7 within the Community
Facilities District, the fumishing of the Facilities, the authorization to levy a special tax within
Improvement Area No. 7 and the authorization to issue the bonds will be heard. Written protests

against the designation of Improvement Area No. 7 delivered to the City Clerk at or before the
time set for the hearing by either registered voters residing within, or the owners of property within,
Improvement Area No. 7 will be counted toward a possible majority protest against such formation
and designation. Written protests by a majority of the registered voters residing within
Improvement Area No. 7 (provided they number at least 6) or by the owners of a majority of the
land area within Improvement Area No. 7 that is or will be subject to the related special tax, if not
withdrawn prior to the close of the hearing so as to reduce the value of the protests to less than a
majority, will require the designation of Improvement Area No. 7 eliminated from immediate
consideration and prevent its being included in a subsequent proceedings for at least one year. If
such protests constitute a majority protest and are directed only against the furnishing of a specified
type or types of the Facilities or Services or against levying a specified special tax, only those

types of Facilities, Services or the specified special tax will be eliminated from the proceedings.

Questions should be directed to Stacey Tamagni, Chief Financial Officer, telephone (916)

461-6080.

Dated: _,2021.
City Clerk of the
CITY OF FOLSOM

Resolution No. 10748
Page 36 of36

B-2 Page 158

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 159

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



RE,SOLUTION NO. 10749

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
DECLARING THE NECESSITY FOR INCURRING BONDED

INDEBTEDNESS IN AND FOR IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 7 WITHIN
THE CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) AND CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING
THEREON

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom declares and

finds that in order to finance the acquisition and construction of public improvements described in
Resolution No. 10748 (the "Resolution Designating Improvement Atea"), it is necessary to incur
bonded indebtedness; and

WHEREAS, the purpose for which the proposed debt is to be incurred is to provide the

funds necessary to pay for the cost of said public improvements;

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,
as follows:

Section 1. The City Council finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are true and

correct.

Section 2. The maximum amount of the proposed bonded indebtedness of the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), Improvement Area No. 7 is
$14,250,000.

Section 3. The City Council hereby sets Tuesday, December 14,202I,6:30 p.m., or as

soon thereafter as the City Council may reach the matter, at the City Hall, 50 Natoma Street,

Folsom, CA, 95630, as the time and place for a hearing by the City Council on the proposed bond

issue. At that time and place any persons interested, including any persons owning property in the
proposed improvementarea, will be heard.

Section 4. It is the intention of this City Council that any such bonds issued shall be made

callable in accordance with the terms of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982.

Section 5. The City Clerk of the City of Folsom shall have a copy of the Notice of Public
Hearing published pursuant to the Resolution Designating Improvement Area.

Section 6. This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.

Resolution No. 10749
Page I of2 Page 160

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of November,202l, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10749
Page2 of2

Page 161

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 162

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



MAP OF AMENDED BOUNDARIES
OF IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

OF CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNIry FACILITIES
DrsTRrcT NO.23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

CITY OF FOLSOM . COUNW OF SACRAMENTO . STATE OF CALIFORNIA

SHEET 1 OF ,I

+
0 200 400 800

-F

SCAIE: 1'=40'

F|ED tN THE OFFrG OF THE 4EKOF THE CIryOF FOLSM, frtS_DAy OF
h21

CIryCLEtr
ctry oF FoLsoM
$cwEMo couNw, cArFoRNtA

IHEEBY$AETUT NEWN WSHOWNG NOPOSEDSENOEO 8@NNIS OFNECfr OF
FiNM @MMUNtry FACtLtrtES DTSTRCT NO. A(FOLSOM NCH)|MmOVEMENTffi NO.3, Ctfl OF
FASil. mUNry OF SWtrO, $AE OF ruFONtA" WS FmOE By THE Ctry COUNC|I OF
THE Ctry OF FOTSOM AT A MEflING ffEREOF, HELD d ffE _ DAy OF _, 2021 , Ay
trS E$LUNON NO.

ruFEENCE IS HEffiBY @E TO MT GRTAN W EMMLEO'MP OF NOSED BOUNDMES
clry oF FosoM coMMUNfr FACLmES OSnt6 NO. A (FO!SoM NCH), Clry OF FOLSOM, COUW
OF sffiEMO, STAE OF ruFOilT, FIED frE 20fr DAY OF ML &20, IN @K 1S OF Mffi
OFSMNSO WUUMN FrcILNES DISRIfrS AI PAGE Z IN NE OFECE OF THE 6UW
RECmDER FOR nE @UNil OF $ruEffiO, STAE OF mtFONtA ffitCH BtS W SFECG.

CIry CLEtr
crry oF FoLsoM
SACMMEMO COUNry. C&IFORNIA

nEonls .................._ DAyoF .m21, ATnE HOURtr_O'q@K_.M.
IN MK-G WS OF NE$MEffi ND @MUUNfr FACILMES DISRCTS AT PAGE IN
frE OFFrcNE @UW RE@RDER OF frE COLWOF $ruffiO, STAE OF WIF6FFfr-

LEGEND COUNW OF SACMMEMO. GLIFONA

T

ROfuSEO CFD BOUNNY

IOTLINES

IMPROVSilT ARS NO. 3

(072-0060-099)

072406GuX

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

.--.'-^\
WTE ROCKROAD

llndlY&somffi trN !w
lGd&h,sj&Manil donni 7g.TOI

Page 163

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 5

Page 164

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



AMENpED RArE AND wrEIT?38:flPoRiloNMENr FoR

COMMUNITY FACITITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCHI

lmprovement Area No. 3

A SpecialTax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property within
the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 3 (CFD No.

23 lA3) and collected each Fiscal Year in an amount determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator

through the application of the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment as described below. All of
the real property within CFD No. 23 lA3, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be

taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

"Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on County records, such as

an Assessor's Parcel Map and secured roll data, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map, the land area shown on the applicable Large Lot Map, Small Lot Final Subdivision Map,

condominium plan, record of survey, or other recorded document creating or describing the parcel.

lf the preceding maps for a land area are not available, the Acreage of such land area may be

determined utilizing available spatial data and GlS. The square footage of an Assessor's Parcel is equal

to the Acreage of such parcel multiplied by 43,560.

"Act'' means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of L982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

"Aetive Adult Preperty" means an Assesser's Pareel ef Residential Preperty whieh has a restrietien

iY€-

ien
Maximum Faeilities SBeeial Tax Rateadjustments fer Assesser's Pareels elassified as Aetive Adult

Prep€+t1e

"Assessor/s Parcel" or "Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an

assigned Assessor's Parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the County Assessor of the County designating lots

or parcels by an Assessor's Parcel number.

"Authorized Services" means the landscape corridor, enhanced open space and street light

maintenance, services, and expenses authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Bond Year" means a one year period beginning on September 2nd in each year and ending on

September 1't in the following year, unless defined differently in the applicable lndenture.

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo.23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 1

Page 165

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt (as defined in the Act), whether in one or more series, issued

by CFD No. 23 lA3 under the Act.

"CFD No. 23 lA3" means Citv o
Area No. 3

"CFD No. 23 lA3 Administratoy'' means the City's Finance Director, or designee thereof, responsible

for determining the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, Services Special Tax Requirement and

providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

"CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries" means the amended boundaries for CFD No. 23 lA3 as set

forth in Attachment E.

+

"City" means the City of Folsom

"City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 23 lA3.

"County" means the County of Sacramento

"Developed Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit

for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of Residential

Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based upon a

prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Property, based

upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, in accordance with the
provisions of Section C.2, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual

Facilities Special Tax rate for each land use category of Taxable Property that will be set forth in

Attachment C, following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 lA3 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set

forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

CityofFolsom-CommunityFaci|itiesDistrictNo.23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page2

Page 166

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels that are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to

Section F. Assessor's Parcels exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act shall

also be designated as Exempt Property,

"Facilities Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Facilities Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Facilities Special Tax and preparing the annual Facilities Special Tax collection

schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Facilities

Special Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Facilities

SpecialTaxes to the Trustee; the costs of the Trustee (including its legal counsel) in the discharge of

the duties required of it under the lndenture; the costs to the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee

thereof of complying with arbitrage rebate requirements or responding to questions from the IRS or

SEC pertaining to any Bonds or any audit of any Bonds by the SEC or IRS; the costs to the City, CFD No.

23 lA3, or any designee thereof of providing continuing disclosure regarding the Bonds pursuant to
applicable state or federal securities law; the costs associated with preparing Facilities Special Tax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Facilities Special Taxes; the

costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Facilities Special Tax; the costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow

account, if any; and the costs associated with computing and preparing the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation, including the Price Point Study. Facilities Administrative Expenses shall also include

amounts estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to
completion any foreclosure of delinquent Facilities Special Taxes.

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities SpecialTax Escalation Factor" means two percent (2%) annually

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of SpecialTax revenue required in any Fiscal

Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount designated by the
City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year beginning in such

Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not limited to, credit

enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required to establish

or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the lndenture; (v) pay for
reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special Taxes

levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As You Go

Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax levy as

determined by the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator pursuant to the lndenture.

"Facilities Special Tax Term" means the earlier of Fiscal Year 2079-2080 or the Fiscal Year occurring

50 years following the Fiscal Year in which the first building permit was issued or the first series of
Bonds was issued within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Fiscal Yeay'' means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 3
Page 167

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"lndenture" means the indenture, fiscal agent agreement, trust agreement, resolution or other

instrument pursuant to which Bonds are issued, as modified, amended and/or supplemented from

time to time, and any instrument replacing or supplementing the same.

"Large Lot Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Large Lot Map was

recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified as

Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential
Property. Large Lot Property also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Large Lot Map" means a recorded subdivision map creating larger parcels by land use. The Large Lot

Map does not create individual lots for which building permits may be issued for single-family
Residential Units.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax" means the total maximum annual Facilities SpecialTax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rate" means the maximum annual Facilities Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel ofTaxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Services Special Tax, determined
in accordance with the provisions of Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum Services Special Tax Rate" means the maximum annual Services Special Tax rate for each

land use category of Taxable Property, as shown in Attachment A, which may be levied in any Fiscal

Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Maximum SpecialTax" means the total annual Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and Maximum Services Special Tax, determined in

accordance with the provisions of Section C and Section D, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on

any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property,

"Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate" means L.8O%, unless the City determines, in its sole discretion,
that a higher Maximum Total Effective Tax Rate is appropriate.

"Minimum Facilities Revenue" means the minimum amount of total CFD No. 23 lA3 Maximum
Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor, less any

Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K. The

Minimum Facilities Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment B of this
Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit could

be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's Parcel

with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28, 20tL and as amended by the City Council.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No, 3 - Amended Page 4
Page 168

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of an

Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed Use Residential Parcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcelthat is designated for residential

land use. lf the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and non-

residential land use, only that portion of an Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the

Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Property.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building permit

could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

Parcel with a permitted density range of L2-20 Residential Units per Acre and more fully described in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20L1and as amended by the City Council.

"Non-Residential Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building

permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings,

"Open Space Property" means property within the beundaries ef CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended

Boundaries which (a) has been designated with specific boundaries and acreage on a Small Lot Final

Subdivision Map as open space, or (b) is classified by the City zoning code or County Assessor as open

space, or (c) has been irrevocably offered for dedication as open space to the federal government,

the State of California, the County, the City, any other public agency, a private, non-profit

organization, or (d) is encumbered by an easement or other restriction required by the City limiting
the use of such property to open space.

"Outstanding Bonds" means all Bonds, which remain outstanding as defined in the lndenture
pursuant to which such Bonds were issued.

"Pay as You Go Costs" means that portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement attributable to
the direct payment for the acquisition and/or construction of public improvements, which are

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" means an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements
have been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan

approval, such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of
multi-family Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall

have sole discretion, based upon available development information, in classifying an Assessor's

Parcel as Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

"Planned Development" means the planned number of Residential Units, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property Acreage, MMD Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, and Non-Residential

Property Acreage planned within CFD No. 23 lA3, set forth in Attachment B or, following the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, as amended

by the future recordation of all Large Lot Maps and Small Lot Final Subdivision Maps within CFD No.

23 tA3.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 5

Page 169

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



"Price Point Study" means an analysis, prepared by an independent firm, to verify the estimated
average sales price within each land use category of Residential Property given the project location

and current market conditions.

"Property Owner Association Property" means any property within the bes+deries-efCFD No. 23 lA3

Amended Boundaries, which is (a) owned by a property owner association or (b) designated with
specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map as property owner association
property. As used in this definition, a property owner association includes any master or sub-

association.

"Proportionately' means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Facilities Special Tax levy to the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) and

the Services Special Tax levy to the Maximum Services Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels

within each classification (Developed Property, Single Family Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, etc.) within CFD No. 23 lA3.

"Public Property" means any property within the beunda+ies-ef-CFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries,

which (a) is owned by a public agency, (b) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public

agency, or (c) is designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map
as property, which will be owned by a public agency, For purposes of this definition, a public agency

includes the federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, or any other public

agency.

"Residential Floor Area" means all of the square footage of living area within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio, or

similar area. The determination of Residential Floor Area shall be made by the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator by reference to appropriate records kept by the City's building department. Residential

Floor Area for a residential structure will be based on the building permit(s) issued for such structure
prior to it being classified as Developed Property, and shall not change as a result of additions or
modifications made to such structure after such classification as Developed Property.

"Residential Lot" means an individual lot of land for which a building permit could be issued to
construct a Residential Unit.

"Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building permit
could be issued for purposes of constructing Residential Units, including Single-Family Detached

Property - SF/SFHD Zoning, Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning, MHD Multi-Family
Attached Property, and MMD Multi-Family Attached Property.

"Residential Unit" means a residential dwelling unit, not including guest quarters or "granny flats" as

allowed by the City zoning code,

"services Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related

to the administration of the Services Special Tax including, but not limited to, the following: the costs

of computing the Services Special Taxes and preparing the annual Services Special Tax collection
schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Services Special

Taxes (whether by the County, the City, or otherwise); the costs associated with preparing SpecialTax

disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries regarding the Services Special Tax; and the

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 5
Page 170

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



costs of the City, CFD No. 23 lA3, or any designee thereof related to any appeal of the levy or

application of the Services Special Tax. Services Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts

estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 23 lA3 for any other administrative purposes related to
the Services Special Tax.

"services SpecialTax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"services Special Tax Escalation Factor" means the June annualized percentage change of the

Consumer Price lndex for all Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area, not to
exceed four percent $%1. ln the event that the percentage change is negative, the Services Special

Tax Escalation Factor shall be equal to zero.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required in

any Fiscal Year for CFD No. 23 lA3 to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount designated

by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to establish or
replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds related to
the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the levy of
the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficient to pay the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that FiscalYear. Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls shall

not include Pay As You Go Costs, and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services Special

Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal Year; less

(vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined by the
CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property
for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached or
attached ResidentialUnitswith a permitted density rangeof 7-L2 ResidentialUnits perAcreand more

fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20L1- and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more

Residential Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning shall consist of either single-

family property with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high

density property with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,20tt and as amended by the City

Council.

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in each

FiscalYear on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement
and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Small Lot Final Map Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a Small Lot

Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Propefi" means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 7
Page 171

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that
portion of property for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without
further subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final

Map Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot

Property.

"Small Lot Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final
subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act (California Government Code Section 66470 et seq,) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 1352, that creates individual lots for which building permits may be

issued for Residential Units without further subdivision of such property.

"State" means the State of California

"Taxable Property'' means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the beundaries ef CFD No. 23 lA3

Amended Boundaries that are not exempt from the CFD No. 23 lA3 Special Tax pursuant to law or
Section F below.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared to
the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated to
be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation is completed.

'"Trustee" means the entity appointed pursuant to an lndenture to act as the trustee, fiscal agent, or
paying agent or a combination thereof,

"Undeveloped Property'' means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property not classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, or Large

Lot Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO IAND USE CATEGORIES

Each Fiscal Year, using City and County records, City zoning information, and land use development
plans, all Assessor's Parcels within the beunda+ies-eflCFD No. 23 lA3 Amended Boundaries shall be

designated as either Taxable Property or Tax-Exempt Property.

All Taxable Property shall be further classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property,

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property

and shall be subject to the levy of the annual Special Tax determined pursuant to Sections C and D

below.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 8

Page 172

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



C. FACILITIES SPECIAT TAX

A Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No, 23 lA3

according to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment.

Once assigned, the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be equal to or greater than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, unless adjusted by an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation as described

below. The Minimum Facilities Revenue for Fiscal Year 2e2e-202L-2022 is set forth in Attachment B

of this:\menclgel Rate and Method of Apportionment.

On each July 1, commencing on July t, MM, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and

Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the

Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal

Year.

C.1. Future Assessotr's Parcel Changes - Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created

from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the

revised sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the Minimum
Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property, The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development for the Large Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax generated

by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there

will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than
the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall

be Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, untilthe sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equalto the Minimum Facilities Revenue, Further, if the sum of the total current Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Minimum Facilities Revenue, the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates for the Large Lot Property and any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the
Undeveloped Property subdivision shall be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total
current Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment

B of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Undeveloped Property subdivision. The

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo'23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No, 3 - Amended Page 9

Page 173

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable

Property already classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property.

Large lot Property Subdividing into Small lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all

Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. lf the
Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property, the

expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property. The expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any

remaining Large Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned

Development of the Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is greater

than or equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the
Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property,

Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential

Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax is less than

the Minimum Facilities Revenue, and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial

prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to
Section K, the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be Proportionately

increased, on the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax is equal to the Minimum Facilities Revenue, Attachment B of this Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

Rates from the Large Lot Property subdivision. The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property

created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.2. Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Prior to the issuance of the first building permit or the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 231A3,

whichever comes earlier, an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be completed. Following the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to reflect the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rate for all Taxable Property in CFD No, 23 lA3.

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo.23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No, 3 - Amended Page 10

Page 174

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



As partof the EffectiveTax Rate Evaluation, a Price PointStudywill be prepared and estimated
average sales prices will be established for each Residential Property land use category. Using

the estimated average sales price information determined in the Price Point Study, the Total

Estimated Tax Burden and Total Effective Tax Rate will be calculated, using the Developed

Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A, for each Residential

Property land use category. lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to the
Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use category, the Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax Rate shall not be adjusted and will be assigned using the Developed Property

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A. Attachment C of this Amended

Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property

land use category.

lf the Total Effective Tax Rate for any Residential Property land use category exceeds the Total

Maximum Effective Tax Rate, the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate set

forth in Attachment A shall be reduced until the Total Effective Tax Rate is less than or equal to
the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for that Residential Property land use category.

Attachment C of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will be updated to set forth
the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for
each Residential Property land use category,

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

As a result of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, if the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate is less

than or equal to the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a Residential Property land use

category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the Developed Property Maximum
Facilities Special Tax Rate for the applicable Residential Property land use category shall not be

adjusted and the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rate will be assigned using the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set

forth in Attachment B. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment will
be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

lf the calculated Total Effective Tax Rate exceeds the Total Maximum Effective Tax Rate for a

Residential Property land use category used in the Minimum Facilities Revenue calculation, the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate will be

assigned using the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates set forth in Attachment C. Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment will be updated to set forth the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for each Residential Property land use category and the
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue.

C.3. Future Assessor/s Parcel Changes - After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be assigned to all future
Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line adjustment, or merger of one or more

Assessor's Parcels so that the revised sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 11
Page 175

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Facilities Revenue set forth in Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Undeveloped Property Subdividing into Large Lot Property
When Undeveloped Property subdivides into Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of
the Taxable Property was classified as Developed Property. The expected Developed Property

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any Large Lot Property and any

remaining Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development for the Large

Lot Property and remaining Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax generated by all of the Taxable Property is greater than or equal to the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments

to the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the

Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

the Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-

Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates shall be

Proportionately increased, on the Large Lot Property created from the Undeveloped Property

subdivision, until the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue. Further, if the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue, the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates for the Large Lot Property and

any remaining Undeveloped Property created from the Undeveloped Property subdivision shall

be Proportionately increased until the sum of the total current Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated

to reflect any increases to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

from the Undeveloped Property subdivision, The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already

classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Fam i ly/Non-Residential Property.

Large Lot Propefi Subdividing into Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property
When Large Lot Property subdivides into Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax shall be calculated for all Taxable Property as if all of the Taxable Property was classified as

Developed Property. lf the Large Lot Property subdivision also creates Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, the expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property shall be based upon the

Planned Development for the Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property. The expected Developed

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page L2

Page 176

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for any remaining Large

Lot Property and Undeveloped Property shall be based upon the Planned Development of the

Large Lot Property and the Undeveloped Property.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax is greater than or equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum

Facilities Revenue, there will be no further adjustments to the Developed Property, Small Lot

Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for the Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot

Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property created

from the Large Lot Property subdivision.

lf the sum of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities SpecialTax is less than the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue,

and such difference is not eliminated by the full or partial prepayment of the Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax pursuant to Section K, the Developed Property, Small

Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be Proportionately increased, on the

Small Lot Final Map Property, Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property and Permit Ready Multi-
Family/Non-Residential Property created from the Large Lot Property subdivision, until the sum

of the total expected Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

SpecialTax is equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Attachment
D of this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment shall be updated to reflect any increases

to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates from the Large Lot

Property subdivision, The Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property and Permit Ready

Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax Rates shall not be adjusted for any Taxable Property already classified as Developed

Property, Small Lot Final Map Property or Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property
created prior to the Large Lot Property subdivision.

C.4. Method of Apportionment of Facilities Special Tax

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No, 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Facilities Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the

amount of Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities

Special Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

Prior to an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement,

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs,

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo'23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 13

Page 177

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding

only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Facilities Special

Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fifth: lf additionalmonies are needed to satisfythe Facilities SpecialTax Requirement afterthe
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up lo t0O% of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax, The

Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

After an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
First: The Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate
up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement,

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities SpecialTax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for
the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on

Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities

Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after
the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to L00% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Large Lot Property

for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go

Costs.

Fifth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after the
first four steps have been completed, the Facilities SpecialTax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo'23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page t4

Page 178

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Facilities Special Tax, The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Undeveloped Property for the
entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs,

D. SERVICES SPECIAT TAX

A Services Special Tax shall be assigned to all Taxable Property within CFD No, 23 lA3 according to the
Maximum Services Special Tax Rates set forth in Attachment A of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

D.1. Increase in the Maximum Services SpecialTax
On each July 1, commencing on July !,MM, the Maximum Services SpecialTax Rates shall

be increased by the Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax

Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

D.2. Method of Apportionment of Services Special Tax

lf, in any FiscalYear, the Facilities SpecialTax is levied against each Assessor's Parcelof Taxable

Property within CFD No. 23 lA3 and the Facilities Special Tax revenues generated are insufficient
to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement such shortfall shall be deemed a component of the
Services Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year, and proceeds from the levy of the Services

SpecialTax shall first be applied to mitigate the shortfall in the Facilities SpecialTax Requirement

before being used to pay for Authorized Services. The Services Special Tax revenue shall not be

applied to any Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls attributable to Pay As You Go Costs

authorized to be financed by CFD No. 23 lA3.

Using the definitions and procedures described herein, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Services Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the

amount of Services Special Tax equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special

Tax shall be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Second: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after
the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order
to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Third: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on

all Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum
Services Special Tax in order to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: lf additional monies are needed to satisfy the Services Special Tax Requirement after the
three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all

Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfy

the Services Special Tax Requirement.

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo'23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 15

Page 179

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



E. DELINQUENCIES

Notwithstanding the above, under no circumstances will the CFD No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Tax

levied against any Assessor/s Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property, in any

FiscalYear, be increased as a consequence of the delinquency or default in the payment of the CFD

No. 23 lA3 Facilities Special Taxes by the owner or owners of any other Taxable Property by more than

ten percent (10%) above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in

such Fiscal Year had there been no delinquencies or defaults.

F. EXEMPTIONS

F.1. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall classify the following as Exempt Property: Public Property,

Property Owner Association Property, Open Space Property, Assessor's Parcels exempt from the
Special Tax pursuant to Section 53340 of the Act, and Assessor's Parcels with public or utility
easements making impractical their utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in

the easement.

F.2. The Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for Taxable Property which will be transferred or
dedicated to a public agency and will be classified as Public Property shall be prepaid in full by

the seller, pursuant to Section K, prior to the transfer/dedication of such Taxable Property. Until

the Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation or, if applicable, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligation for any such Taxable Property is prepaid, the Taxable

Property shall continue to be subject to the levy of the Facilities Special Tax. An exception to this
may be made if an Assessor's Parcel of Public Property, such as a school site, is relocated to an

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property, in which case the Assessor's Parcel of previously Public

Property becomes Taxable Property and the Assessor's Parcel of previously Taxable Property
becomes Public Property. This trading of an Assessor's Parcel from Taxable Property to Public

Property will be permitted to the extent there is no loss in Maximum Facilities Special Tax

revenue or, if applicable, Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue,

and the transfer is agreed to by the owners of all Assessor's Parcels involved in the transfer and

the City Council.

F.3. lf the use of an Assessor's Parcel changes so that such Assessor's Parcel is no longer eligible to
be classified as one of the uses set forth in Section F.1 above that would make such Assessor's

Parcel eligible to continue to be classified as Exempt Property, such Assessor's Parcel shall cease

to be classified as Exempt Property and shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and subject to
the Special Tax.

G. TRANSFERS

Prior to the issuance of the first series of Bonds within CFD No. 23 lA3, the City may permit the transfer

of Maximum Facilities SpecialTax or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax from
one Assessor's Parcel to another Assessor's Parcel. Before recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision

Map, if a subdivision map is required, the City may permit a transfer if the number of planned

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo.23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page L6

Page 180

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Residential Units, Multi-Family Attached Property Acreage, or Non-Residential Property Acreage is

transferred from one Assessor's Parcel(s) to another Assessor's Parcel(s) in any portion of Large Lot

Property. The City may, in its sole discretion, allow for a transfer of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax

or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax from one Assessor/s Parcel to another
Assessor's Parcel provided such a transfer shall be allowed only if (1) all adjustments are agreed to in
writing by the affected property owners and the City's Finance Director, and (2) there is no reduction
in the sum of the total Maximum Facilities Special Tax or sum of the total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax as a result of the transfer. Should a transfer result in an amendment
to Attachment B or, following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment, the requesting property owner shall bear the costs to affect the

transfer in the CFD No. 23 lA3 records and prepare the required amendments to Attachment B or,

following an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, Attachment D of this Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

H. INTERPRETATIONS

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document that
do not materially affect the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax. ln addition,
the interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.
lnterpretations may be made by the City by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying any

vagueness or ambiguity in this Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

I. REVIEWAPPEATS

The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may establish such procedures, as it deems necessary to undertake
the review of any such appeal. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall interpret this Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax and make determinations relative to the annual

administration of the Special Tax and any property owner appeals, as herein specified.

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator

claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not

later than one calendar year after having paid the Special Taxes that are disputed, and the appellant
must be current in all payments of Special Taxes. ln addition, during the term of the appeal process,

all Special Taxes levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was

made. The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Taxes are in error.
The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD No. 23

lA3 Administrator deems necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

lf the property owner disagrees with the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator's decision relative to the
appeal, the owner may file a written notice with the City Manager appealing the amount of the Special

Tax levied on such Assessor's Parcel. lf following such consultation and action-(-if any" by the City

Managerf- the property owner believes such error still exists, such person may file a written notice

with the City Council appealing the amount of the Special Tax levied on such Assess6r's Parcel. The

decision of the City shall be final and binding to all persons. lf the decision of the CFD No. 23 lA3

Administrator or subsequent decision by the City Manager or City Council requires the Special Taxes

to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, no cash refund shall be made for prior

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo'23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 17

Page 181

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



years' Special Taxes, but an adjustment shall be made to credit future Special Taxes. This procedure

shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition precedent to filing
any legal action by such owner.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No, 23 lA3, may, at the sole discretion of the
City, directly bill the Special Tax, may collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner
as necessary to meet its financial obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually

foreclose on Assessor's Parcels of Taxable Property that are delinquent in the payment of Special

Taxes.

K. PREPAYMENT OF FACITITIES SPECIALTAX

The Facilities Special Tax obligation of an Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property may be prepaid and

permanently satisfied as described herein; provided that there are no delinquent Special Taxes with
respect to such Assessor's Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of an Assessor's Parcel

intending to prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation shall provide the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator
with written notice of intent to prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the CFD No.

23 lA3 Administrator shall notify such owner of the prepayment amount of such Assessor's Parcel.

Prepayment must be made not less than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of
redemption of Bonds, whichever date is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given

to the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for
providing this service.

K.1. Prepayment in Full
As of the proposed date of prepayment, the Prepayment Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Step 1: Determine the current Fiscal Year Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's

Parcel based on the assignment of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in Section C

eb€ve. lf an Effective Tax Rate Evaluation has occurred, determine the current Fiscal Year

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax for the Assessor's Parcel based on

the assignment of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax described in

Section C-+beve, lf the Assessor's Parcel is not already classified as Developed Property, the
Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax)

shall be assigned as though the Assessor's Parcel was already designated as Developed Property.

Step 2: Calculate the annual revenue produced, by annually applying the Facilities Special Tax

Escalation Factor, from the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax) from the date of prepayment through the Facilities Special Tax

Term, except that this final date may be amended by the City no later than the time of the
calculation of the prepayment. lf the final date used in the prepayment calculation is amended

by the City, this amended final date shall apply to any and all prepayment calculations from that
point forward.

CityofFolsom-CommunityFacilitiesDistrictNo'23(FolsomRanch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 18

Page 182

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



Step 3: Calculate the present value of the Assessor's Parcel's annual Maximum Facilities Special

Tax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax) revenue stream determined
in Step 2. The present value shall be calculated using a discount rate that earns a rate of interest

that, when the prepayment is invested in City permitted and available investments, would
produce annual revenues equal to the amounts calculated in Step 2.

lf there are Outstanding Bonds at the time of the Prepayment Amount calculation, the

Prepayment Amount shall be first allocated to the Redemption Amount, lf the Prepayment

Amount is insufficient to fund the Redemption Amount, then the Prepayment Amount shall be

increased to equal the Redemption Amount.

The Redemption Amount is calculated as follows

Step 1: Divide the Maximum Facilities SpecialTax (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax) computed pursuant to Step 1 of Section K.1 by the total Maximum
Facilities Special Taxes (or total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes) for the entire CFD No. 23 lA3, based on the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Taxes) that could be charged in the
current Fiscal Year if all Taxable Property were designated as Developed Property, excluding

any Assessor's Parcels which have prepaid the Maximum Facilities Special Tax (or Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax) obligation (the "Prepayment Quotient").

Step 2: Multiply the Prepayment Quotient by the Outstanding Bonds to compute the amount
of Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed (the "Bond Redemption Amount").

Step 3: Multiply the Bond Redemption Amount by the applicable redemption premium, if any,

on the Outstanding Bonds to be redeemed.

Step 4; Compute the amount needed to pay interest on the Bond Redemption Amount from
the first Bond interest payment date following the current Fiscal Year until the earliest
redemption date for the Outstanding Bonds,

Step 5: Determine that portion of Facilities Special Taxes levied on the Assessor's Parcel in

the current Fiscal Year to satisfy the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, which have not yet
been paid.

Step 6: A reserve fund credit shall equal the lesser of: (a) the expected reduction in the
reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds), if any, associated with the
redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment, or (b) the amount derived

by subtracting the new reserve requirement (as defined in the lndenture for the Bonds) in

effect after the redemption of Outstanding Bonds as a result of the prepayment from the

balance in the reserve fund on the prepayment date, but in no event shall such amount be

less than zero. Such reserve fund credit will not decrease the balance in the reserve fund

below the new reserve requirement.

Step 7: lf any capitalized interest for the Outstanding Bonds will not have been expended at

the time of the first interest and/or principal payment following the current Fiscal Year, a

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No, 3 - Amended Page 19

Page 183

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



capitalized interest credit shall be calculated by multiplying the quotient computed pursuant

to Step 1 by the expected balance in the capitalized interest fund after such first interest
payment.

Step 8: The redemption amount is equal to the sum of the amounts computed pursuant to
Steps 2, 3, 4, and 5, less the amount computed pursuant to Steps 6 and 7 (the "Redemption
Amount"),

lf the Prepayment Amount exceeds the Redemption Amount, then any remaining Prepayment

Amount, after allocating the Redemption Amount, shall be designated as Pay as You Go Costs.

The Prepayment Amount shall include any fees or expenses, including the costs of computation
of the prepayment, the costs to invest the prepayment proceeds, the cost of redeeming Bonds,

and the costs of recording any notices to evidence the prepayment and the redemption (the

"Administrative Fees and Expenses"),

ln addition, the City has the authority to adjust the Prepayment Amount calculated above if a

portion or allof the current propertytax billand the portion attributable to the payment of the
Facilities Special Tax has not been used to make an interest and/or principal payment on the
Bonds.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Facilities Special Tax prepayment shall be allowed unless the
amount of Maximum Facilities SpecialTaxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes), net of any priority administration, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that
may be levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed

prepayment, is at least 1.1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

K.2, Prepayment in Part
The Facilities Special Tax obligation may be partially prepaid in any percentage of the full
Prepayment Amount. The amount of the partial prepayment shall be calculated as in the above

Section K.1.; except that a partial prepayment shall be calculated according to the following
formula:

PP=((PE-AlxFl+R

These terms have the following meaning:

PP = the Partial Prepayment Amount
PE = the Prepayment Amount calculated according to Section K.1 above

A = the Administrative Fees and Expenses calculated according to Section K.1 above

F = the percent by which the owner of the Assessor's Parcel(s) is partially prepaying the
Facilities Special Tax obligation.

The owner of an Assesso/s Parcel who desires to partially prepay the Facilities Special Tax

obligation shall notify the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator of (i) such owner's intent to partially
prepay the Facilities Special Tax obligation, (ii) the amount of partial prepayment expressed in

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 20

Page 184

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



increments equal to percentage of the full Prepayment Amount, and (iii)the company or agency

that will be acting as the escrow agent, if applicable. Partial prepayment must be made not less

than 60 days prior to the next occurring date that notice of redemption of Bonds, whichever date

is earlier, from the proceeds of such prepayment may be given to the Trustee pursuant to the

lndenture. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator may charge a fee for providing this service.

With respect to any Assessor's Parcel that is partially prepaid, the CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator

shall indicate in the records of CFD No. 23 lA3 that there has been a partial prepayment of the

Facilitics Special Tax obligation and that a portion of the Facilities Special Tax obligation equal to
the outstanding percentage (1.00 - F) of the remaining Facilities Special Tax obligation shall

continue to be authorized to be levied on such Assessor's Parcel pursuant to Section C.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no partial prepayment shall be allowed unless the amount of
Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Taxes), net of any priority adminisilation, if any as defined in the Bond documents, that may be

levied on Taxable Property, in each Fiscal Year, both prior to and after the proposed partial
prepayment, is at least 1,1 times the annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds to be paid

from the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes (or Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Taxes) in each Fiscal Year.

L. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX

The Maximum Facilities Special Tax and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax

shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2€3S202t-2022 to the extent necessary to fully satisfy the
Facilities Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied for the Facilities Special Tax Term.

The Maximum Services Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2O2O-2021-2022 and

shall be levied in perpetuity, unless and until such time the City determines that revenues are no

longer needed to pay the Services Special Tax Requirement.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 21

Page 185

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Maximum Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-20221

ResidentialUnit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential
Unit

Residential
Unit

Residential Unit

Residenfial-uni+

ResidentialUnit

+leo

r€e

{€e

4

4

4

Taxed Per

Residential
Unit

100

100

Residential
Unit

3JJls.zo2L=
2022

Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate{21

SrTs

#

E

si.oo

3p0e790

2pee6gq

#

l:5

w
12s109

?pfr&.202t:
2022

Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate(11

S3?gsg

z+t+

3#

3r293s39o

3?886

+7L

31559

3+e3590

Residential
Floor Area

w
32€e-€F99

2r80H+99

22,Qge-
zJsU
2,000 -

2,#199
<4r0eqEaq

- 1.999

>€r6e0

3+eHee

2r8ee-€+99

2M
L799

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

SrlSrg. FinS

SFISFHD+eFin€

S''EISFH€|-Zening

Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zonins

Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zonins
Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zonine

Mf+Zenins

A{f€:enine

I'nfS:eFit+C
Single-Family Detached Property -
${IDSEAEEQ Zoning

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page22

Page 186

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Maximum Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-20221

Residential
Unit

Residential Unit

Acre

Acre

4

Taxed Per

{:slqq

Acre

1,000

1,000

Residential
Lot

Residential
Lot

2{Er$2021:
2022

Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate(21

#

s00

51oo

{:51,00

21t;21t-202L=

2022
Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate(1)

3pee49a

49OO

30,000

11,700

\1,700

sz+ee599

2pee499

Residential
Floor Area
2pee-

2r399No!
Applicable

<4pee

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Single-Family Detached Property -
MLD Zoning

Mf€:enine
MMD Multi-Family Attached
Property
MHD Multi-Family Attached
Property

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property -
SF/SFHD Zonins
Single-Family Detached Property -
MLD Zoning

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 23

Page 187

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Maximum Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Y ear 2O2t-2O221

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

?JJ'2$2O2L=

2022
Maximum
Services

Special Tax
Rate(21

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

S1,ooo

w2$2021:
2022

Maximum
Facilities

Special Tax
Rate(1)

S11,7oo

Si.8,ooo

S18,ooo

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category
Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-
Residential Property

Large Lot Property

Undeveloped Propefi
(1) On each July 1, commencing on July !, MryZ the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special

Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(2) On each July 1, commencing on July L,MryZ the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates shall be increased by an amount equal to the

Services Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Maximum Services Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.
(3) Taxable Preperty designated as Aetive Adult Preperty shall be assigned a separate Maximum Serviees Speeial Tax Rate,

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page24

Page 188

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT B

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Minimum Facilities Revenue
( Fiscal Year 3ei!S2 02l-20221

(1) On each July 1, commencing on July 1,?€Bl_zLthe Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Minimum Facilities
Revenue shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax
Rates and Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(2) As a result of future Assessor's Parcel changes, described in Section C.1, the assigned Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates for
Developed Property may exceed the Developed Property Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates set forth in this table.

(3) The total Minimum Facilities Revenue may be decreased as result of all or a portion of Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations
being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(4) Based upon the Developed Property Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning and
ingwithResidentialFloorAreaoflessthan2pee!l!Qsquarefeet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended

) )o)1

3JJfr&.202t-2022
Minimum Facilities

pgygnug (rXr)

53;€pF'4BU3,oso

4€w-s20
0

0

0

s3rss2rsee5zil1q

wL&.2021-2022
Developed Property
Maximum Facilities
SPeciallsx P61s(0lzl

se*eess0

ry
30,000

lL,700

LL,7OO

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres

1#751
8t168

0.0

0.0

0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(+)

Single-Family Detached Property- MLD Zonings

M M D M ulti-Family Attached Property

M H D Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residential Property

Total Minimum Facilities Revenue

Page 25
Page 189

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fiscal Year 3ei!$2 O2l-2O221

Taxed Per

ResidentialUnit

*esidentialuit

Residen#af+rnit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

ResidentialUnit

R€€id€n+iellJhi+

ResidentialUnit

Residential Unit

Residential Unit

ResidentialUnit

Acre

Acre

w2o..2021-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
Speciall6a 331s(rxzl

_s8e0
____-790

_590

-_-590
-----_____490

_30.000

-tL.7OO

(

Residential
Floor Area

22,Qgg-
?#99200

2,000-2,#199
4pee1.80q:

1,.999

2M1,799
2pes-2F99No!

Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

w
3+W

w
3+ee-+sse
2r8ee-3+99

<4N

Land Use Category

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - S/{D$FAEI-IQ Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

M M D Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Propefi

ing

ing

in€

in€

ing

ing

ins

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page26

Page 190

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities SpecialTax Rates

( Fisca I Yea r 3S!e-2 O2t-2O221

Taxed Per

Acre

Residential Lot

Residential Lot

?JJt4..202t-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 1sa P31g(rxz)

_7t.7OO

-s5eq
-------------490

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoning

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page27

Page 191

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT C

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates

( Fisca I Yea r 2e2$2 O2t-2O221

(1) Effective Tax Rate Evaluatio n Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates will be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.
(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates shall be increased by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 28

Taxed Per

Acre

Acre

Acre

w2$2021-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities
SPecial 1a( P61g(rxz)

s_$u-zoo

L-S1E 00A

s_s$paq

Residential
Floor Area

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Land Use Category

Permit Ready M ulti-Family/Non-Residential Property

Large Lot Propefi

Undeveloped Property

Page 192

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT D

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area No. 3
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue

( Fisca I Yea r 2e2$2 O2l-2O221

(1) Planned Number of Residential Units/A6rqs, Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate and Effective
Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue to be inserted following the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation.

(2) On each July 1, commencing in the Fiscal Year after the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, the Developed Propefi Effective Tax Rate
Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue shall be increased by the
Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor of the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates and
Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

(3) As a result of future Assessot's Parcel changes, described in Section C.3, the assigned Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates may exceed the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rates
set forth in this table.

(4) Thetotal EffectiveTaxRateEvaluationMinimumFacilitiesRevenuemaybedecreasedasresultofall oraportionofEffectiveTaxRateEvaluation
Maximum Facilities Special Tax obligations being prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K.

(5) Based upon the Developed Property Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax Rate for Single-Family Detached property -sF/sFHDzoningithResidentialFloorAreaoflessthan2peef9!squarefeet.

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area No. 3 - Amended Page 29

3JJiz&.202t-2022
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum Facilities

Pgygllgg {rX2Xll

-s44J9q
---------8232O

_0
_0
_0

$-$525.119

21Er4t-2021-2022

Developed Property
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum
Facilities Special Tax

p61g{rXzXrl

-Ssea
-----------490

_30,000
_LI,7OO
_11.700

Planned Number
of Residential
Units / Acres(l)

-_-_751

-168

____{.0
_0.0
_0.0

Land Use Category

Developed Propefi:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning(s)

Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoninge

MMD Multi-Family Attached Property

MHD Multi-Family Attached Property

Non-Residentia I Property

Total Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities
Revenue

Page 193

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT E

Citv of Folsom
CommuniU Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranchl

lryrprovement Area No. 3
Amended Boundaries

eiET r oF r

a

+
ff

ffirfuDffi.€

sq@ruffiffi.ffi

@
l!@ ffiffitffi

-

FGitir!
!ru-

nV74 ffir

gclfi
srj-{sq-e$

City of Folsom - Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
lmprovement Area !!o. 3 - Amended Page 30

Page 194

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



ATTACHMENT 6

Page 195

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



MAP OF BOUNDARIES OF CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNIry FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO- 7

CITY OF FOLSOM . COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO . STATE OF CALIFORNIA

SHEET 1 OF 1

+
o 20 .sD {iD

Sc}tE: l'=50o'

F|ED tN ftE OFFTG OF nE 4EM OF nE Ctry OF FOSM, fttS _ DAy OF _
m1.

-U 
PmC&UNE

-

crw oF FoLsoM
sacwEMo cou!ry, wtFoNh

072-006o-wx

(072-0060- 1 0J)

I EffiW $AE B- NE WN W SHOWNG PROGEO BOUNDffiIES OF HE CIT OF FOLW
oMMUNfr tACtm:S Ormfr NO. 23 (FOLGM NCH) WpTWNT ffi rc. 7. Cry OF
FINM, @UNry OF $WffO, SAE OF ruFOilII, WN PMOVED W NE Ory MCIT OF
THE Cn G FOHUAT A MEfltG nEreOF, Hru d nE _ My OF 

-- 

@1, By
trsresLWoN NO.

reffiNCE IS HE€Y ME TO ruT GffiAN W EffiM@'W OF MOrcSED rcWDffiIES
crw oF FffioM cowuNfi FAcLmEs DFnET No 3 (FO[$M NCH). W OF FOSil, mUW
OF $WEMO, ST^E OF dlFONh', FIEO BE An UY OF mL AA, N ffi 1S OF ffi
OF SEsff Ng WMUNR FrcIMS DIffifrS AT PAGE Z IN ftE OFEG OF ffE @Uffi
rcMDER FORfrE @WtrsMryO, SAEOF @IFORIA WICHfrIS WSEM.

clweEM
crryoF FoLsoM
$cwtro cou!ry.4tFomA

WHITEROCK ROAD
FILEOBIS............'........_DAYOF .MI,ATNEH@RS Oq6K .M.tNB@K_trm'soFs-ffi MUNIfl FAclmsDts-wTpAGE-tN
nE oFFre oF ffE o)uw re@mER oF ilE c@w oF smEffio, srAE oF ruFEffiE-

LEGEND

vv777V

PROSED CFD rcUNDR

TOT LINES

MmovEMEmmNo.T

couNwfficoroER
COUNry OF SACWEMO. ilIFONA

nmKil&smsG ffiI re
rcffi&hbr$Rdqm FqDjla 7g.TOI

Page 196

11/09/2021 Item No.13.



i {.-S.E , i1i :1 ! i\ il

Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: nl9l202r

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10744 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Fiber Network Installation Agreement
with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation of a Fiber
Optic Network in the City of Folsom

F'ROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10744 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Fiber Network
Installation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation of a Fiber Optic
Network in the City of Folsom.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

SiFi Networks Folsom LLC (SiFi) is aprivate developer who specializes in Open Access fiber
optic networks. SiFi approached City staff earlier this year to propose the installation of a
citywide Open Access fiber optic network that they will privately finance and construct. SiFi
will wholesale network access to Internet Service Providers (ISPs) who will compete to
provide gigabit speed internet services to residents, businesses, institutions and municipal
facilities. The Open Access network is intended to encourage market competition, enable
Smart City technological advancements, support healthcare, education, transportation
agencies, government organizations, local businesses and residential neighborhoods, including
disadvantaged communities, This will enhance Folsom's competitive advantage when trying
to retain or attract new businesses.

The SiFi network will not replace existing ISPs that currently provide service in Folsom (most
notably Xfinity and AT&T); however, those existing ISPs may not currently provide all homes
and businesses with access to a fiber optic network that allows for symmetrical high-speed

1

Page 197

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



intemet access. Upon the Fiber Network Installation Agreement being approved by Council,
SiFi will be allowed access to the public right-of-way for the purpose of installing a fiber optic
network past every premise in the City. The fiber optic network would be constructed using
micro-trenching construction and blown micro-duct techniques and would include 35 above-
ground cabinets which would be sited in such a way as to minimize the visual impacts to the
community.

Scott Bradshaw, President of SiFi , will make a presentation to familiarize City Council with
their network offering, which includes their construction methods, and potential benefits to the
City of Folsom.

If approved, SiFi and the City will enter into a Fiber Networks Installation Agreement, in a
form acceptable to the City Attomey. Per the terms of the agreement, SiFi is expected to initiate
fiber network installation with the next 24 months and complete the project within 48 months.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council is the sole authority for entering into agreements between the City and any
other party.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Per the agreemento SiFi will install the fiber optic network at no cost to the City. SiFi also
agrees to pay all City plan check fees, permit fees, inspection fees and any other applicable
fees.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This program is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10744 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Fiber Network Installation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the
Installation of a Fiber Optic Network in the City of Folsom

2. Fiber Networks Installation Agreement between SiFi Networks Folsom LLC and City
of Folsom

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

2

Page 198

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



Attachment I

Page 199

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. 10744

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A F'IBER
NETWORK INSTALLATION AGREEMENT WITH SIF'I NETWORKS F'OLSOM LLC

FOR THE INSTALLATION OF'A FIBER OPTIC NETWORK IN THE CITY OF
FOLSOM

WHEREAS, SiFi Networks Folsom LLC desires to install a fully privately funded fiber
optic network in the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom seeks, without City or public funds, to enable the

deployment of fiber optic infrastructure for broadband for the City's residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, the provision of broadband to the City's residents and businesses will
stimulate economic development, encourage market competition, enable Smart City technological

advancements, and support healthcare, education, transportation, and government; and

WHEREAS, the fiber optic network will also provide opportunities for additional Smart

City services, including connected buildings, traffic signals and other City facilities; and

WHEREAS, if approved, the City would grant SiFi Networks Folsom LLC a license and

encroachment permit to access the public right-of-way for the purpose of installing the fiber optic
network; and

WHEREAS, the fiber network installation agreement will be in a form acceptable to the

City Attomey:

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a Fiber Network Installation Agreement with SiFi
Networks Folsom LLC for the installation of a fiber optic network in the City of Folsom.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of November,202l, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10744
Page I ofl Page 200

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



Attachment 2

Page 201

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



FIBER RKS INSTALLATION EMENT

This Fiber Networks Installation Agreement is made this _ day of November,202l
("Effective Date") as it may be extended or amended, the "Agreement"), between the City of
Folsom, Califomia, a municipal corporation (the "City") and SiFi Networks Folsom LLC, a

Delaware limited liability company ("SiFi Networks" or ooSiFi") (each sometimes referred to as

a*Pzrty" and collectively referred to as the "Parties").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, SiFi Networks owns the rights to the FOCUS (as defined below)
proprietary fiber optic cable system technology; and

WHEREAS, SiFi Networks desires to install a fully privately funded fiber optic network
utilizing FOCUS in the City; and

WHEREAS, SiFi Networks has requested that the City grant a license and an

encroachment permit to access and use the City's Public Right-of-Way ("Public Way", as

defined below) for purposes of installing the FON (as defined below) in the City; and

WHEREAS, City seeks, without City or public funds, to enable the deployment of fiber
optic infrastructure for broadband for the City's residents and businesses, in order to stimulate

economic development, to encourage market competition, to enable Smart City technological
advancements, and to support healthcare, education, transportation agencies, government

organizations, local business, and residential neighborhoods;

WHEREAS, the City is agreeable, without City or public funding, to grant to SiFi
Networks a license and an encroachment permit to access and use the Public Way for SiFi
Networks in order to install and operate the FON including a point of presence and/or a series of
distributive cabinets and other equipment and materials in connection with the installation of the

FON, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein;

WHEREAS, the FON will provide opportunities for Smart City additional services,

including but not limited to connecting buildings, traffic lights, and other City owned locations, to

the City subject to a separate written mutual agreement between the Parties; and

NOW' THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations of the Parties, and

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged,

the Parties covenant and agree as follows:

SECTION 1

1. Definition of Terms.

1.1 Terms. For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms, phrases,

words, and abbreviations shall have the meanings ascribed to them below.

Page 202

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



ooAccess" means facilitation of City permitted encroachments for
specified areas within the Public Way.

"Boundary" means the legal boundaries of the City as of the Effective
Date, and any additions or subtractions to the City legal boundaries, by
annexation or other legal means.

ooCabinets" means above ground enclosures placed within the Public Way
for the protection of active and passive equipment for the provision of Service

throughout the System and as further described in Exhibit A.

"Chambers" means underground enclosures placed within the Public
Way facilitating access to the active and passive equipment for the provision of
Service throughout the System.

ooCommencement Date" means the date that Substantial Completion, as

that term is defined herein, of the System has been achieved.

"Construction" means breaking ground for the installation of the System.

'oConstruction Contractor" or "Contractor" means the construction

company(ies) performing the physical work for or on behalf of SiFi Networks.

ooDrop" means the fiber optic cable run from the edge of the Public Way
to the Premises Wall.

"Facility" means the secure space/s that the City agrees to make available

to SiFi Networks during the Term for the installation of Shelters and Cabinets.

"FOCUS" means SiFi Networks' trademarked FOCUSTM system

including the patented Wastewater Fiber Technology, know-how and other
proprietary rights, comprising, among other things a combination of blown fiber,
aerial, wastewater and other conventional techniques to enable multi gigabit
technologies.

"FON" means SiFi Networks' fiber optic network built by utilizing a

combination of blown fiber, aerial, wastewater and/or other conventional
techniques and may also include using the FOCUSTM design, as well as

electronics to enable multi gigabit technologies.

ooHazardous Materials" means (i) any hazardous or toxic wastes,

substances, or materials, and any other pollutants or contaminants, which are

regulated by any applicable local, state or federal laws, including, but not limited
to 33 U.S.C. Section l25l et seq.,42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq.,42 U.S.C.

Section 9601 et seq.,42 U.S.C. Section 7401 et seq.,42 U.S.C. 960 et seq., and

the California Health and Safety Code Section 25100 et seq., and25300 et seq.,

the California Water Code, Section 13020 et seq., or any successor(s) thereto: (ii)

Page2 of 32

Page 203

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



petroleum; (iii) asbestos; (iv) flammable explosives; (v) polychlorinated
biphenyls; and (radioactive materials.

'oHome" means a residential single-family dwelling, or aresidential single

dwelling unit located within a Multiple Dwelling Unit, located within the

Boundary.

"Multiple Dwelling Unit" means an apartment building or other building
containing more than one dwelling unit located within the Boundary.

(Microtrenchingtt means the process of cutting a trench with a dry cut

machine and reinstated with cementitious slurry fill as specified in Exhibit A.

"Pass" or ooPasses" means the duct or Chamber as parts of the System

has reached to the curbside of a residential Premises, or the engineered point at or
neat acommercial Premises from which a Drop can be connected.

ooPerson" means any natural person or any association, firm, partnership,
joint venture, corporation, limited liability company, or other legally recognized

entity, whether for profit or not for profit, but shall not mean the City or SiFi
Networks.

"Premises" means a Home, Multiple Dwelling Unit, office or other

building located within the Boundary.

o'Premises Wall" means the exterior of an outside wall of a Premises to

which the fiber optic cable can be terminated.

"Primary Premises" means the Premises within the Boundary as of the

Effective Date but excluding any Premises which SiFi cannot connect (i) because

of a lack of a right to access and use the Public Way due to the City not
possessing the right, title, interest or authority to permit SiFi to use and occupy

the Public Way in order for SiFi to access such Premises, or (ii) because SiFi lack
of a right to access any non-City owned property within the Boundary in order to
access such Premises, or (iii) if there would be an incremental material cost to

connect such Premises would be at least ten percent (10%) higher than the

average cost to connect accessible by SiFi Primary Premises within the Boundary;
provided that, (1) at least ninety-five percent (95%) of Premises within the

Boundary are Passed, and (2) no Premises are excluded for any other reasons

other than technical or cost reasons as described herein, or (iv) where such

Premises already have a pre-existing fiber service available to them and do not
desire SiFi to connect such Premises. SiFi shall not be required or obligated to
make the System available to such Primary Premises described in (i) through (iv)
in this definition and Substantial Completion determination shall not be impacted

as a result. If any Premises are excluded under subsection (iii) above, City will
have the option to request SiFi meet and confer regarding potential solutions,

including the use of any City owned or controlled conduit, duct or other similar

Page 3 of32

Page 204

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



facility, to Pass such Premises, which solutions would have to be mutually agreed

in good faith and in writing between the Parties. "Public'Way" shall mean City-
owned public right-of-way, including the surface of, and the space above and

below, existing now or in the future City owned land. Public Way includes City-
owned public street, road, highway, parkway, driveway, freeway, lane, path,

court, sidewalk, bridge, alley, boulevard, traffic signals, lamp post, public way, or
other public right of way or easement including public utility easements dedicated

utility strips, located thereon now or hereafter held by, granted or dedicated to or
under the jurisdiction of the City within the Boundary. For the avoidance of
doubt, the term "Public Way" shall also mean any easement now or hereafter held

by the City within the Boundary for the purpose of public travel, or for utility
service use.

ooRelease" when used with respect to Hazardous Material means any

actual or imminent spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying,
discharging, injecting, escaping,leaching, dumping, or disposing into or inside
any existing improvements or any improvements constructed hereunder, including
the System.

"Service" means internet, voice, data, and video service or any

combination thereof, provided by the City or another Service Provider over the

System.

"service Providers" means any entity, which enters into a contract with
SiFi Networks to provide Services over the System.

ooshelter" means the above ground facility housing System equipment as

further described in Section 4.2 andin Exhibit A hereto.

"subscribe" means an agreement to receive from a Service Provider.

"subscriber" means any Person (which for purposes of this definition
shall include the City) that has entered into an agreement to receive or otherwise
lawfully receives Service.

"substantial Completion" means the date on which, the System has been

installed such that it Passes the addresses of each of the Primary Premises and the
System is capable of providing Service to each such Primary Premises (but for the
lack of a Drop) or four (4) years post Construction being commenced, whichever
event occurs first; provided, however, in the event that Substantial Completion is
deemed to have occurred due to the expiration of four (4) years post Construction
being commenced, SiFi shall use commercially reasonable efforts to complete,
subject to the conditions in the proviso above, such construction as is necessary to
provide service to all Primary Premises within a cornmercially reasonable time.

o'System" means all parts of the FON system under and above ground in
the City that is designed to support the delivery of Service to Subscribers,

Page 4 of32

Page 205

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



including the fiber optic cable and its component parts and appurtenances, and the

other cables, wires, components, facilities, cabinets, ducts, conduits, connectors,

vaults, Chambers, telecom manholes, telecom manhole covers, pedestals,

appliances, splitters, attachments, and other property, equipment, components,

materials, apparatus and appurtenances to the FON system.

SECTION 2

2. Grant of License.

2.1 Grant of Temporarv and Non-Exclusive License.

2.1.1 License to Use Citv Public Wav. This Agreement sets forth the

basic terms and conditions upon which SiFi is hereby granted a non-exclusive no

cost, except for payment of applicable City fees, license, during the Term, to install,
operate and maintain the System in the Public Way. The particular terms and

location of each portion of the System shall be specified in the applicable permit
approved by the City as described in Section 3.2 Permits and General Obligations.
Provided SiFi Networks' is not in breach of this Agreement and the applicable
permits, City grants to SiFi Networks a non-explusive no cost license, during the
Term, to erect, install, construct, repair, replace, reconstruct, maintain, operate or
retain in, on, over, under, upon, across, or along any Public Way, the System,

within the Boundary, and all extensions and additions thereto. SiFi Networks shall

have the right to determine the final engineering design and location of all
equipment and other parts of the System, subject to the City's prior written approval
for their placement. Both Parties agree to cooperate during the design and

permitting process and SiFi Networks must first disclose all engineering designs to

the City for permit approval. Notwithstanding the foregoing, installation of the

System and access to and use of the Public Way is subject to the applicable permit
for a specific location. It is understood that SiFi's license to place the System is

non-exclusive, except for the Facilities, but that upon issuance of the applicable
permit, SiFi's use of the area specified therein shall not be unreasonably interfered
by the City or its contractors. Further, in the event of a material breach of this
Agreement by SiFi, SiFi's license granted under this Agreement and the particular
permit are revocable only if SiFi Networks fails to cure any alleged breach as

described in Section 8.1, prior to the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement.

2.1.2 Abandonment of the System upon Termination of Agreement.
Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, SiFi Networks shall have the

right, but not the obligation, to remove from or abandon in place all or any part of
the System in the Public Way. Any part of the System abandoned by SiFi
Networks as described in this Agreement shall become the property of the City.
Within ninety (90) days prior to the expiration or termination of this Agreement,

SiFi must notiff the City in writing of its intent not to abandon the System. Failure

to provide such written notice within the time specified shall be deemed

abandonment upon the expiration or termination of the Agreement.

Page 5 of32

Page 206

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



2.2 Term of Asreement. This Agreement shall become effective upon the
execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Parties (the "Effective Date").
The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and run until
midnight on the date that is thirty (30) years after the Commencement Date (the

"Initial Term"). No later than one year prior to the expiration of the Term, SiFi
may submit a request in writing that the City approve renewing this Agreement for
an additional term of fifteen (15) years, commencing on the thirtieth (30th)
anniversary of the Commencement Date ("Renewal Terms," and, collectively with
the Initial Term, the ooTerm"), which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
If SiFi Networks elects to not renew this Agreement the System will be deemed
abandoned and shall become the property of the City.

2.3 License to City-owned property

(i) City hereby grants, at no additional charge, to SiFi, and its licensees,
successors, lessees, transferees, and assigns, a revocable non-exclusive license
during the Term of the Agreement ("License') to enter and occupy portions of the
City-owned property in or outside of the Public Way for up to two (2) specific
locations as further described in Section 4.2 and from the System in the Public
Way to each of the Facilities, which locations will be mutually agreed upon in
writing and in good faith between the City and Licensee (the "License Area"), for
the purposes of erecting, installing, constructing, operating, repairing, replacing,
reconstructing, removing, maintaining, using and retaining said System,
including, without limitation, wires, cables, ducts, conduits, connectors, vaults,
manholes, manhole covers, fencing, pedestals, appliances, splitters, attachments,
and other property, equipment, components, materials, apparatus and
appurtenances to the System and the Facilities (the "Improvements"). This
License is subject to easements, covenants, conditions, and regulations in
existence as of the date hereof.

(ii) Subject to easements, covenants, conditions, and regulations in existence as of
the date hereof, SiFi shall be permitted to use microtrenching for fiber optic
cables and make such alterations to the License Area as approved, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned, by the City to erect,
install, construct, repair, replace, reconstruct, remove, maintain, operate, and use,

the System including, without limitation, the Improvements, and adding and
moving electrical lines and other utilities and apparatus. SiFi shall be responsible
for all costs incurred in the alterations. All construction, installation, maintenance
and repair of the License Area shall be conducted so as to interfere as little as

practicable with City's use and operation of the Public Way. The installation of
the System and alterations by SiFi in the License Area shall be done in a good and
workmanlike manner by competent personnel or contractors, and except for the
specifications and construction techniques approved in this Agreement, in
conformity with all applicable permits, licenses, ordinances, laws and regulations,
free from any liens for labor or materials, and subject to final inspection and
approval by the City. Any damage to the License Area caused by reason of the

Page 6 of32

Page 207

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



exercise of SiFi's rights hereunder shall be conected within a reasonable time by
SiFi at its sole cost and expense.

(iii) SiFi will maintain the Improvements in accordance with this Agreement.

(iv) SiFi shall not install or construct any other structures or improvements other

than the Improvements and associated appurtenances described herein.

(v) The Improvements installed within the License Area by SiFi shall be made at

no expense to City. SiFi shall be responsible, and assume all costs, for any

relocation or protection of any part of the System in the event the relocation or
protection of the System is necessary due to changes in any Public Way at any

time during the term of this Agreement.

(vi) Other than SiFi's obligation to repair any damage SiFi or SiFi's contractors

cause to the City's Public Way at its sole cost and expense, City, at its sole cost,

shall operate, maintain and repair the Public Way so as to avoid damage or
minimize adversely affecting the System and the License Area. City shall not
make any modifications to, or alter, the License Area without prior written notice

to SiFi.

(vii) City, its agents, or assigns, or any utility company or City franchisee may at

any time, enter upon the areas covered by this Agreement for the purpose of
installing, maintaining, relocating, altering, enlarging, repairing, or inspecting any

utility, facility, or public work thereon. City will not be liable to SiFi for any

damages to the System, Improvements and Facilities.

(viii) SiFi shall restore damaged or disturbed surfaces or underground utilities at

or adjacent to the License Area to substantially the same as the original condition.
Restoration shall be carried out immediately after construction. Any damage not
repaired to the satisfaction of the City shall be a cause to suspend any operations

within the City's limits by the party causing the damage until the repairs are

satisfactory to the City.

(ix) The System and all of its parts and components which are installed and

constructed by SiFi in the License Area shall at all times be and remain the
property of SiFi.

(x) Except for the Facilities, City shall not unreasonably impede, disturb, interfere

with, or restrict, SiFi's access to, use and possession of, the License Area.

(xi) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, whenever possible SiFi shall

not install any Improvement, when running parallel, within 3 feet from existing
underground utilities, and further shall not install any Improvement above or on

top of water of sewer pipelines except with express written authorization by the

Environmental and Water Resources Department of the City.

PageT of32

Page 208

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



(xii) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, in the event SiFi or its
contractor damages water or sewer infrastructure, SiFi shall immediately notifr
the City and shall further make the repair, or cause to be repaired, the damaged

infrastructure within 4 hours. At the City's sole and completion discretion, City
may permit SiFi to pay City to make the necessary repairs at SiFi's sole cost and

expense.

2.4 (xi) The terms, conditions and rights contained herein shall be covenants

running with the land and shall remain in effect for as long as the Agreement
remains in effect. Within thirty days after termination of this Agreement, SiFi shall
remove any abandoned or unused Improvements from the Public Way. The terms
and conditions contained herein shall bind, inure to the benefit of, and be

enforceable by, City and SiFi, and their respective successors and assigns
(including, without limitation, any and all successors to City in title to all or any

portion of the Public Way).

2.4 Citv Accommodation. SiFi Networks acknowledges that this Agreement is

entered into by the City to accommodate SiFi Network's request, that the City
would not have entered into this Agreement had it been exposed to liability for
damages from SiFi Networks, and that therefore and notwithstanding any provision
to the contrary, SiFi Networks hereby waives any and all claims for damages

against the City and its officers, agents and employees for breach of this
Agreement. SiFi Networks further acknowledges that damages are not a remedy
under this Agreement, and therefore and notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary, SiFi Networks waives all claims for damages against the City and its
officers, agents and employees in the event that this Agreement or any other permit
or land use entitlement is: (1) not approved by the City or (2) is approved by the

City but with new changes, amendments, conditions or deletions to which SiFi
Networks is opposed.

2.5 Exclusivity. Until after the first anniversary of the Effective Date, the
City shall not solicit any third party regarding any competing fiber optic cable

system within the City's Boundary, subject to any obligation or requirements
imposed upon the City in its capacity as a land use authority under federal or state

law or regulation.

2.6 Efficient Permitting Process.

2.6.1 During the Term, the City shall endeavor to provide expedited,
diligent review of all applications for permits by SiFi andlor its contractors, to the
extent reasonably possible and to the extent permits are necessary, including permits

or other necessary items for construction work on the System within the Public Way.
The City acknowledges and agrees that expeditiousness in connection with permitting,
licensing, and approval of the System is important to SiFi Networks' performance

under this Agreement. Accordingly, the City agrees to endeavor to the process and

Page 8 of32

Page 209

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



timeframes below in connection with all applications for permits by SiFi Networks
and/or its contractors in connection with this Agreement:

(D If possible, the City shall within two (2) business days of
submittal by SiFi Networks and/or its contractors of an application or
other request for a permit in connection with this Agreement provide
written acknowledgment to SiFi Networks and/or its contractor confirming
receipt of such submittal; and

(ii) If possible, the City shall within seven (7) business days of
submittal by SiFi Networks andlor its contractors of an application or
other request for a permit in connection with this Agreement acknowledge
in writing that such application is properly submitted and complete, or in
the event such application is not properly submitted and complete, provide
SiFi Networks and/or its contractors with a detailed written explanation of
any deficiencies. Upon curing any such deficiencies, the City shall
undertake an expedited review ofthe application or other request for
permit by SiFi Networks andlor its contractors in order to comply with this
Section.

(iii) If possible, the City shall within fifteen (15) calendar days

of submittal by SiFi Networks andlor its contractors of an application or
other request for a permit in connection with this Agreement provide
written notification of initial review and provide in writing to SiFi
Networks and/or its contractors a detailed explanation of any additional
information needed for the City to complete its review process. In the

event no additional information is needed, the City shall so notiff SiFi
Networks and/or its contractors in writing.

(iv) If possible, the City shall within twenty-one (21) calendar
days of submittal by SiFi Networks andlor its contractors of an application
or other request for a permit in connection with this Agreement provide
final approval and issue any necessary approval or permits to SiFi
Networks and/or its contractors.

(v) The aforementioned timelines are subject to extension by
City in the event information or document reasonably necessary or
required to process the requested permit is not submitted by SiFi Networks
or its contractors in a timely manner.

2.6.2 Invoices and Payments. SiFi agrees to pay all City permit
review and processing fees (as set and adjusted by the City from time to time)
associated with SiFi's work under and subject to this Agreement, including but
are not limited to plan check fees, encroachment permit fees, inspection fees,

and any other applicable fees for SiFi's work.

Page 9 of32

Page 210

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



2.6.3 Permit applications shall be submitted by SiFi Networks in
substantially the form required by the City. The engineering details provided
in Exhibit A are a sample of typical details thatmay or may not change during
the final engineering design process.

2.6.4 No permit, license, or other land use approval of any other
approval requested by or required from SiFi Networks shall be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed by the City. Furtherrnore, SiFi Networks shall
have no liability for any of its obligations hereunder (except for payment of City
fees), if the necessary permits, licenses or approvals are not issued by the City.
City retains all rights to deny applications not meeting applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

2.7 Other City charges. In recognition of the public benefit being
served in encouraging and facilitating the construction of the fully privately funded
SiFi's System and other valuable consideration and benefits to City and the public
gained from and due to the System, City agrees that SiFi shall not have to pay for
use of the Public Way. Except as expressly set forth herein, each Party shall bear
and be responsible for all of its own costs, fees and expenses incurred in executing
and performing this Agreement. The City agrees that this Agreement shall not
require SiFi Networks to comply with or otherwise be subject to any obligations or
liabilities as a grantee of a franchise under the City's municipal code, ordinances or
similar laws. The City agrees that City bonding and insurance requirements will be
satisfied by bonds and insurance coverage provided as part of the encroachment
permit application and supplied by the Construction Contractor (as principal)
performing the construction of the System. Such bonds and insurance
documentation to be supplied prior to the start of Construction. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the provisions of this Section
2.6 wrll survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

2.7 Relocation.Modification.orAlternations.Excludingrelocations
requested by the City pursuant to this Agreement and repairs or maintenance to the
System, SiFi may not relocate, materially modi$r, or materially alter the System
components any time after issuance of the permit(s) for the System, except upon
City's written approval which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, delayed,
or conditioned.

SECTION 3

3. The Svstem.

3.1 Svstem Description. SiFi Networks agrees to install the System
within the Boundary using the Public Way, and further agrees to install, subject to a
separate written agreement, the System to link at substantially below market rates

City buildings and facilities including but not limited to traffic signals and
municipal buildings within 4 years of commencement of Construction. The City
will provide SiFi Networks a comprehensive list of locations and prioritization.

Page 10 of32

Page 211

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



The System shall use fiber optic cable emanating from the Shelter to the applicable

Cabinet in the Public Way and then to the private Premises Wall for each applicable

Primary Premise. The City acknowledges and agrees that SiFi Networks has the

right to install the System within the Boundary using the Public Way in order to

make the delivery of Service over the System available to all Premises within the

Boundary. The Parties acknowledge and agree that there is no agreed design or

configuration of the actual location of the System within the Public Way at this time

and that SiFi Networks shall submit such designs specification, plan and associated

details to the City for approval when ready. The City will work with SiFi Networks

to approve the physical location of the fiber optic cable and other equipment and

components of the System in, on, over, under, upon, across, or along the Public

Way and from the Public Way to the Premises Wall.

3.2 Permits and General Oblisations. SiFi is deemed to have approval

to locate the System within the Boundary, subject to applicable permits including

but not limited to encroachments, licenses, or other forms of plan review and

approval or authorization necessary to construct, install, operate, maintain, replace,

reconstruct, or repair the System, or any part thereof, during the term of this
Agreement and any extensions. Nothing herein entitles SiFi Networks to access or
encroach upon private property without permission of the property owners. SiFi
Networks shall provide plans to the City for City approval for the issuance of
permits to construct the System. Construction and installation of the System shall be

performed in a safe manner using materials of good and durable quality. Other than

for the construction techniques agreed in Section 4.1 and described in Exhibit A, all
permits shall be subject to the provisions set forth in the City's latest Encroachment

Permit and Construction Specifications listed at

https://www.folsom.ca.us/community/engineering/specs.asp and unless otherwise

stated in this document. Subject to compliance with the City's Noise Control
Ordinance listed at

olsomO84

standard work hours will be daily from Tamto 7pm local time unless City has different

requirements which must be provided to SiFi Networks in advance. All transmission

and distribution structures and equipment installed by SiFi Networks for use in the

System in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be

located so as to minimize interference with the proper use of the Public Way and

the rights of property owners who own property that adjoin any such Public Way.

SiFi Networks shall provide, or cause to be provided by its contractors, all
necessary traffic control measures and warning signage for the protection of
pedestrian and vehicular traffic. No installation in the City's Sewer and storm

drainage system will be permitted. SiFi Networks will adhere to all City building
code requirements; provided, however in the event of an inconsistency or conflict
between the permits granted to SiFi Networks pursuant to this Agreement and the

most current City building code provision, the City building code provision shall

control other than for (i) the construction techniques agreed in Section 4.1 and

described in Exhibit A, and (ii) previously constructed portions of the System.

Page 11 of32
Page 212

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



SECTION 4

4. Construction and Facilities.

4.1 Construction of the Svstem. SiFi Networks will use commercially

reasonable efforts to commence Construction on or before a date that is twenty-four
(24) months after the Effective Date (the "Construction Commencement
Deadline"); provided however, in the event of a Force Majeure Event, the

Construction Commencement Deadline shall be extended by the time impact

resulting from the Force Majeure Event. In addition, SiFi Networks will use

commercially reasonable efforts to complete construction of the System on or

before a date that is forty eight (48) months after the Construction Commencement

Deadline (the "Construction Completion Deadline"); provided however, in the

event of a Force Majeure Event, the Construction Completion Deadline shall be

extended by the time impact resulting from the Force Majeure Event. The timeline

shall also be extended due to and for the length of any delay by the City in
performing its obligations hereunder or issuing the permits, licenses and approvals

to SiFi or its contractors. Both Parties recognize and agree that SiFi Networks

cannot guarantee the Construction Commencement Deadline or the Construction

Completion Deadline as many elements are outside of its control. SiFi Networks

will keep the City informed of the progress of its schedule at reasonable intervals.

SiFi agrees it shall make reasonable efforts to collaborate and coordinate with City
in the installation of the System ahead of planned asphalt overlay projects by City.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, SiFi Networks agrees that it will
only use slot cut micro-trenching as set forth in the specifications set forth in
Exhibit A to this Agreement for all work in the City's Public Way. City approves

only the above referenced construction method and agrees to work cooperatively

with SiFi Networks in reviewing all other potential construction methods; however,

the City retains all rights to disapprove at the City's sole and complete discretion
any other construction method it does not approve.

4.1.2 SiFi shall be solely responsible for all repairs, maintenance,

and adjustments, and damages, caused by SiFi or its contractors, to the System

and City-owned property used by SiFi Networks under this Agreement and not

caused by City's sole negligence or willful misconduct. The City shall be liable
to the extent any loss or damages to the System or other SiFi property and

equipment results from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of acts or

omissions the City or its employees or contractors.

4.2 Location of Equipment/Facilities.

4.2.1 Facilities. During the Term and if approved by the City in
accordance with this Agreement, the City shall permit SiFi Networks access and

grar;6 alicense to and use of the Facilities on City-owned property, atmarketrate
to SiFi Networks for the installation and operation of SiFi Networks' Shelters

(approximately 1,000 square feet per location), distributed cabinets and other

Page 12 of32
Page 213

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



5

System equipment, components, parts, and other appurtenances for the System

and related facilities, and from which the fiber optic cables will be deployed, and

SiFi Networks shall pay all costs of electricity required for such Shelters.

4.2.2 Shelters and Cabinets Location. SiFi Networks agrees to
provide engineering designs including intended locations of Shelters and Cabinets

required for the System to the City prior to Construction in accordance with City's
permitting process. The City and SiFi Networks agree to cooperate in the

selection of suitable sites for the Shelters and Cabinets. However, City has sole

and absolute discretion to reject a proposed location; provided that, the City will
use reasonable efforts to consider suitable alternative locations.

4.3 Subscriber Connections.

4.3.1 Fiber to the Premises Wall. SiFi Networks will provide a
terminated fiber to each Subscriber's Premises receiving a Drop in a manner to be

determined by SiFi Networks. The location and the method of the Drop will vary
depending on the circumstances of the location of the Subscriber's Premises.

4.3.2 Svstem Connection to . The following will
apply to the connection to each Premises receiving a Drop:

(i) SiFi Networks or its designee shall be solely responsible
for securing private property easement access rights necessary, advisable
or appropriate to connect the System from the Subscriber property
boundary to the Premises Wall. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event

SiFi Networks cannot install fiber optic cable or other necessary

equipment on private property because of a lack of a right to access the
property, SiFi Networks shall not be required to make the System
available to such Premises.

(ii) SiFi Networks shall have no duty to provide any additional
connection after the terminated fiber has been taken to the ONT on the

Premises Wall.

SECTION 5

Oversight and Reeulation bv Citv.

5.1 Oversisht of Construction. In accordance with applicable law, the

City shall have the right to oversee and inspect the Construction of the System in
the Public Way.

5.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. SiFi Networks shall, at all
times during the Term, be subject to and comply with all applicable federal, state

laws and local laws regarding the Construction of the System in the Public Way.

Page 13 of32

Page 214

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



6.

5.3 Treatment of SiFi Provided Information. The City agrees to

notifr SiFi Networks if the City receives a California Public Records Act request

relating to SiFi Networks provided information and documents or the System.

SECTION 6

Insurance.

SiFi shall procure at its sole expense and maintain from the Effective Date and for

the duration of the Term of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to

persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the

performance of the work hereunder by the SiFi, its agents, representatives,

employees, or subcontractors.

6.I Minimum Scope and Limit of Coverage.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

A. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office

(ISO) Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including

products and completed operations, property damage,bodily injury and

personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per

occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate

limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04)

or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
Coverage shall include blanket contractual liability and broad form property

damage, premises, operations, explosion, collapse, undergroun d hazat d

(commonly referred to as ooX", "C" and "LI" coverages

B. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form CA 0001

covering Code 1 (any auto), with limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident

for bodily injury and property damage.

C. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of
California, with Statutory Limits, and Employers' Liability insurance with a

limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

D. Builder's Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an

'oAll Risk" (Special Perils) coverage form, with limits equal to the

completed value of the project and no coinsurance penalty provisions.

E. Professional Liability with limits no less than $1,000,000 per

occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate. The retroactive date

must be shown, and this date must be before the execution date of the

contract or the beginning of contract work. Insurance must be maintained,

and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after

completion of contract work. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and

Page 14 of32

Page 215

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date

prior to the contract effective, or start of work date, the SiFi must purchase

extended reporting period coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after

completion of contract work. A copy of the claims reporting requirements

must be submitted to the City for review.

F. Pollution Legal Liability and/or Asbestos Legal Liability and/or

Errors and Omissions (if project involves environmentalhazards) with limits
no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy

aggregate. If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos

identification/remediation, the Pollution Liability policy shall not contain

lead-based paint or asbestos exclusions. If the services involve mold

identification/remediation, the Contactors Pollution Liability policy shall

not contain a mold exclusion, and the definition of Pollution shall include

microbial matter, including mold.

If the Contractor or SiFi maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the

minimums shown above for all policies, the City requires and shall be entitled to the

broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Contractor or SiFi. Any
available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance

and coverage shall be available to the City to the extent necessary to cover any

actual damages suffered by the City.

6.2 Self-Insured Retentions

Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City. At the option

of the City, SiFi shall cause the insurer to reduce or eliminate such self-insured

retentions as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or

SiFi shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the City guaranteeing

payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense

expenses. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the

self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or City.

6.3 Other Insurance Provisions:

A. Additional Insured. The City, its officers, officials, employees, and

volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL and automobile

policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or

on behalf of SiFi including materials, ports, or equipment furnished in connection

with such work or operations and automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed

by or on behalf of SiFi. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of
an endorsement to the Sifi's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10

11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms

if later revisions used).

Page 15 of32

Page 216

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



B. Primary and Non-Contributory Insurance. For any claims related to

this project, SiFi's CGL and automobile insurance coverage shall be primary

insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the City,
its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance

maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be

excess of the SiFi's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

C. Notice of Cancellation. SiFi shall provide immediate written notice if (1)

any of the required insurance policies is terminated; (2) the limits of any of the

required policies are reduced; (3) or the deductible or self-insured retention is

increased. In the event of any cancellation or reduction in coverage or limits of
any insurance, Sifi shall forthwith obtain and submit proof of substitute insurance.

D. Builder's Risk (Course of Construction) Insurance. SiFi may, if
requested by the City, submit evidence of Builder's Risk insurance in the form of
Course of Construction coverage. Such coverage shall name the City as a loss

payee as their interest may appear.

If the project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option of
the City, an Installation Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property

Installation Floater shall be obtained that provides for the improvement, remodel,

modification, alteration, conversion or adjustment to existing buildings,

structures, processes, machinery and equipment. The Property Installation Floater

shall provide property damage coverage for any building, structure, machinery or

equipment damaged, impaired, broken, or destroyed during the performance of
the Work, including during transit, installation, and testing at the City's site.

E. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers

authorized to conduct business in the state with a current A.M. Best rating of no

less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the City.

F. Waiver of Subrogation. SiFi hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation

which any insurer of SiFi may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment

of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to

affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether

or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the

insurer. However, the Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a

waiver of subrogation in favor of the City for all work performed by the

Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

G. Verification of Coverage. SiFi shall furnish City with Certificates of
Insurance including all required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the

applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause) and a

copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy listing all
policy endorsements to City before the date of the start of Construction.

However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning

Page 16 of32
Page 217

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



shall not waive the SiFi's obligation to provide them. The City reserves the right
to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including

endorsements, required by these specifications, at any time.

H. Contractor/Subcontractors. SiFi shall require and verifr that its Contractor

and all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated

herein, and SiFi shall require its Contractor and all the subcontractors to list City
is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL

coverage subcontractors shall provide coverage with a form at least as broad as

cG20 38 04 13.

I. Special Risks or Circumstances. City reserves the right to modifu, at any

time, these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior

experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances.

SECTION 7

7. Partiesr Oblisations.

7.1 Citv Cooperation. City agrees to work in good faith with SiFi Networks
as it applies to City for permits that may be required by City and in the event state or
federal law or regulations prevents or precludes compliance with one or more provisions
of this Agreement, or requires material modification of the Agreement, SiFi Networks
shall promptly notiS the City in writing of the anticipated duration of any delay caused

thereby, and provided any such delay is not the fault of SiFi Networks, the parties agree

SiFi Networks may seek an extension of this Agreement as approved by the City as may

be reasonably necessary to comply with such new state and federal laws or regulations or
the regulations of other govemmental jurisdictions.

When reasonably able, City will provide SiFi Networks with a
least thirty (30) days advance notice of any work in the Public Way that
requires the relocation of the System. In addition, where necessary, the

City will provide SiFi Networks with an opportunity to access the System

at the time of the excavation in the Public Way by others.

7.2 Oblieations of SiF'i Networks. In addition to all other duties and

obligations contained elsewhere in this Agreement, SiFi Networks has the following
duties and obligations:

(i) Work closely with the SPOC of the City and relevant City
departments with respect to the construction of the System.

(iD Comply with all requirements of City for permit and Public
Way use applications, to the extent they may be required.

(iii) Provide or arrange for the maintenance of the System and

its functionality and operation.

PagelT of32
Page 218

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



(iv) SiFi Networks and its contractors shall register with
California DigAlert; and

(v) SiFi Networks to relocate its facilities as needed for City
capital improvement projects provided however that such City capital
improvements project shall be limited to only those projects impacting,
directly or indirectly, more than three hundred (300) contiguous feet of the
System in the Public Way or the Sewer System ("Major Public Works
Project"). Such Major Public Works Project(s) shall not include routine
maintenance and repair that does not impact the System, including without
limitation repair of pot holes, milling and repaving of roadways, and repair
and replacement of sewer pipes and/or other aspects of the Sewer System.

The City shall provide SiFi Networks with not less than sixty (60) days

written notice of such Major Public Works Project, and SiFi shall
temporary relocate or cause to be relocated any of its impacted System

within one hundred eighty (180) days of notification by the City at its sole

cost and expense. In the event SiFi Networks determines in its sole

discretion that such Major Public Works Project will have amaterial
impact on the System such that it would be in the best interests of the

Parties to temporarily or permanently relocate some or all of the System,

the City agrees to provide all reasonable accommodations as reasonably

requested by SiFi Networks and with no cost or charge by the City to SiFi
Networks other than standa.rd encroachment permit application and

inspection fees, to allow and facilitate SiFi Networks the ability to
temporarily or permanently relocate such portion of the System in or
around the Public Way or Sewer System in a manner sufftcient to maintain
the operation of the System pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. SiFi
Networks shall be responsible for the cost of any such temporary or
permanent relocation of any portion of the System in connection with a
Major Public Works Project.

(vi) SiFi Networks will endeavor to facilitate an introductory
meeting between the City and Service Provider(s) who use the Network to
provide services to residential and business, and further will advise any

such Service Provider(s) that the City may require fees as required by law
or regulation.

(vii) Provide response times in connection with repairs to be

undertaken by SiFi Networks and/or contractors retained by SiFi
Networks (as opposed to repairs to be undertaken by the City) and to
establish the necessary personnel levels for required dispatch, repair,
inventory, maintenance, and service of the System commencing no earlier
than Substantial Completion as follows:

(i) Depending upon the type of fault or the method of
identification, the City shall notiff SiFi of a suspected fault and the

Page 18 of32
Page 219

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



generation of a service ticket. The City shall issue to SiFi one of
the following service ticket(s), for which SiFi shall provide the

corresponding response time:

(1) StandardResponse("STANDARD")

a) Description: Construction in
progress, capital improvement and other such
projects impacting or potentially impacting the SiFi
System and/or may impact the SiFi System, about
which the City is aware of in advance. Examples of
such projects include mill and fill projects, side
relocations, road reclamation projects, and other
similar projects, provided that any such
STANDARD repair is subject to the then current
California Dig Safe laws and regulations, and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

b) SiFi's contractor response time: On-
site within forty-five (45) business days

(2) Non life threatening Emergency Response
("NON-LTER")

a) Description: Curb and gutter
proj ects, and utility (including telecommunications)
projects requiring relocation, repair, or replacement
that are impacted by the SiFi System and/or may
impact the SiFi System, provided that any such
NON-LTER repair is subject to the then current
California Dig Safe laws and regulations, and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

b) SiFi response time: On-site within
seventy-two (72) hours

(3) Life Threatening Emergency Response
("LTER")

a) Description: Break or hit in the main
gas, main electric, main water, or main sewer line
in the Public Way that has an immediate and direct
impact to the traveling safety of the public in or
around the Public Way, and wherein the City's
ability to implement repairs are impacted by the
SiFi System and/or City repairs may impact the SiFi
System.

Page19 of32

Page 220

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



b) SiFi's contractor response time: On-
site within four (4) hours

(ii) Upon receipt of a service ticket as set forth herein,
SiFi will use reasonable efforts to dispatch a technician to the

specified fault location as identified by the City. SiFi, working
with the City, will then make the determination as to whether the
technician will proceed with the repair(s) if possible, wait for
arrival of a City contractor if necessary for investigation and/or
repair of work, or leave the site.

SECTION 8

8. Breach: Rights and Remedies: Termination; Indemnification

8.1. SiFi Networks Breach or Default. In the event the City believes that
SiFi Networks has not complied with or is otherwise in default with regard to any term of
this Agreement, the City shall promptly notifu SiFi Networks in writing with specific
details regarding the exact nature of the alleged noncompliance or default (a "City
Breach Notice").

8.1.1 SiF'i Networks' Rieht to Cure or Respond. SiFi Networks shall
have thirty (30) calendar days from its receipt of a City Breach Notice (the

"Initial SiFi Cure Period") to:

(i) respond to the City, contesting the assertion of
noncompliance or default and in such event the Parties shall use

commercially reasonable efforts to promptly resolve such contest and to
the extent the Parties are unable to resolve such contest within thirly (30)
calendar days of SiFi Networks' response, each Party shall be entitled to
seek any and all rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity to
resolve such contest; or

(iD cure an actual default or noncompliance; pr'ovided,
however, in the event that the default is curable but due to the nature of the
default or noncompliance, such default or noncompliance cannot be cured
within the Initial SiFi Cure Period, so long as SiFi Networks initiates
reasonable steps to remedy and continuously and diligently uses all
reasonable efforts to cure such default or noncompliance promptly and

notifies the City of the steps being taken and the projected date that they
will be completed, the Initial SiFi Cure Period shall be extended for a
reasonable amount of time to permit such cure but not to exceed sixty (60)
calendar days from SiFi Networks' receipt of a City Breach Notice (the
ooExtended SiFi Cure Period" and together with the Initial SiFi Cure
Period, the "SiFi Cure Period").

8.1.2 Citv Riehts and Remedies.

Page20 of32

Page 221

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



(D Except as provided in Sections 8.1.2(ii), (iii) and (iv) below
which shall control in connection with the events described therein, if SiFi
Networks fails to cure any actual noncompliance or default as provided in
Section 8.1.l(ii) above within the SiFi Networks' Cure Period, the City
may:

(a) seek specific performance of any provision of this
Agreement which lends itself to such remedy as an
alternative to money damages; or

(b) seek money damages from SiFi Networks; or

(c) in the event of the breach of, noncompliance with or
default under any material term of this Agreement, terminate this
Agreement and seek any and all rights and remedies available to it
at law or in equity.

(ii) Subject to Section 10.2 below and provided that all
applicable permits have been issued by the City, in the event SiFi
Networks fails to commence Construction on or before the Construction
Commencement Deadline in accordance with Section 4.1 above and
subsequently fails to commence Construction within the SiFi Cure Period,
the City may provide written notice to SiFi Networks of the City's intent to
terminate this Agreement for such failure. SiFi Networks shall have an
additional thirty (30) calendar day period after the SiFi Cure Period to
commence Construction (the "Additional SiF'i Cure Period"). If SiFi
Networks fails to cofilmence Construction by the last day of the
Additional SiFi Cure Period, the City may terminate this Agreement by
written notice to SiFi Networks and seek appropriate damages under this
Agreement.

(iii) Subject to Section 10.2 below and provided that all
applicable permits have been issued by the City, in the event SiFi
Networks fails to complete construction of the System by the Construction
Completion Deadline in accordance with Section 4.1 above and
subsequently fails to complete said construction within the SiFi Cure
Period, the City may provide written notice to SiFi Networks of the City's
intent to terminate this Agreement for such failure. SiFi Networks shall
have an additional thirty (30) calendar day period after the SiFi Cure
Period to complete construction (the "Additional SiFi Completion Cure
Period"). If SiFi Networks fails to complete said construction by the last
day of the Additional SiFi Completion Cure Period, then SiFi Networks
shall cease further construction but shall be allowed to operate the
partially completed System.

(iv) Subject to Section 10.2 below and provided that all
applicable permits have been issued by the City, at any time after

Page2l of32

Page 222

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



Substantial Completion is achieved, in the event no internet, voice, data, or
video service of any kind is capable of being provided over the System due
solely to the acts or omissions of SiFi Networks for a period in excess of
thirty (30) consecutive calendar days and SiFi Networks fails to restore such
capability within the SiFi Cure Period, the City may provide written notice
to SiFi Networks of the City's intent to terminate this Agreement. SiFi
Networks shall have an additional thirty (30) calendar day period after the
SiFi Cure Period to restore the capability of the System to provide Service
(the "Additional SiFi Service Cure Period"). If SiFi Networks fails to
restore the capability of the System to provide Service by the last day of the
Additional SiFi Service Cure Period, then SiFi Networks shall cease further
construction but shall be allowed to operate the partially completed System.

(v) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Agreement, in no event shall the City be permitted to terminate this
Agreement if the City is in breach of or default under this Agreement.

8.2 City Breach or Default. In the event SiFi Networks believes that the City
has not complied with or is otherwise in default with regard to any term of this
Agreement, SiFi Networks shall promptly notiff the City in writing with specific details
regarding the exact nature of the alleged noncompliance or default (a "SiF'i Breach
Notice"). The failure to promptly provide such notice, however, shall not act as a waiver
of any rights and remedies of SiFi Networks hereunder unless and only to the extent that
the City is materially prejudiced by such failure.

8.2.1 Citv's Risht to Cure or Respond. The City shall have
thirty (30) calendar days from its receipt of a SiFi Breach Notice (the "City Cure
Period"; provided that the City Cure Period for a failure of the City to review
permit applications and issue a permit(s) necessary to construct the System as

required under Sections 3.2 and 7 .2.I(iv) (a "Permit Issuance Breach") shall be

seven (7) business days from its receipt of a SiFi Breach Notice) to:

(i) respond to SiFi Networks, contesting the assertion of
noncompliance or default and in such event the Parties shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to promptly resolve such contest and to
the extent the Parties are unable to resolve such contest within thirty (30)
calendar days of the City's response, each Party shall be entitled to seek

any and all rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity to resolve
such contest; or

(ii) cure an actual default or noncompliance; provided,
however, in the event that the default is curable but due to the nature of the
default or noncompliance, such default or noncompliance cannot be cured
within the City Cure Period, so long as the City initiates reasonable steps

to remedy and continuously and diligently uses all reasonable efforts to
cure such default or noncompliance promptly and notifies SiFi Networks
of the steps being taken and the projected date that they will be completed,

Page22 of32

Page 223

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



the City Cure Period shall be extended for a reasonable amount of time to
permit such cure but not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days from the
City's receipt of a SiFi Breach Notice (the "Extended City Cure
Period"); provided further, however, no Extended City Cure Period shall
apply to a Permit Issuance Breach.

8.2.2 SiFi Networks Riehts and Remedies. If the City fails to
cure any actual noncompliance or default as provided in Section 8.2.1(ii) above
within the applicable City Cure Period, SiFi Networks may:

(i) seek specific performance of any provision of this Agreement
which lends itself to such remedy as an altemative to money
damages; or

(ii) in the event of the breach of, noncompliance with or default
under any material term of this Agreement, terminate this
Agreement.

8.3 Additional Rishts to Terminate

8.3.1 At any time prior to commencing Construction or in the event the
City fails to comply with the requirements of the Agreement, SiFi Networks
shall have the immediate right, at its option, upon notice to the City to
terminate this Agreement and shall be entitled to any and all other rights and
remedies available to it at law or in equity, subject to the specific legal
limitations SiFi Networks agreed to in this Agreement.

8.3.2 A Party shall have the right, at its option, upon notice to the
other Party to terminate this Agreement if the other Party becomes (i)
insolvent, admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature, makes
an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or becomes subject to direct control
of a trustee, receiver or similar authority, or (ii) subject to any bankruptcy or
insolvency proceeding under federal, state or foreign statutes which is not
rescinded or dismissed within thirty (30) calendar days.

8.4 Indemnification

SiFi Networks shall defend, indemnifr and hold the City, its officials,
officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any and all
claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or
injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in
any manner which actually or allegedly arise out of or are incident to any
alleged intentional or negligent acts, errors, omissions, or willful misconduct of
SiFi Networks, its officials, officers, employees, agents, contractors and
subcontractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the
Services, the Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the
payment of all attorney's fees and other related costs and expenses except

Page23 of32

Page 224

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



where caused by the sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the City its
officers, officials, employees and volunteers. SiFi Networks shall defend, at its
own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or other
legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against the
City, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers. SiFi
Networks shall pay and satisff any judgment, award or decree that may be

rendered against the City or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents
or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal proceeding. SiFi Networks
shall reimburse the City, its officials, officers, employees, agents and/or
volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each ofthem in
connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided. SiFi
Networks' obligation to indemniff shall not be restricted to insurance
proceeds, if any, received by the City its officials, officers, employees, agents
or volunteers. It is understood that the duty of SiFi Networks to indemniff and
hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the
California Civil Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve SiFi Networks
from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This
indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims
for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined
to apply, and shall further survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, SiFi Networks acknowledges
and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of
consideration.

8.5 Limitation of Liabilitv. IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY
BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL,
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, RELIANCE, OR PTINITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY KIND
ORNATURE WHATSOEVER,INCLUDING ANY LOST SAVINGS OR HARM TO
BUSINESS. EACH PARTY HEREBY RELEASES THE OTHER PARTY AND ITS
AFFILIATES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, MANAGERS,
MEMBERS, EQUITY AND DEBT HOLDERS, PARTNERS, EMPLOYEES,
CONTRACTORS AND REPRESENTATIVES AND THEIR HEIRS, SUCCESSORS
AND ASSIGNS, FROM CLAIMS FOR ANY SUCH DAMAGES. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the provisions of this Section 8.5

will survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 9

9. Disputes

9.I For all claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in connection
with, the breach, interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Agreement, or arising
out of, or in connection with, the System which cannot be settled through negotiation, the
Parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the matter by mediation in Sacramento
County, California, prior to commencing litigation.

Page24 of32

Page 225

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



9.2 All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in connection with,
the breach, interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Agreement, or arising out
of, or in connection with, the System, shall be decided in a court of law. The sole and

exclusive venue for all claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in connection
within the breach, interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Agreement, or
arising out of, or in connection with, the System, shall be in a state court in Sacramento

County, California.

SECTION 10

10. MiscellaneousProvisions

10.1 Assisnment. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and

shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and each of their respective successors and

assigns as provided herein. The City shall not be permitted to assign, sell or transfer this
Agreement, or its rights and duties under this Agreement, without the prior written
consent of SiFi Networks, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, or delayed. SiFi Networks shall have the right to assign, novate, sell,
encumber, or transfer this Agreement and the System or any part thereof, without the

consent of the City to Sifi's principal, affiliates, subsidiaries, subsidiaries of its principal
or to any entity which acquires all or substantially all of the SiFi's assets in the market by
reason of a merger, acquisition, or other business reorganization, provided such assignee,

purchaser, or transferee has all appropriate licenses, to the extent SiFi's licenses, permits

and approvals cannot be assigned oi transfened, for the operation, management, and

maintenance of the facilities contemplated herein and sufficient financial resources to
fulfill all applicable terms and obligations under this Agreement. Al1 other assignment,

sale, or transfer by SiFi Networks of this Agreement shall require prior written consent of
the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. At least

thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date, or as soon as practicable, ofany such

assignment, sale or transfer, SiFi shall provide City with a fully executed copy of the

assignment, sale or transfer document, signed by both Sifi and
assignee/purchaser/transferee, indicating the assignee's/purchaser's/ transferee's
assumption of all of SiFi's performance duties, liabilities and obligations under this
Agreement. SiFi shall not be relieved of its perfonnance duties, liabilities or obligations
under this Agreement until City is in receipt, of a fully executed copy of the document
evidencing such assignment of the obligations herein and the
assignee's/purchaser's/transferee's assumption of SiFi's performance duties, liabilities,
and obligations under this Agreement. Sifi may not otherwise assign this Agreement or
the System without City's consent, City's consent not to be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, or delayed. Upon any such assignment, sale, transfer, or novation, SiFi
Networks shall be released from all obligations and liabilities under this Agreement from
and after the date of such assignment. SiFi Networks shall give the City thirty (30) days'

advance notice of such assignment, sale, transfer or novation disclosing the identity of the
Person to whom it has been assigned, transferred, sold or novated. The City agrees from
time to time to promptly deliver (and in no event later than ten (10) days after request by
SiFi Networks) to SiFi Networks an estoppel certificate addressed to the assignee, buyer

Page25 of32

Page 226

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



or transferee designated by SiFi Networks, affirming for the benefit of such buyer,
assignee or transferee the following (to the extent that the following are then true): the
Agreement is in fulI force and effect; SiFi Networks is not in default thereunder; and such

other matters as such assignee, buyer or transferee may reasonably request.

I0.2 Force Maieure. Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this
Agreement, SiFi Networks will not be held in default under, or in breach or
noncompliance with, the provisions of this Agreement, nor suffer any enforcement or
penalty relating to noncompliance or default (including termination, cancellation or
revocation of this Agreement), where such noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or
were caused by any of the following events (each a "Force Majeure Event"): failure by
the City to issue permit(s) required to construct the System or any part thereof to SiFi
Networks or its contractor(s), failure by the City to comply with this Agreement, conduct
by the City that materially interferes with SiFi Networks' ability to perform, labor strike,
riot, war, earthquake, flood, hurricane, drought, tornado, unusually severe weather
conditions, or other act of nature, labor disputes, failure of utility service necessary to
construct the System, govemmental, administrative or judicial order, or other event that is
beyond SiFi Networks'reasonable control. Force Majeure Events also include work
delays caused by waiting for utility providers to service or monitor their own utility
infrastructure on which SiFi Networks' fiber optic cable and/or equipment may be

deployed, as well as unavailability of materials and/or reasonably qualified labor to
perform the work.

10.3 Notice. All notices and communications hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be served upon the other party by hand delivery, nationally recognized ovemight
delivery service, United States certified mail, return receipt requested, electronic mail, or
by facsimile with confirmed transmission and addressed as follows:

IF TO THE CITY:
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attn: City Attorney

IF TO SIFI NETWORKS:
SiFi Networks
841 Apollo Street, Suite 470
El Segundo,CA90245
Email: NOTICES@SiFiNetworks.com

or to such other address as such Party may hereafter speciS for the purpose by notice to
the other Party in the manner provided in this Section 10.3. All such notices, requests
and other communications will be deemed received on the date of receipt if received prior
to 5 p.m. on any business day in the place of receipt. Otherwise, any such notice, request
or communication will be deemed not to have been received until the next succeeding

Page26 of32

Page 227

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



business day in the place of receipt. Rejection or other refusal to accept or inability to
deliver because of change of address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to be
receipt of the notice.

10.4 Entire Asreement. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, embodies the
entire understanding and agreement of the City and SiFi Networks with respect to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all other agreements whether written,
verbal, or otherwise between SiFi Networks and the City with respect to the subject of
this Agreement.

10.5 Severabilitv. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal
or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall
not affect any other term or provision of this Agreement (which other terms and
provisions shall remain in fuIl force and effect) or invalidate or render unenforceable
such term or provision in any other jurisdiction. Upon such determination that any term
or other provision is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the Parties hereto shall negotiate in
good faith to modifu this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the Parties as

closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner in order that the transactions
contemplated hereby be consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest extent
possible.

10.6 Governins Law. This Agreement shall be deemed to be executed in the
State of California and shall be governed in all respects, including validity, interpretation
and effect, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of California as

applicable to contracts entered into and performed entirely within the State, irrespective
of conflict of laws principles.

10.7 Modification. This Agreement shall not be amended or otherwise
modified, in whole or in part, except by an instrument, in writing, duly executed by the
City and SiFi Networks. For the avoidance of doubt, this Agreement cannot be amended
or modified orally or by course of conduct, and no executory agreement, oral agreement
or course of conduct shall be effective to amend or modifu this Agreement in whole or in
part.

10.8 No Third Partv Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement or in any prior
agreement is or was intended to confer third party beneficiary status on any party or
Person not a party to this Agreement including a member of the public.

10.9 No Waiver of Riehts. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a

waiver of any rights, substantive or procedural that SiFi Networks or the City may have
under federal or state law unless such waiver is expressly stated herein.

10.10 No Riehts to the Svstem. The City expressly agrees that, except as

expressly set forth in this Agreement, it does not and shall not claim at any time any
interest or estate of any kind or extent whatsoever in the System, throughout the term of
this Agreement. Except as provided in Section 8.1.2 (iii) and Section 8.1.2 (iv) above,
SiFi Networks shall, at all times,retaintitle to and ownership of the System and all future

Page27 of32

Page 228

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



extensions of the System, and shall have the right to lease the System or parts thereof to a
provider ofinternet, data, voice, video and other services.

10.1 1 Representations and Warranties.

10.11.1 The City represents and warrants to SiFi Networks that: (a)
it has full authority (including the authority required by any applicable law,
ordinance, rule or regulation) to enter into and perform this Agreement and the
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are within the right, power and
authority of the City and have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the
part of City, (b) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the City
and it constitutes alegal, valid and binding agreement of the City enforceable
against the City in accordance with its terms (except as enforcement may be
limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or
similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally and by general principles of
equity) and (c) the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the City and its
performance hereunder and thereunder will not violate any law, ordinance, rule,
or regulation applicable to the City.

I0.I1r2 SiFi Networks represents and warrants to the City that: (a)
it has full authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are within the power and authority
of SiFi Networks and have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the
part of SiFi Networks, (b) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered
by SiFi Networks and it constitutes alegal, valid and binding agreement of SiFi
Networks enforceable against SiFi Networks in accordance with its terms (except
as enforcement may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally
and by general principles of equity) and (c) the execution and delivery of this
Agreement by SiFi Networks and its performance hereunder and thereunder will
not violate any law, rule, or regulation applicable to SiFi Networks.

10.1 1 .3 OTHER THAN EXPLICIT REPRESENTATIONS AND
WARRANTIES MADE BY SIFI TO CITY, SIFI NETWORKS MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES TO THE CITY OR ANY PERSON
WITH RESPECT TO THE SYSTEM (OR THE COMPONENTS THEREOF)
AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR
STATUTORY WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, AVAILABILITY, ERROR-FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED
OPERATION, AND ANY WARRANTIES AzuSING FROM A COURSE OF
DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, OR USAGE OF TRADE. TO THE
EXTENT THAT SIFI NETWORKS MAY NOT AS A MATTER OF
APPLICABLE LAW DISCLAIM ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY, THE SCOPE

Page28 of32

Page 229

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



AND DURATION OF SUCH WARRANTY WILL BE THE MINIMUM
PERMITTED I.]NDER SUCH LAW.

10.12 Third Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a

contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor of, a third party against either
SiFi Networks or the City.

10.13 No Partnership. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a
partnership, joint venture or agency relationship between the City and SiFi Networks or
any other relationship other than a contractual relationship as expressly set forth in this
Agreement. Neither Party shall in any manner act or indicate to any third party that is
acting as the agent of the other Party. SiFi Networks shall at all times remain an
independent contractor. Neither Party shall control or direct the day-to-day affairs of the
other Party, or their mode or method of performing their respective obligations
hereunder.

10.14 Headinss. The headings and captions of this Agreement are solely for the
convenience of the Parties and shall not be deemed to modifu or vary any of the
substantive terms thereof.

10.15 Construction. Each of the Parties acknowledge that each Party to this
Agreement has been represented by counsel in connection with this Agreement. Legal or
equitable principles that might require the construction of this Agreement or any
provision hereof against the party drafting this Agreement shall not apply in any
construction or interpretation of this Agreement and is expressly waived. In the event an

ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed
as if drafted jointly by the parties and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise
favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of
this Agreement. The words "hereof', "herein" andoohereunder" and words of like import
used in this Agreement will refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular
provision of this Agreement. References to Articles, Sections, and clauses are to
Articles, Sections and clauses of this Agreement unless otherwise specified. Any
singular term in this Agreement will be deemed to include the plural, and any plural term
the singular. Whenever the words "include", ooincludes" or "including" are used in this
Agreement, they will be deemed to be followed by the words oowithout limitation",
whether or not they are in fact followed by those words or words of like import.
ooWriting", "written" and comparable terms refer to printing, typing and other means of
reproducing words (including electronic media) in a visible form. References to any
agreement or contract are to that agreement or contract as amended, modified or
supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.
References to any Person include the successors and permitted assigns of that Person.

References from or through any date mean, unless otherwise specified, from and
including or through and including, respectively.

10.16 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in any number of
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, with the same effect as if the
signatures were upon the same instrument. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered

Page29 of32

Page 230

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronic transmission (including PDF) shall be

deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this
Agreement.

10.17 Further Assurances. Each Party agrees that it will execute and deliver
such other documents and take such other action as may be reasonably requested by the
other Party to effectuate the purposes and intention of this Agreement.

10.18 No Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be waived unless such

waiver is in writing and signed by the Party against whom the waiver is to be effective.
No failure or delay by a Party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall
operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any
other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any right, power or privilege
hereunder. No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be held to constitute a

waiver of any other or subsequent breach.

[Signature page follows]

Page 30 of32

Page 231

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this FiberNetworks Installation
Agreement to be executed as of the day and year stated above.

CITY OF FOLSOM,
a municipal corporation

Dated 2020

City Manager

Approved as to form:

City Attorney

SIFI NETWORKS F'OLSOM LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Dated: 2020

By:

Its:

Page 31 of32

Page 232

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



EXHIBIT A

SPECIFICATIONS, SHELTERS, CABINETS

Page32 of32
Page 233

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 234

11/09/2021 Item No.14.



D
Folsom City Council

Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council introduce and conduct the
first reading of Ordinance No. l3 I 8 - Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section I 0.20.5 l0
of the Folsom Municipal Code to Increase Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic District
(Introduction and First Reading).

B^{CKGROUND / ISSUE

In 2019 the City Council directed the formation of the Historic District Ad Hoc Parking
Solutions Committee, which was a committee comprised of residents, business owners and
other community stakeholders to develop recommendations to address the parking issues
facing the Historic District. The committee completed their work in Spring 2020 andreported
their findings and recommendations back to City Council, which the City Council then in turn
directed staff to implement over time. One of the committee's high-priority recommendations
was to increase the frequency and scope of parking enforcement. Another recommendation, to
implement and enforce a residential permit parking program, is also under way (as a temporary
pilot) but will require consistent parking enforcement to be effective. Currently the fine for
violating a parking regulation anywhere in the City of Folsom is $25 and has been that amount
since 1994. In terms of the value of the dollar, a $25 fine may not be the deterrent it was almost
three decades ago; many motorists seem to be willing to accept a $25 fine and either pay it or
ignore it. Increasing the amount of the fine may make a more effective deterrent, which in turn

1

MEETING DATE: 1!9/2021

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. I 3 I 8 - Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending
Section 10.20.510 of the Folsom Municipal Code to Inorease Parking
Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic District (Introduction and
First Reading)

F'ROM: Public Works Department

Page 235

11/09/2021 Item No.15.



improves compliance with posted parking restrictions and maximizes the effectiveness of
parking management strategies.

DISCUSSION

Given the concentration of parking demand in the Historic District, and the success of parking
strategies being tied directly to compliance, staff is recommending that the fine for parking
violations in certain designated areas of the Historic District be increased from $25 to $75.
This increase would only apply with the portion of the Historic District bounded by, and to
include Coloma Street, Leidesdorff Street, Folsom Boulevard, and Natoma Street. A map
diagram of the affected area is attached as Attachment No. 2 to this Staff Report. This increased
fine is supported by the Folsom Historic District Association and the Historic Folsom
Residents Association.

UNANCIAL IMPACT

This action should not have any significant financial impact to the City of Folsom for
increasing the parking fine amount from $25 to $75 in the designated area of the Historic
District. If implemented, the additional revenue from the increased fines would have a
negligible impact to the City's general fund.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15061(bX3) of the CEQA Guidelines.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Ordinance No. 1318 - Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 10.20.510
of the Folsom Municipal Code to Increase Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic
District (Introduction and First Reading)

2. Map diagram showing designated area in the Historic District subject to the new $75
parking penalty

Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

2

Page 236

11/09/2021 Item No.15.



Attachment I

Page 237

11/09/2021 Item No.15.



ORDINANCE NO. 1318

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF'F'OLSOM
AMENDING SECTION 10.20.510 OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE TO
INCREASE PARKING PENALTY IN CERTAIN AREAS OF THE HISTORIC

DISTRICT

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Section 10.20.510 of the Folsom Municipal
Code as it pertains to the amount of parking penalties. Specifically, this Ordinance seeks to
increase the amount of the parking penalty from $25 to $75 within arLarea of the Historic District
bounded by, and to include Coloma Street, Leidesdorff Street, Folsom Boulevard, and Natoma
Street.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 10.20.510 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

10.20.510 General.

The violation of any section of this chapter, unless otherwise specified, shall be punishable
by a parking penalty of twenty-five dollars for each violation. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
violations that occur within the portion of the Historic District bounded by, and to include Coloma
Street, Leidesdorff Street, Folsom Boulevard, and Natoma Street, shall be punishable by a parking
penalty of seventy-five dollars for each violation.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MANDATORY DUTY OF CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner
that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards
persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis of civil liability for
damages, excep as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

Ifany section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part thereof
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent

Ordinance No. 1318
Page I of2

Page 238

11/09/2021 Item No.15.



jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would have passed each

section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase

be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 6 EF'FECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and
adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on November 9,2021 and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on December 14,2021.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
the foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City

of Folsom, State of California, this l4thday of December 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1318
Page2 of2

Page 239

11/09/2021 Item No.15.



Attachment 2

Page 240

11/09/2021 Item No.15.



Page 241

11/09/2021 Item No.15.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 242

11/09/2021 Item No.15.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance
No. I 3 I 9 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 3 .20.040 of the Folsom
Municipal Code Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal Services.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Section 3 .20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code to
identiff that real property owners are responsible for payment of municipal services provided
to their properties such as, for example, solid waste, water, and sanitary sewer service.

As a health and safety requirement, services are not terminated or interrupted in between
occupants. When a resident moves into a new property, we allow rental occupants to open
utility accounts in their name if the real property owner has a current business license certificate
and a $240 deposit is added to the new utility account. Additionally, commercial accounts
allow for a split amongst individual tenants for flat rate services provided to one parcel. We
are the only agency surveyed in our region that allows for these utility services to transfer to a
tenant andlor split services amongst tenants on one parcel.

California Health and Safety Code 5473 allows delinquent utility charges to be collected as a

direct levy on the property tax roll. Folsom Municipal Code 3.20.040 also allows for unpaid

1

MEETING DATE: tU9l202t

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Section 3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code
Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal Services
(Introduction and First Reading)

FROM: Finance Department

Page 243

11/09/2021 Item No.16.



charges to be collected on the property tax rol1, and the Revenue Division administers this
process annually. As the City has grown over the years, having utility accounts in the tenant's
name has resulted in a significant increase in staff time processing and managing tenant
accounts, and presented unique challenges for the City to collect delinquent payments.

POLICY / RULE

Amendments and revisions to the Folsom Municipal Code must be reviewed and approved
by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

The proposed ordinance amendment would identifu that the owner of real property is
responsible for utility service charges. This is in accordance with California Health and Safety
Code section 5473 et.seq. and Folsom Municipal Code section 3.20.040, which allow
delinquent service charges and applicable penalties to be collected on the tax roll and paid by
the real property owner. Since property taxes are the responsibility of, and billed to, the real
property owner, the best practice for these utility services is to also bill directly to the real
property owner.

Rental properties located in American River Canyon are serviced by San Juan Water District,
and they are akeady subject to this practice with the water portion of their utility bill. El Dorado
Inigation District, which will serve a future portion of the Folsom Plan Area, also adheres to
the practice of billing the real property owner for utility services.

Thirty percent of the monthly turnover in utility accounts is due to changes in tenants, and the
same amount of customer service time is spent identifuing new account responsibility. The real
property owner of a parcel is an official County recorded document that can be searched at arry

time by staff. This amendment allows the City to provide municipal service billing more
efficiently, economically, and accurately. Property owners may, if they desire, contractually
arange with their tenants for making the utility payments.

The Revenue Division is recommending an l8-month transition after this ordinance is
approved. As new rental starts are requested, staff will provide an explanation of the change in
process, what this change means to them as a customer or property owner, and how a tenant
can be authorized to receive a copy of the utility bill.

ATTACHMENT

1. Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections
3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code (Introduction and First Reading)

2
Page 244

11/09/2021 Item No.16.



Tamagni, Finance Director

J
Page 245

11/09/2021 Item No.16.



ORDINANCE NO. 1319

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF F'OLSOM AMENDING SECTION 3.20.040
OF'THE F'OLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO RESPONSIBLE

PARTIES F'OR MUNICIPAL SERVICES

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Section 3.20.040 of the Folsom
Municipal Code to clariff that real property owners are responsible for payment of
municipal services provided to their properties such as, for example, solid waste, water,
and sanitary sewer service.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereb)' amended to read as

follows:

3.20.040 Collection methods.

A. The owner of real property to which one or more municipal services are rendered
shall be responsible and liable for the payment of all municipal service charges, and the
city may utilize all procedures available under this Code or state law to collect payment.

B. Charges for municipal services rendered to a parcel of real property shall be billed
to the owner of that property as identified by the Sacramento County Clerk Recorder's
Office, addressed to the owner at the owner's address shown in the Sacramento County
Clerk Recorder's Office.

C. At the request of the real property owner submitted on a form approved by the
Finance Director, a copy of the bill for municipal service charges may be sent to the
owner's tenants, renters, or the owner's authorized representative, provided that the
municipal services account shall remain in the owner's rurme and the owner shall remain
fully responsible and liable for the payment of such municipal service charges as if the
bill had been sent to the owner.

D. The property owner shall be fully responsible for payment of all municipal
services rendered to the owner's property, and the city shall have no responsibility for,
nor any involvement in, the allocation, billing, and collection of these costs by the owner
from the owner's tenants, renters, or others.

Ordinance No. 1319
Page I of3 Page 246

11/09/2021 Item No.16.



E. The methods of collection set forth in this Chapter are in addition to any other
method permitted or allowed by law and shall not repeal any existing law or ordinance
now in effect with respect to collection of delinquent utility payments or service

termination and restoration for delinquent accounts. Unpaid charges may become a lien
on any property to the extent authorized by law.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal
Code shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MANDATORY DUTY OF'CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a
manner that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty
of care towards persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis

of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any
part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any

court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council
declares that it would have passed each section irrespective of the fact that any one or
more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase be declared unconstitutional,
invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 6 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage

and adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after
its adoption in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This Ordinance was introduced, and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of
the City Council on November 9,2021 and the second reading occurred at the regular
meeting of the City Council on December 14,2021.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council
Member , the foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of
the City of Folsom, State of California, this XXday of XXXX 2021, by the following
roll-callvote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Ordinance No. 1319

Page2 of3

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Page 247

11/09/2021 Item No.16.



ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1319
Page 3 of3

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 248

11/09/2021 Item No.16.



, l,'i....j,:_ir:I

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council introduce and conduct the
first reading of Ordinance No. 1320 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and
Replacing the Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom
Municipal Code to Incorporate New State Law Mandates.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In 2006, the City Council adopted the most recent update to the Garbage Collection ordinance
(Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.32) primarily to incorporate program changes that had
been established in alignment with state recycling and source reduction mandates and to
continue to maintain and operate essential garbage collection service to meet community
needs. Since then, several new state mandates have been adopted and the Solid Waste Division
(Division) is again proposing changes in response to these mandates.

SB 1383 was signed into California law in20l6 as part of the state's broader effort to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions. The Califomia Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle) frnalized the regulations in November 2020 and is working with jurisdictions to
ensure waste hauling programs are amended, to divert upto 26 million tons of organic material
from landfills annually by 2025 in order to reduce methane emissions and support the state's
climate goals.

1

MEETING DATE: n19l202l

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1320 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Repealing and Replacing the Garbage Collection Ordinance as

Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code to
Incorporate New State Law Mandates (Introduction and First
Reading)

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 249

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



Complying with the complex framework of SB 1383 requires major alteration to the City's
solid waste collection program, necessitating a full repeal and replacement of the current
garbage collection ordinance, including renaming the ordinance from o'Garbage Collection" to
"Waste and Recycling Collection". The new ordinance clearly provides the details of
operations (containers, collections, materials, charges), permissions, city responsibilities,
waivers, education and enforcement and other relevant topics surrounding the organics,
recycling and garbage collection programs in accordance with SB 1383.

The Division has been actively working on planning for the required progrirm changes
including a comprehensive rate study and rate increase proposal, securing capacity for organics
processing, design of new educational materials, route adjustments to accommodate weekly
collection of organic waste, a procurement policy update, and coordination with other
departments to ensure compliance. The adoption of an enforceable ordinance is one of the
mandates of SB 1383, and this ordinance repeal and replacement is the next essential step of
the planned approach and process to enact city-wide S81383 compliant programs mandated to
start in January of 2022.

DISCUSSION

The proposed ordinance repeal and replacement is prepared in accordance with the requirement
ofSB 1383.

The new ordinance addresses how Folsom will collect garbage, recycling and organics, and
also specifies how the City's programs will serve all residents and businesses, to work together
to prevent food waste from going into landfills, and to reduce edible food waste and rescue it
for the food insecure. The Division is required to track the metrics closely and report them
annually to CalRecycle. At present, deficiencies in Folsom's organic waste recycling program
and infrastructure have resulted in the city being put under a corrective action plan with
CalRecycle pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18996.2.

Due to the significant number of changes included in the proposed new ordinance, the Division
has attached both the current version and the revised version ofthe ordinance rather than a

marked-up copy. In addition to the changes for SB 1383, staff completed a comprehensive

review of all existing language. The revisions includp updates to outdated references and

definitions, clarified details for existing programs, and consolidated language that is duplicated
in other areas of the Folsom Municipal Code. Below are highlights of the updates specific to
sB 1383:

a Section 8.32.045, selthauler requirements, was added to specifu how recycling
requirements must be met by anyone who self-hauls waste from premises located
within the City. Organic materials must be recycled using one of the methods
outlined. In the case of commercial businesses, there are also record keeping
requirements.

2

Page 250

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



a

o

a

I

Section 8.32.125, commercial containers required, placement, appearance and
labeling, was added to outline the requirements of businesses to provide containers
with specific labeling for all individuals who may generate waste on their premises.

Section 8.32.L40 (B), charges for collection, was revised to establish the responsible
party for compliance with SB 1383 when businesses must share waste services. A
lack of clarity regarding who is responsible for compliance has been a banier that
contributed to our current non-compliance status with the existing commercial
organics recycling mandate.

Section 8.32.191, sufficient service required, was revised to include the requirement
for both residents and businesses to participate in organics recycling.

Section 8.32.220, exemption from participation in residential curbside recycling,
was revised and renamed "waivers". The revised language significantly limits the
circumstances in which a resident or business will not be required to participate in
the recycling and organics services.

Section 8.32.265, inspections and investigations was added to outline the City's
right to perform cornpliance inspections and the customer's obligation to provide
any necessary access.

a

a

t 8.32.270, enforcement, was revised to add compliance details relating to the
implementation and ongoing enforcement of SB 1383. In summary, beginning
January 1,2022, the city will focus on implementing the city-wide food scraps
composting program through weekly collections, outreach, education and coaching
to compliance, providing educational materials to the residents or businesses
describing their obligations under this chapter. The City's current non-compliance
status with the existing commercial organics recycling mandate and the contractual
obligation to provide minimally contaminated material to our facilities or face
penalty, necessitates enforcement actions to be taken as needed. Enforcement action
will be done according to the enforcement response plan, following delivery of
educational materials and issuance of notices of violations in the case of
contamination in any container, starting in2022.

Sections 8.32.310, requirements for commercial edible food generators, and
8.32.320, requirements for edible food recovery organizations and services, were
added to facilitate the implementation of an edible food recovery program.
Generators and food recovery organizations have specific obligations including
contracts and record keeping for food recovery efforts and specifically who must
participate and when,

Edible food recovery capacity planning and program will begin with "tier one" by 2022,
including supermarkets, grocery stores with less than 10,000 square feet, food service

J

Page 251

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



providers, food distributors, and wholesale food vendors. "Tier two" will begin by 2024, to
include restaurants with less than 250 seats or less than 5,000 square feet, hotels with food
service and less than 200 rooms, health facilities with food service and less than 100 beds,

large venues,large events, and schools with food service.

The new ordinance allows the City of Folsom to comply with SB I 3 83, establishing a program
and process by which the City contributes to the state meeting methane emissions reduction
targets, a harmful short-lived climate pollutant. SB 1383 establishes targets to achieve a 50
percent reduction in the level of the statewide disposal of organic waste from the 2014 level
by 2020 and a75 percent reduction by 2025.

Methane emissions resulting from the decomposition of organic waste in landfills are a
significant source of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions contributing to global climate change.

Food waste alone accounts for approximately 17 to 18 percent of total landfitl disposal.
Increasing food waste prevention, encouraging edible food rescue, and expanding the

composting and diversion of organic waste throughout the City, per this ordinance, is how
Folsom will contribute to the reduction of methane emissions from California's landfills.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Program changes required by SB 1383 and outlined in the new ordinance will have a significant
impact to the Solid Waste Fund. A comprehensive rate analysis has been completed and a rate

increase to mitigate the impacts of SB 1383 is currently being proposed, with a public hearing
scheduled for December 74,2021. Enforcement efforts required by SB 1383 may result in
some nominal revenue to the Solid Waste Fund.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15307 and 15308.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Ordinance No. 1320 - Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Replacing the

Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal
Code to Incorporate New State Law Mandates

2. Current Version of Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code (Passed and Adopted
February 14,2046)

4

Public Works Director

Page 252

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



Attachment 1

Page 253

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



ORDINANCE NO. 1320

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
REPEALING AND REPLACING THE GARBAGE COLLECTION ORDINANCE AS

SET FORTH IN CHAPTER 8.32 OF'THE F'OLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE TO
INCORPORATE NEW STATE LAW MANDATES

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to repeal and re-enact Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal
Code to conform with new state law requirements pertaining to short lived climate pollutants and

the implementation of an organic waste separation program, including but not limited to SB 1383

adopted during the 2016legislative session and regulations finalized by CalRecycle on
November 3,2020, to take effect January 1,2022.

SECTION 2 REPEAL AND RE.ENACTMENT TO CODE

Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby repealed and re-enacted to read as

follows

Ghapter 8.32
WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION

Sections:
8.32.005 Definitions.
8.32.010 Citv responsibilitv.
8.32.020 Permission required.

2

8.32.040 Private removal requirements.
8.32.045 Self-hauler requirements.
8.32.050 Placing in containers-Generally.
8.32.080 Residential containerization.
8.32.090 Residential/ orohibited materials.
8.32.100 Residential container location and holiday requirements.
8.32.101 Service to below-ground containers prohibited.
8.32.1 10 Location requirements.
8.32.111 Fees for automated solid waste containers.
8.32.1 15 Commercial business containerization.
8.32.t20 enclosure-Business location
8.32.125 Container appearance and labeline.
8.32.130 Special solid waste service.
8.32.135 Collection charges-Established by Citv council.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page I of28

Page 254

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



8.32.140 Charges for collection and compliance administration.
8.32.150 Fees and charges-Due date.

8.32.160 Charges-Collection aulhsubl
8.32.170 Charges-Nonpayment-Violation.
8.32. I 80 Charges-Nonpayment-Discontinuance.
8.32. I 85 Charges-Contamination in containers.
8.32.190 Accumulation prohibited.
8.32.191 Sufficient service required.
8.32.t92 use ofcontainers.
8.32.210 Scaveneine of solid waste.
8.32.220 Waivers
8.32.230 Contamination of containerized recyclables and organic waste----contamination

monitoring.
8.32.240 Replacement fee for damaged containers.
8.32.250 Bulkv Waste Program requirements.
8.32.260 Frequency of residential service change requests.

8.32.265 Requirements for commercial edible food generators.

8.32.270 Requirements for edible food recovery organizations and services.
8.32.275 Inspections and investigations.
8.32.280 Enforcement.
8.32.285 Penalties.
8.32.290 Enforcement procedures-Notice to correct.
8.32.300 Remedies cumulative.

8.32.005 Definitions.
A. "Alley" shall mean a passage or way providing a secondary means of vehicular access to
abutting lots not intended for general traffic circulation.

B. "Automated container" shall mean a container owned by the City, made of commercially
manufactured plastic, steel, or other appropriate material, designed to be lifted, dumped, and
returned by City solid waste collection vehicles. Automated containers may be described as:

automated cans, cans, containers, dumpsters, roll-off or compactor containers.

C. "Biohazardous waste" shall have the same meaning as in California Health and Safety
Code Section I 17690(bX1).

D. "Bulky Waste Program" shall mean aCity program designed to provide collection of
bulky items that will not fit into a residential container. This may include, but is not limited to,
appliances, lumber, and toys. An appointment is required.

E. "Commercial business" shall mean a firm, partnership, proprietorship, joint-stock
company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall, industrial
facility, or a multifamily residential dwelling. A multi-family residential dwelling that consists of
fewer than five (5) units is not a Commercial Business for purposes of implementing this
ordinance.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page2 of28

Page 255

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



F. Commercial edible food generator" shall mean and include "tier one commercial edible

food generators" and ootier two commercial edible food generators".

G. ooCommunity composting" shall mean any activity that composts green material,
agricultural material, food material, or vegetative food material, alone or in combination, so long
as the total amount of feedstock and compost on-site at any one time does not exceed 100 cubic
yards and750 square feet.

H. "Compost" shall mean the product resulting from the controlled biological decomposition

of organic wastes that are source separated from the municipal solid waste stream, or which are

separated at a centralized facility.

I. ooConstruction and demolition waste" shall mean used or discarded materials resulting
from construction, renovation, remodeling, repair or demolition operations on any pavement,

house, commercial building, or other structure and such other materials as may be removed

during the normal cleanup process of such construction, renovation, remodeling, repair, or
demolition operations.

J. "Curbside recycling" shall mean the placement of recyclables in a City-supplied
container for collection by the City.

K. "Department" shall mean the City of Folsom Public Works Department.

L. ooDirector" shall mean the City of Folsom Public Works Director or his/her designee

unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.

M. "Division" shall mean the Solid Waste Division of the Department.

N. "Edible food" shall mean food intended for human consumption. For the purposes of this
ordinance "edible food" is not solid waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this

ordinance requires or authorizes the recovery of edible food that does not meet the food safety

requirements of the California Retail Food Code.

O. "Food recovery organization" shall mean an entity that engages in the collection or
receipt of edible food from commercial edible food generators and distributes that edible food to

the public for food recovery either directly or through other entities, including, but not limited to:

1. A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code;

2. A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the Health
and Safety code; and,

3. A nonprofit charitable temporary food facility as defined in Section II3842 of the

Health and Safety Code.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 3 of28
Page 256

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



P. "Food recovery service" shall mean a person or entity that collects and transports edible

food from a commercial edible food generator to a food recovery organization or other entities

for food recovery.

a. "Food service provider" shall mean an entity primarily engaged in providing food
services to institutional, governmental, commercial, or industrial locations of others based on

contractual arrangements with these types of organizations.

R. 'oFood waste" shall mean food scraps and trimmings and other putrescible waste that

result from food production, preparation, cooking, storage, consumption, or handling. Food

waste includes but is not limited to: meat, fish and dairy waste, fruit and vegetable waste and

grain waste.

S. "Garbage" shall mean discarded solid materials resulting from residential activities,
industrial and commercial operations. Garbage does not include useful commercial or industrial
by-products, recyclable materials, organic waste, construction and demolition waste, inert waste,

medical waste, hazardous waste, or biohazardous waste.

T. "Green waste" shall mean non-contaminated material composed of organic matter or
plant matter which is the result of seasonal variations or landscape and gardening activities.
Green waste includes, without limitation, grass clippings, shrubbery, leaves, tree trimmings,
branches, flowers, plant stalks, untreated wood, Christmas trees and other plant material. Green

waste does not include human waste, animal waste or manure.

U. "Grocery store" shall mean a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food,

dry goods, fresh fruits and vegetables, fresh meats, fish, and poultry, and any areathal is not
separately owned within the store where the food is prepared and served, including a bakery,

deli, and meat and seafood departments.

V. ooHazardous waste" shall mean those wastes resulting from products purchased by the
general public for use which, because of the quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical or
infectious characteristics, may pose a substantial known or potentialhazard to human health or
the environment when improperly treated, disposed or otherwise managed. Hazardous Waste

includes Household Hazardous Waste.

W. "High diversion organic waste processing facility" shall mean a facility that is in
compliance with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 18815.5(d) and meets or exceeds

an annual average mixed waste organic content recovery rate of 50 percent between January 1,

2022 and December 31,2024, and75 percent after January 1,2025, as calculated pursuant to 14

CCR Section 18815.5(e) for organic waste received from the ooMixed waste organic collection
stream" as defined in 14 CCR Section 17a02@)(11.5).

X. 'oHousehold hazardous waste" shall mean those hazardous waste materials discarded,

typically in small quantities, by households (as opposed to large quantities disposed by
businesses). Typical household hazardous waste includes used motor oil and oil filters, antifreeze

and other vehicle fluids, paints and varnish, pesticides, electronic waste and cleaning supplies.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 4 of28 Page 257

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



Household Hazardous Waste does not include waste generated in the course of operating a

business concern at a residence.

Y. "Illegal dumping" shall mean to throw or place, or direct another person to throw or
place, other than in receptacles provided therefor, upon the private land or waters of another
person without the permission of the owner, or upon public lands or waters, or upon any public
place, any solid waste, rubbish, trash, garbage, debris, recyclable material, organic waste, or
hazardous waste.

Z. 'olnert waste" shall mean waste materials that do not react in the environment including
but not limited to rock, concrete, brick, sand, soil, ceramics, and cured asphalt. 'olnert waste"

does not include any waste that meets the definition of oodesignated waste," as defined in Water

Code Secti on 13 17 3, or "Hazardous Waste".

AA. ooLarge event" shall mean an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a flea
market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an average

of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that includes, but
is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street

system, or other open space when being used for an event.

BB. ooLarge venue" shall mean a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an

average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of
the venue facility. For purposes of this ordinance, a site under common ownership or control that
includes more than one Large Venue that is contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a
single Large Venue.

CC. "Medical waste" shall mean waste which is generated or produced as a result of any of
the following actions: diagnosis, treatment, immunization, or care of humans or animals, the
production or testing of biologicals, sharps waste, waste generated in autopsy, necropsy, or
preparation of a body for final disposition such as cremation or interment, research pertaining to
any of the above, and waste generated in the cleanup of trauma scenes.

DD. "Multi-family dwelling" shall mean of, from, or pertaining to residential premises with
five (5) or more dwelling units. Multi-family dwellings do not include hotels, motels, nursing
homes or other congregate-care or institutional facilities, which are considered commercial
businesses.

EE. ooOrganic waste" shall mean solid waste containing material originated from living
organisms and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food waste, green

waste, landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, paper products,
printing and writing paper, manure, biosolids, digestate, and sludges.

FF. "Organic waste generator" shall mean a person or entity that is responsible for the initial
creation of organic waste.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 5 of28 Page 258

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



GG. "Organic waste processing facility" shall mean any facility selected by the City's
collector that is designed, approved by the City, or specifically designated by the City, operated,

and legally permitted for the purpose of receiving and processing organic waste.

HH. "Person" shall mean an individual, trust, firm, joint stock company, commercial business

concern, partnership, association, limited liability company, corporation, and public entity.

II. "Private driveway" shall mean a private roadway owned by a private person, business,

association or other private entity.

JJ. "Premises" shall mean a specific lot or area of real property served by the City or any

such lot or area in general. ooPremises" includes permanent and transient human dwellings and

places of accommodation, commerce, or recreation.

KK. "Prohibited container contaminants" shall mean:

1. Discarded materials placed in the designated recycling container that are not
acceptable source separated recyclables for the City's designated recycling
container.

2. Discarded materials placed in the designated organic waste container that are not
acceptable source separated organic waste for the City's designated organic waste

container.

3. Discarded materials placed in the garbage container that are acceptable source

separated recyclables and/or source separated organic waste.

4. Discarded materials placed in any container in violation of section 8.32.090.

5. Acceptable materials for each container are identified and updated regularly on
the Division website or as printed on a City container. They may also be found on
printed material including, but not limited to flyers, customer service notices, and

container labels.

LL. "Putrescible" shall mean to rot; subject to decomposition by microorganisms.

MM. "Recyclables" shall mean recyclable material including, but not limited to: newspaper,

magazines, mixed paper, plastic bottles, cardboard, glass bottles, aluminum and steel cans and

other materials published on the Division website, on the container or printed materials as

acceptable in designated recycling containers.

NN. "Rendering bin" is a closed leakproof containment for uncontaminated fats, oils and
grease from the food preparation process that can be used as a source of material that is free of
impurities and can be recycled into products.

OO. "Refuse" shall mean and include any of the following:

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 6 of28 Page 259

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



l. Garbage, waste, or rubbish.

2. Unused or discarded collections of materials, including but not limited to treated

or painted wood, bedding, crockery, tires or construction debris.

PP. "Residential" shall mean any premises in the City, whether or not owner-occupied,
designed for people to live in.

aa. "Rubbish" shall mean non-putrescible solid waste consisting of combustible and non-
combustible waste, such as ashes, paper, cardboard, tin cans, yard clippings, wood, glass,

bedding, crockery, or litter of any kind.

RR. "SB 1383" shall mean the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Reduction Strategy known as

Senate Bill 1383 which establishes the regulatory requirements for jurisdictions, generators,

haulers, solid waste facilities, and other entities to achieve the organic waste disposal reduction
targets codified in Section 39730.6 of the Health and Safety Code and Chapter 13.1 of division
30 of the Public Resource Code.

SS. "Self-hauler" shall mean a generator that collects solid waste at their premises or place of
business for the purpose of hauling those materials in their own vehicles to a permitted solid
waste facility in compliance with the requirements of this chapter.

TT. "Sha4)s" shall mean any device having acute rigid corners, edges, or protuberances

capable of cutting or piercing, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

1. Hypodermic needles, hypodermic needles with syringes, blades, needles with
attached tubing, syringes contained with biohazardous waste, acupuncture
needles, and root canal files.

2. Broken glass items, such as Pasteur pipettes and blood vials contaminated with
biohazardous waste.

3. Any item capable of cutting or piercing that is contaminated with trauma scene

waste.

4. Pen needles, intravenous needles, lancets, and other devices that are used to
penetrate the skin for the delivery of medications.

UU. "Source separated" means materials, including but not limited to commingled
recyclables, that have been separated or kept separate from the mixed solid waste stream, at the

point of generation, for the pulpose of additional sorting or processing those materials for
recycling or reuse in order to retum them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw
material for new, reused, or reconstituted products which meet the qualrty standards necessary to
be used in the marketplace.

Ordinance No. 1320
PageT of28 Page 260

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



VV. "Solid waste" shall mean all putrescible and non-putrescible solid, semi-solid, and liquid
wastes, including garbage,trash, organics, recyclables, refuse, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes,

demolition and construction wastes, abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and

industrial appliances, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes and other
discarded waste (whether of solid or semi-solid consistency); provided that such wastes do not
contain wastes which must be managed as hazardous wastes, or wastes which contain soluble
pollutants in concentrations which exceed applicable water quality objectives, or could cause

degradation of waters of the state.

WW. 'oTier one commercial edible food generator" shall mean a commercial edible food
generator that is one of the following:

1. Supermarkets with gross annual sales of $2,000,000 or more

2. Grocery store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 square feet.

3. Food service provider.

4. Wholesale food vendor

5. Food Distributor

XX. ooTier Two commercial edible food generator" shall mean a commercial edible food
generator that is one of the following:

1. Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater than
5,000 square feet.

2. Hotel with an on-site food facility and 200 or more rooms.

3. Health facility with an on-site food facility and 100 or more beds.

4. Largevenue.

5. Largeevent.

6. A state agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria facility
size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet.

7. A local education agency facility with an on-site food facility

YY. ooUniversal waste" shall have the same meaning as in Section6626l.9 of Title22,
California Code of Regulations as may be amended.

ZZ. "Venue facility" shall mean a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated stadium,
amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, aquarium, airport,

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 8 of28

Page 261

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, museum, theater, or other public
attraction facility.

8.32.010 City responsibility.
The City, its duly authorized agents, servants, or employees, shall have the exclusive right to
gather, collect, recycle, or dispose of all solid waste within the City.

8.32.020 Permission required.
A. No person may collect, gather, recycle, or dispose of solid waste within the City without
permission of the City council. (Ord. 1049 $ 2 (pa$,2006)

B. All residential dwellings and commercial businesses shall subscribe with the City's waste

hauling services for garbage and recycling, and the City or a City-approved hauling service for
organic waste. Commercial businesses that meet the self-hauler requirements in section 8.32.045
may self-haul recycling and organics in lieu of subscribing with the City for those services.

C. If recyclables and/or organic waste are hauled by another entity, the City may inspect
records, pursuant to section L09.025 of this Code, to verifr that the services are not being
provided for a net cost.

8.32.030 Burning, burying, on-site private disposal prohibited-Compost exception.
No person shall burn, bury, or otherwise dispose of or process solid waste on any premises in the
City except for composting of organic wastes in a compost process as specified in the Division's
Regional Recycling Backyard Composting Guide or Commercial Composting and Mulching
Operations Conditions for Approval.

8.32.0 40 Private removal requirem ents.
This chapter shall not be construed as prohibiting the owner or tenant of any premises in the City
from carrying away any such solid waste, on an infrequent or occasional basis in order to reduce

the amount to be taken away by the City or its duly authorized agents, but no person shall be

authorized by this section to carry away such solid waste if such person receives the benefits of
the use of any such solid waste for feed for poultry, hogs, or other livestock unless such person
receives permission from the Director. All solid waste removal by an owner or tenant of any
premises is subject to the self-haul requirements of 8.32.045. This section shall not be construed
as relieving any person from paying the regular solid waste fees.

8.32.045 Self-hauler requirements.
A. Self-haulers shall source separate all recyclable materials and organic waste generated

on-site from other solid waste or shall haul all collected wastes, to a high diversion waste
processing facility, which also processes organic waste

B. Self-haulers shall haul their source separated recyclable materials to a facility that
recovers those materials.

C. Self-haulers shall haul their source separated organic waste to a solid waste facility,
operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers source separated organic waste.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 9 of28

Page 262

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



Altematively, self-haulers may haul their source separated organic waste to a high diversion
organic waste processing facility.

D. Self-haulers that are commercial businesses shall keep for a minimum of 5 years a record
of the amount of organic waste delivered to each high diversion organic waste processing facility
or other solid waste facility, operation, activity, or property that properly processes or recovers

organic waste. This record shall be subject to inspection upon request of the City as specified by
SB1383, at least every 5 years. The records shall include the following information:

1. Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the waste including
the date and identiffing information about the facility.

2. The amount of material in cubic yards or tons transported by the generator to each

entity.

If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-site or employs scales

incapable of weighing the self-hauler's vehicle in a manner that allows it to determine the weight
of materials received, the self-hauler is not required to record the weight of material but shall
keep a record of the entities that received the organic waste.

8.32.050 Placing in containers-Generally.
The person responsible for any premises in the City shall gather the solid waste and put it into
the appropriate container for that premises.

8.32.080 Residential containerization.
All garbage, recyclables and organic waste shall be containerized as follows:

A.
City.

Garbage shall be placed in the standard plastic gray garbage containers provided by the

B. Organic waste shall be placed in standard plastic green containers provided by the City or
its authorized agent (black containers in service as of January I,2022 may continue to be used

for organic waste until January 1,2036).

1. Green waste shall not exceed four inches in diameter and shall not protrude above

the lid of the container. Green waste shall be loosely placed in the container.

2. Food waste shall be contained in compostable bags.

C. Recyclables shall be placed loosely (not in bags) in the standard plastic blue container
provided by the City.

D. All items shall be containerized with the lid completely closed for automated container
services. Material shall not be packed tightly in the containers and must fall freely when the can

is tipped.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 10 of28

Page 263

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



B

F. Items not contained within automated cans will not be collected, except by appointment
through the Bulky Waste Program as defined under Section 8.32.250

G. Residential containers shall not exceed ninety-six gallons and shall have a total weight
limit of two hundred pounds per container.

8.32.090 ResidentiaUcommercial prohibited materials.
A. Unless otherwise permiued by written contract with the City, the following materials will
not be collected in any City provided container:

1. Dirt, rocks, sod, asphalt, brick, concrete, large metal objects, tile, landscaping
bark, furniture;

2. Construction and demolition debris;

3. Appliances, tires, tree stumps;

4. Oversized or excess waste that prevents the lid from closing or material from
falling freely from the container during normal service procedures.

The following materials will not be collected in any City provided container:

1. Liquids, hot ashes, coal;

2. Flammables;

3. Live ammunition;

4. Household hazardous waste;

5. Hazardous waste.

C. No person shall place in any City container any wearing apparel, bedding or other refuse

from homes or other places where highly infectious or contagious diseases have prevailed; any
explosive substance, poison, hazardous chemical, offal, or fecal matter.

D. Disposal of medical or biohazardous waste shall be performed through a licensed
collection and disposal company, which complies with all applicable laws and regulations,
including, but not limited to, California Health and Safety Code Sections 117600 through
1 1 8360.

8.32.100 Residential container location and holiday requirements.
A. Residences Having Street Frontage Only. Residential containers for garbage, recycling
and organic waste shall be placed for collection at the street curb or edge of road right-of-way by
6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays included, and removed from the street and

screened from public view by 6:00 a.m. of the following day. The wheels of the containers must

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 1l of28

Page 264

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



be placed in the gutter with the handle facing the residence. Containers must be at least three feet

from any obstruction such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences, lampposts, portable

basketball hoops, mailboxes, or other automated containers. Containers shall not block
pedestrian access.

B. Residences with Alley Access. Residential containers for garbage, recycling and organic

waste shall be placed for collection adjacent to the alley property line, with direct access from
the alley by 6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays included. The base of the container

must be placed on a stable, level surface with the handle facing the residence. Containers must be

at least three feet from any obstructions such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences,

portable basketball hoops, lampposts, mailboxes, or other automated containers.

C. Residences with Private Driveways. Residential containers for garbage, recycling and

organic waste shall be placed for collection at the nearest public road right-of-way by 6:00 a.m.

on scheduled collection days, holidays included, and removed from the right-of-way and

screened from public view by 6:00 a.m. of the following day. The container must be placed on a
level surface with the handle facing the shoulder of the road. Containers must be at least three

feet from any obstructions such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences, portable basketball
hoops, lampposts, mailboxes, or other automated containers. Containers shall not block
pedestrian access.

D. Collection trucks may come back for garbage, recycling, and organic waste put out after
the truck has passed a residence upon request, subject to payment of an extra pickup service

charge.

E. For purposes of this section, 'oscreened" means blocked from public view from the street

or public right-of-way with a permanent fence, enclosure, landscaping, or other comparable
facility as approved by the Director.

8.32.101 Service to below-ground containers prohibited.
City personnel shall not service containers stored below the surface of the ground.

8.32.1 10 Location requirements.
The City shall not collect solid waste from above the first floor of any premises, nor from the

basement of any premises. City shall not collect solid waste when containers are not placed at a
position and in a manner that allows for collection.

8.32.111 Fees for automated solid waste containers.
A. Fee Established. Each dwelling unit to be serviced by City-owned automated container
collection shall pay a fee equal to the then cost of providing the containers. The fee shall be

adjusted on July l st of each fiscal year by the Director to reflect the most recent cost per

container actually purchased by the City, plus the cost of labor and equipment necessary to
deliver the containers to the new dwelling.

B. Ownership. The City shall retain ownership of all City provided containers. Persons

owning or renting property served by such containers are responsible for the security of the

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 12 of28 Page 265

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



containers. In the event of fire, theft, or other damage or disappearance of a container from the
property, a replacement container shall be obtained from the City upon payment of the

established fees. Persons owning or renting property served by such containers shall, upon

vacating the premises, leave the primary containers for the next occupant in a secure location
upon the premises. Persons who have ordered an extra container shall, upon vacating the
premises, contact the City to have the extra container removed. Persons owning or renting
property served by such containers are responsible for the appearance and cleanliness ofthe
container.

C. Replacement Containers. A replacement container may be obtained upon payment of the
fee established by City Council. Replacement of a container no longer usable due to normal wear

shall not be subject to a replacement fee.

8.32.115 Commercial business containerization.
All garbage, recyclables and organic waste shall be containerized as follows:

A. Garbage shall be placed in the standard gray garbage containers provided by the City.

B. Organic waste shall be placed in standard green or brown containers (or containers with a

green, yellow, or brown lid) provided by the City or a City approved hauler.

C. Recyclables shall be placed in the standard blue container or containers with a blue lid
provided by the City (white containers in service as of January 1,2022 may continue to be used

for recyclables until January 1,2036).

8.32.120 Container/dumpster enclosure-Business location.
A. Solid waste containers/dumpster enclosures at places of business shall be located in such

place as shall be convenient to the Division and must be approved by the Director. City-approved
solid waste enclosures are to be used for solid waste removal containers only unless approved in
advance by the Director. Storage of other equipment or material is prohibited. Enclosure
maintenance is the responsibility of the landlord, property owner, property manager, or
management company. Enclosures shall be maintained in working order and floors shall be free

of debris. The property owner shall be liable for damage to or spills from any other equipment
stored in the solid waste enclosure.

B. All items shall be containerized with the lid completely closed for automated container
services. Material shall not be packed tightly in the containers and must fall freely when the

container is tipped.

C. Items not contained within automated containers will not be collected, except by
appointment.

D. Commercial containers shall have a not to exceed weight limit of 1,800 pounds per

container.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page l3 of28

Page 266

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



E. New commercial business properties shall provide enclosure space for garbage,

recyclable, and organic waste containers, including rendering bins as applicable, for the use of
the property. Should the use of an existing commercial business property change to require a

rendering bin, the business served by the rendering bin shall be responsible for ensuring that the
rendering bin is stored in a secure location that does not impede waste collection services.

8.32.125 Commercial Containers required, placement, appearance and labeling.
Customers that are commercial businesses shall:

A. Supply and allow access to an adequate number, size and location of containers with
sufficient labels and colors (conforming with requirements in Section 8.32.115) for employees,

contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with the collection services or, if self-hauling, per

the commercial businesses' instructions to support compliance with its self-haul program, in
accordance with Section 8.32.045.

B. Excluding multi-family dwellings, provide containers for the collection of source

separated organic waste materials and source separated recyclable materials in all indoor and

outdoor areas where disposal containers for materials generated by that business are provided for
customers. Such containers do not need to be provided in restrooms. If a commercial business

does not generate any of the materials that would be collected in one type of container, then the
business does not have to provide that particular container in areas where disposal containers are

provided for customers. The containers provided by the business shall have:

1. A body or lid that conforms to the color requirements specified in Section
8.32.r15.

2. Container labels that include language or graphic images, or both, indicating the
primary material accepted and the primary materials prohibited in that container,
or containers with imprinted text or graphic images that indicate the primary
materials accepted and primary materials prohibited in the container.

3. Notwithstanding subsection (B)(1), a commercial business is not required to
replace functional containers, including containers purchased prior to January 1,

2022, that do not comply with the requirements of subsection (B)(1) before the

end of the useful life of those containers, or before January 1,2036, whichever
occurs first.

8.32.130 Special solid waste service.
A. Container Service. The tenant, occupant, owner, or lessee of any premises in the City
may temporarily obtain additional City automated container(s) for the pu{pose of disposing of
garbage or source separated solid waste. The person requesting this special trash service is
responsible to pay for the service in accordance with a fee set by the City council. The City will
be responsible for delivery and pickup of the automated container to and from the premises of
the person requesting service.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 14 of28

Page 267

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



B. Container/Roll-Off Service. The tenant, occupant, owner, or lessee of any premises in the
City may temporarily obtain a City dumpster or roll-off container, in addition to standard

services, for the pulpose of disposing of garbage or source separated solid waste. The person

requesting this special trash service is responsible to pay for the service in accordance with a fee

set by the City council. The City will be responsible for delivery and pickup of the dumpster or
roll-off container to and from the premises of the person requesting service.

C. Collection of Household Hazardous Waste (HHW). The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee

of any residential premises in the City may request special collection of household hazardous

waste through appointment with the Division. Commercial businesses may request special
collection of universal wastes through appointment with the Division.

D. Disposal of Medical and Biohazardous Waste. The tenant, occupant, owner, or lessee of
any premises in the City shall not dispose of any medical or biohazardous waste in a City-owned
collection container. Disposal of medical or biohazardous waste shall be performed through a

licensed collection and disposal company, which complies with all applicable laws and

regulations, including, but not limited to, California Health and Safety Code

Sections 117600 through 118360.

8.32.135 Collection charges-Established by City council.
All charges for solid waste collection shall be established or modified by resolution of the City
council. The Director shall, with the approval of the City Manager, recommend changes in the
collection charges when appropriate.

8.32.140 Charges for collection and compliance administration.
A. Residential.

1. A property owner of each and every dwelling, house, or residence shall be

responsible for paying to the City, afixed minimum solid waste fee based upon
current established solid waste rates which shall be set by the City council. Such

fee, based upon service of one collection per week for garbage and organic waste,

and one collection every other week for recyclables, applies and is payable
without consideration of whether there is any garbage, recyclables, or organic
waste to remove from the premises.

2. Residential solid waste service may be discontinued upon written request for a
period of no less than two months when a dwelling, house, or residence will be

unoccupied. Municipal service charges may be discontinued pursuant to section
3.20.020 of this code.

3. For collection of additional containers beyond those covered by the fixed
minimum charges established in this chapter, the collection charge shall be set by
resolution of the City council for each additional garbage, recyclable, or organic
waste container.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 15 of28

Page 268

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



4. An additional or special pickup may be requested beyond the minimum servlce

required by this chapter. Each such additional or special pickup shall be subject to
a fixed fee. The fixed fee for additional or special pickups shall be set by
resolution of the City council.

B. Commercial

1. A property owner of each and every commercial business shall be responsible for
paying to the City, afixed minimum charge as set forth by the City council as a

solid waste fee. Such fixed minimum charge is based upon service of one

collection per week, without consideration of whether there is any solid waste to
remove from the premises.

A landlord, property owner, property manager, or management company with
multiple tenants who must share a commercial container shall be responsible for
the solid waste utility bill of the tenants and compliance with S81383.

2. Commercial Container, Roll-Off, and Additional Services. The Director may

approve the placing of solid waste in containers other than automated cans such as

roll-off containers. The fixed fee and additional service charges will be set by

resolution of the City council. Such charge shall include all costs to the City,
including, but not limited to, labor, equipment operation, maintenance and

depreciation, administrative overhead, recycling, landfill closure and landfill
operation costs. Standard commercial charges for commercial containers and roll-
off containers may be established by the Director subject to the approval of the

City council.

3. An additional or special pickup may be requested beyond the minimum service

required by this chapter. Each such additional or special pickup shall be subject to
a fixed fee. The fixed fee for additional or special pickups shall be set by
resolution of the City council.

4. Commercial customers are also charged a monthly recycling compliance fee, as

established by the City council, for the administration of state mandated recycling
programs. The monthly recycling compliance fee is waived if the commercial
customer subscribes to City recycling collection service.

C. Adjustment of Bills for Billing Enor

1. Where the City overcharges or undercharges a customer's solid waste bill as the

result of a billing error, the City may render an adjusted bill for the amount of the

undercharge, without interest, and shall issue a refund or credit to the customer
for the amount of the overcharge, without interest, computed back to the date that
the City determines the billing error commenced, except that the period of
adjustment shall not exceed one year for a refund and six months for an

undercharge.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 16 of28 Page 269

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



8.32.150 Fees and charges-Due date.
Solid waste service fees and charges are due and payable as described in section3.20.070 of this
code.

8.32.160 Charges-Collection authority.
The City finance department shall collect all charges and fees with the assistance of the City
attorney as necessary or appropriate.

8.32.17 0 Charges-Nonp aym ent-Violation.
The nonpayment by any person of the solid waste fee after notice given by the City finance
department by bill rendered to such person, or left on the premises, is a violation of this chapter

8.32. I 80 Charges-Nonpayment-Discontinuance.
The City shall have the right in addition to any other remedies to discontinue solid waste service

for nonpayment of solid waste fees or charges.

8.32.185 Charges-Contamination in containers.
The City shall establish fees or charges for contamination found in containers pursuant to Section
8.32.230. Fees or charges shall be established by resolution of the City council.

8.32.190 Accumulation prohibited.
No person shall permit solid waste to accumulate upon the premises owned, occupied or
managed by such person.

8.32.191 Suffi cient service required.
A. The person responsible for any premises or commercial business in the City shall accept

solid waste collection service sufficient to remove garbage and organic waste generated by or
accumulating weekly from the premises and recyclables generated by or accumulating every
other week from the premises. The Director may order additional service for any premises or
commercial business where the Department determines necessary, at the customer's expense. If
additional service is needed, a customer may use additional containers or select a larger-capacity
container from the container choices available from the Department. Commercial-route
customers may also request container collection more frequently than once a week.

B. All Residential customers shall:

l. Subscribe to the City's organic waste collection services for all organic waste
generated. The City shall have the right to review the number and size of a
customer's containers to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of
collection service for proper separation and containment of materials; and,

customers shall adjust the number or size of containers for collection services as

requested by the City. Generators may additionally manage their organic waste by
preventing or reducing their organic waste (source reduction), managing organic
waste on site (composting), andlor using a community composting site.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 17 of28

Page 270

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



2. Participate in the City's organic waste collection services by placing designated
materials in designated containers.

3. Customers shall not place prohibited container contaminants in collection
containers.

C. All customers that are commercial businesses shall:

1. Subscribe to the City's collection services and comply with requirements of those

services. The City shall have the right to review the number and size of a
customer's containers and frequency of collection to evaluate adequacy of
capacity provided for each type ofcollection service; for proper separation and

containment of materials; and commercial businesses shall adjust their service
level for their collection services as requested by the City.

2. Participate in the City's organic waste collection service(s) by placing designated
materials in designated containers.

3. Customers shall not place prohibited container contaminants in collection
containers.

4. If a commercial business wants to self-haul recycling or organic waste, it must
meet the self-hauler requirements in Section 8.32.045 of this ordinance.

5. Nothing in this Section prohibits a customer from preventing or reducing waste
generation (source reduction), managing organic waste on site (composting), or
using a community composting site.

8.32.192 Exclusive use of containers.
A. It is unlawful for any person to dump or place any material into or to utilize any solid
waste container, bin, or dumpster without consent of the property owner or tenant in charge of
the property.

B. It is unlawful for any person to enter into a solid waste container, whether or not a notice
has been placed on such container.

8.32.210 Scavenging of solid waste.
No person shall remove solid waste from residential containers or commercial containers that are

designated for collection by the City or its authorized agent.

8,32.220 Waivers.
A. Residential. In exceptional circumstances, a waiver may be granted to individual(s) from
participating in residential curbside recycling and/or organics recycling, upon approval from the
Director in his/her sole discretion. The Director may grant one or more of the following types of
waivers to a residential generator of solid waste:

Ordinance No. 1320

Page 18 of28
Page 271

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



1. Reasonable Accommodation. The Director may waive a property owner's
obligation to comply with the requirements of Section 8.32.191(B) if the property
owner provides documentation, or the City has evidence from staff, or any
medical professional, demonstrating that compliance with this Chapter would act

as a barrier to fair housing opportunities or health-related reasons prevent
individual(s) from complying.

2. Physical Space Waiver. The Director may waive the obligation to comply with
the requirements of Section 8.32.191(B) if the property owner provides
documentation, or the City has evidence from staff, licensed architect, or licensed
engineer, demonstrating that the premises contain severe space constraints which
prevent the placement of a recycling and/or organic container at the household.

B. Commercial. In exceptional circumstances, a waiver may be granted to a commercial
business from participating in recycling and/or organics recycling, upon approval from the
Director in his/her sole discretion. The Director may grant one or more of the following types of
waivers to a commercial business that is a generator of solid waste:

1. De Minimis Waiver: The Director may waive a commercial business' obligation
to comply with some or all of the organic waste requirements of this chapter if the
commercial business provides documentation or the City has evidence
demonstrating that:

a. The commercial business' total solid waste collection service is two cubic
yards or more per week and organic waste subject to collection in the
designated recycling container or designated organic waste container
comprises less than 20 gallons per week per applicable container of the
business' total waste; or

b. The commercial business' total solid waste collection service is less than two
cubic yards per week and organic waste subject to collection in the designated
recycling container or the designated organic waste container comprises less

than 10 gallons per week per applicable container of the business' total waste.

c. Any commercial business granted a de minimis waiver shall notiS the City if
circumstances change such that the organic waste generated exceeds the
threshold required for the waiver, in which case the waiver will be rescinded.

d. Any commercial business granted a de minimis waiver shall provide to the
City wriuen verification of eligibility for the de minimis waiver every 5 years.

2. Physical Space Waiver: The Director may waive a commercial business'
obligations to comply with some or all of the recyclable materials andlor organic
waste collection service requirements if the City has evidence from its own stafl
aCity approved hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer demonstrating that

Ordinance No. 1320
Page 19 of28 Page 272

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



the premises contain severe space constraints which prevent the placement of the

collection containers required for compliance with this chapter.

3. Waivers will not be granted for any commercial business that sells or produces

food.

C. Any customer requesting a waiver shall make the request in writing on an application
provided by the Division.

D. Waivers are conditioned upon and subject to: (1) the requesting party continuing to reside

at the location specified in the application; nd (2) the circumstances justifuing the waiver
remaining unchanged. Customers who are granted a waiver must notifu the Director, in writing,
of any change in the circumstances supporting the grant of waiver within thirty days of such
change in circumstances.

E. Waivers may be revoked at arry time at the discretion of the Director

8.32.230 Contamination of containerized recyclables and organic wast+Contamination
monitoring.
A. No person shall place nonrecyclable materials into automated containers, dumpsters, or
roll-off containers that are designated for the collection of recyclables or organic waste.

B. To the extent practical through education, training, inspection, and/or other measures,

commercial businesses, shall prohibit employees from placing materials in a container not
designated for those materials per the City's collection service or, if self-hauling, per the
commercial business's instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul program, in
accordance with Section 8.32.045.

C. Commercial businesses shall periodically inspect organic waste, recycling, and garbage

containers for contamination and inform employees and agents, including but not limited to
custodial vendors if containers are contaminated and of the requirements to keep contaminants
out of those containers.

D. Commercial businesses shall annually provide information to employees, contractors,
tenants, and customers about organic waste recovery requirements and about proper sorting of
source separated organic waste and source separated recyclable materials.

E. Commercial businesses shall provide education information to new tenants before or
within fourteen (14) days of occupation of the premises. The education information provided
shall describe requirements to keep source separated organic waste and source separated
recyclable materials separate from garbage and the location of containers and the rules governing
their use at eachproperty.

F. Commercial businesses shall provide or arrange access for the City or its representative
to their properties during all inspections conducted in accordance with Section8.32.270 to
confirm compliance with the requirements of this ordinance.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page20 of28 Page 273

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



A.

B.
feet)

G. Commercial businesses shall accommodate and cooperate with the collector's remote

monitoring program for inspection of the contents of containers for prohibited container
contaminants, to evaluate generator' s compliance.

8.32.240 Replacement fee for damaged containers.
The Director shall have the authority to assess the cost for the replacement of any containers that

have been damaged or destroyed due to the customer's negligence or misuse.

8.32.250 Bulky Waste Program requirements.
Any and all materials deposited curbside for the purposes of participating in the Bulky Waste

Program must meet the following criteria:

All pickups must be secured by an appointment.

All piles must be no more than five cubic yards in size (seven feet by six feet by three

C. All materials must be placed curbside, no earlier than one day prior to the scheduled pick-
up, and by 6:00 a.m. on the scheduled collection date.

D. Material must be placed at the edge of the street, not within the gutter area, not on a
sidewalk, or on private property.

E. The Bulky Waste Program will only accept materials that consist of:

1. Green waste;

2. Lumber/wood;

3. Furniture/mattresses;

4. Lawn mowers (remove gas and oil);

5. Barbeques (remove propane tanks);

6. Metals;

7. Large appliances;

8. Tires.

Any materials placed curbside that do not meet the above requirements shall be considered
illegal dumping and any person who commits such act(s) shall be subject to the penalties set

forth in Folsom Municipal Code Section 8.34.040.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page2l of28

Page 274

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



B.

C.

8.32.260 Frequency of residential service change requests.
Residents will be allowed two service change requests after receiving the residential garbage,

recycling, and organic waste cans at no charge for one year from implementation of the City's
organics recycling program applicable to all categories of service. New residents will be allowed
one service change request after receiving initial residential garbage, recycling and organic waste

cans at no charge for one year from the start date of their utility account applicable to all
categories of service. Additional service change requests will be charged an administrative fee as

set by resolution of the City council.

The categories of service change include:

A. Changing the size and number of garbage containers.

Changing the size and number of recycling containers.

Changing the size and number of organic waste containers

8,32,265 Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators.
A. Tier One commercial edible food generators shall comply with the requirements of this
section commencing on January I,2022, and Tier Two commercial edible food generators shall
comply commencing on January 1,2024 or sooner.

B. Large venue or large event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food to
be provided by others, shall require food facilities operating at the large venue or large event to
comply with the requirements of this section, commencing on January 1,2024 or sooner.

C. Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following requirements:

1. Arrange to recover the maximum amount of edible food that would otherwise be

disposed.

2. Contract with or enter into a written agreement with food recovery organizations
or food recovery services for: (i) the collection of edible food for food recovery;
or, (ii) acceptance of the edible food that the commercial edible food generator

self-hauls to the food recovery organization for food recovery.

3. Shall not intentionally spoil edible food that is capable of being recovered by a
food recovery otganization or a food recovery service.

4. Allow the City's designated enforcement entity or designated third party
enforcement entrty to access the premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR
Section 18991.4.

5. Keep records that include the following information:

Ordinance No. 1320
Page22 of28

Page 275

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



a. A list ofeach food recovery service or organization that collects or receives its
edible food pursuant to a contract or written agreement established under 14

CCR Section 18991.3(b).

b. A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR
Section 18991.3(b).

c. A record of the following information for each of those food recovery services

or food recovery organizations:

i. The name, address and contact information of the food recovery service or
food recov ery organization.

ii. The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the food
recovery service or food recovery organization.

iii. The established frequency that food will be collected or self-hauled.

iv. The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month, collected
or self-hauled to a food recovery service or food recovery organization for
food recovery.

D. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to limit or conflict with the protections
provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 2017, the Federal Good
Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of
2017.

8.32.270 Requirements for Edible Food Recovery Organizations and Services.
A. Food recovery services collecting or receiving edible food directly from commercial
edible food generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR Section
18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records:

l. The name, address, and contact information for each commercial edible food
generator from which the service collects edible food.

2. The quantity in pounds of edible food collected from each commercial edible food
generator per month.

3. The quantity in pounds of edible food transported to each food recovery
organization per month

4. The name, address, and contact information for each food recovery organization
that the food recovery service transports edible food to for food recovery.

Ordinance No. 1320
PageZ3 of28

Page 276

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



B. Food recovery organizations collecting or receiving edible food directly from commercial
edible food generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR Section
18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records:

1. The name, address, and contact information for each commercial edible food
generator from which the organization receives edible food.

2. The quantity in pounds of edible food received from each commercial edible food
generator per month.

3. The name, address, and contact information for each food recovery service that
the organization receives edible food from for food recovery.

C. Food recovery organizations and food recovery services that have their primary address

physically located in the City and contract with or have written agreements with one or more
commercial edible food generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) shall report to the

City the total pounds of edible food recovered in the previous calendar year from the Tier One

and Tier Two commercial edible food generators they have established a contract or written
agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) no later than July 1 annually.

D. In order to support edible food recovery capacity planning assessments or other studies

conducted by the County, City, special district that provides solid waste collection services, or its
designated entity, food recovery services and food recovery organizations operating in the City
shall provide information and consultation to the City, upon request, regarding existing, or
proposed new or expanded, food recovery capacity that could be accessed by the City and its
commercial edible food generators. A food recovery service or food recovery organization
contacted by the City shall respond to such request for information within 60 days unless a

shorter timeframe is otherwise specified by the City.

8.32.275 Inspectionsandlnvestigations

A. The City's representatives are authorized to conduct inspections and investigations, at

random or otherwise, of any collection container, collection vehicle loads, or transfer,
processing, or disposal facility for materials collected from customers, or source separated

materials, to confirm compliance with this chapter by organic waste generators, commercial
businesses, property owners, commercial edible food generators, haulers, self-haulers, food
recovery services, and food recovery organizations, subject to applicable laws.

l. This Section does not allow the City to enter the interior of a private residential
property for inspection.

2. For the purposes of inspecting cofirmercial business containers for compliance
with this chapter, the City may conduct container inspections for prohibited
container contaminants using remote monitoring, which may involve installation
of remote monitoring equipment on or in any collection container. Commercial
businesses shall accommodate and cooperate with the remote monitoring.

Ordinance No. 1320
Page24 of28

Page 277

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



B. Any regulated entity shall provide or arrange for access during all inspections (with the

exception of residential property interiors) and shall cooperate with the City's representative
during such inspections and investigations. Such inspections and investigations may include
confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, edible food recovery activities,
records, or any other requirement of this chapter.

C. Failure to provide or anange for: (i) access to an entity's premises; or (ii) access to
records for any inspection or investigation is a violation of this section.

8.32.280 Enforcement.
A. This chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 1 .08 to 1 . 10 of the

Folsom Municipal Code and any other enforcement mechanism available to the City under the

Folsom Municipal Code and/or applicable law.

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this chapter, the Director shall enforce the
provisions of this chapter.

C. Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations. The City may extend the compliance
deadlines set forth in a Notice of Violation issued in accordance with Section 8.32.290 if it finds
that there are extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the respondent that make
compliance within the deadlines impracticable, including the following:

1. Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other emergencies or
natural disasters;

2. Delays not related to fault of the respondent, in obtaining discretionary permits or
other government agency approvals; or,

3. Deficiencies in organic waste recycling infrastructure or edible food recovery
capacity and the City is under a corrective action plan with CalRecycle pursuant
to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those deficiencies.

D. Education Period for Residential and Multi-Family. Beginning January I,2022, and
through December 31,2023, if the City determines that aresidence or multi-family dwelling is
not in compliance with this chapter, it shall provide educational materials to the entity describing
its obligations under this chapter and a notice that compliance is required, and that violations
may be subject to administrative civil penalties. Except for multi-family dwellings, there will be

no education period for commercial businesses.

E. Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance. If the City determines that an organic waste
generator, self-hauler, hauler, Tier one or Tier two commercial edible food generator, food
recovery organization, food recovery service, or other entity is not in compliance with this
chapter, it shall document the noncompliance or violation, issue a notice of violation, and take

enforcement action as needed.

Ordinance No. 1320

Page25 of28
Page 278

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



8.32.285 Penalties.
A. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this chapter, a violation of this chapter shall be an
administrative violation as defined in Section 1.08.020 of this code. In addition to enforcement
by any procedure set forth in Chapters 1.08 to I .10, except as provided in this section, any

violation of this chapter shall be punishable as an infraction and shall be punishable by:

1. For a first violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $50-$100 per
violation.

2. For a second violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $100-$200 per
violation.

3. For a third violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $250-$500 per
violation.

4. Subsequent violations of this chapter shall be subject to the range of monetary
sanctions set forth in Section 1.09.012(A)(5) and may be imposed on a per day
basis for each violation.

B. Each and every day during which a violation of this chapter continues, except in cases in
which a given time has been allowed for corrective action to be taken, shall be a separate and
distinct offense.

C. Violations of Section 8.32.090(8), (C), and (D); 8.32.190, and8.32.210 shall be a
misdemeanor, which shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed one thousand dollars, or by
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than six months, or by both such fine and
imprisonment.

D. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Chapter 1.09 of this code
shall be available for enforcement of the provisions of this chapter.

8.32.290 Enforcem ent procedures-Notice to co rrect.
A. Prior to the suspension, revocation, or denial of any permit, or the assessment of any fee,
penalty, or charge, or the commencement of any other enforcement action pursuant to this
chapter, the enforcement authority may pursue the procedures set forth in Chapter 1.09 of this
code. The rights to judicial review set forth in Sections 1.09.050 through 1.09.059 of this code
shall apply.

B. A notice to correct shall not be required to commence the administrative hearing
procedures set forth in Chapters I .08 through I . 1 0 of this code. Pursuant to Section L09 .024(A)
of this code, a notice of administrative violation shall be served in accordance with the
provisions of Section 1.09.027 of this code.

8.32.300 Remedies cumulative.
The remedies set forth in this chapter are cumulative to any other remedy available to the City.
Pursuit of one remedy shall not preclude any other remedy, and nothing contained in this chapter

Ordinance No. 1320
Page26 of28

Page 279

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



shall limit or be deemed to prevent the City from pursuing any other remedy available to the City
under the City's code or any other applicable law.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MANDATORY DUTY OF CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner
that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards
persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis of civil liability for
damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part thereof
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would have passed each
section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase

be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 6 EFF'ECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and
adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on November 9,2021, and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on December 14,202t.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the

City of Folsom, State of California, this day of
vote:

202lby the following roll-call

AYES: Councilmember(s):

Ordinance No. 1320
Page27 of28

Page 280

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1320
Page28 of28

Page 281

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



Attachment 2

Page 282

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



ORDINANCE NO. IO49

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM REPEALING AND REPLACING
TITLE 8, CHAPTER 8.32 OF THE FOLSOM MLJNICIPAL CODE CONCERI{ING

GARBAGE COLLECTION

TFIE CITY COUNCIL OF T}IE CITY OF FOLSOM DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this ordinance is to rcpeal and replace Chapter 8.32 of Title 8, of the
Fol$om Municipal Code (the "code") pertaining to Garbage Collection. Chapter 8.32 will
be amended to align the code requirements with current and future services to be
provided by the Utilities Depanment.

SECTION 2

Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code is repealed and replaced to read as follows:

Chapter 8.32

GARBAGE COLLECTION

Sections
8.32.00s
8.32.010
832020
8.32.030
8.32.040
8.32,050
8.32.070
8.32.080
8.32.090
8.32.100
8,32.10r
8.32.1l0
8.32.1 I I
8.32.r20
8.32.130
8.32.135
8.32.r40
8.32. rs0
8.32.160
8.32.170
8.32.180
8.32.190
8.32.191

Definitions.
City responsibility.
Permission required.
Burning, burying, on-site private disposal prohibited; Compost Exception.
Pri vate removal requi rements.
Placing in containers-Generally.
Department--Removal intervals.
Residenti al contai nerization.
Residential/Commercial prohibited materials.
Residential receptacle location and holiday requirements.
Service to below-ground containers prohibited.
Location requirements.
Automated solid waste containers
Con tai ner/D umpster Enc I osure - B us i ness Locati on
Special solid waste service.
Collection charges-Established by City Council
Charges for Collection
Fees and Charges--Due date.
Charges--Col lecti on authority.
Charges-Nonpayment--Violation.
Charges-Nonpayment--Di sconti nuance.
Accumulation prohibited.
Suffi cient Service Required

Ordlnance No. 1049
Page 1 of 14

Page 283

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



8.32.r92
8.32,2t0
8.32,220
8.32.230
8.32.240
8.32.250
8.32.260
8.32.270
8.32.280
8.32.290
8.32.300

Exclusive use of containers.
Scavenging of recyclable materials.
Exception from participation in Residential Curbside Recycling
Contamination of containerized recyclables & green waste.

Replacement fee for damaged containers
Nei ghborhood Cleanup requirements.
Frequency of Residential Service Change Requests

Enforcement,
Penalties.
Enforcement procedures, notice to correct.
Remedies Cumulative.

8.32.005 Definitions

A. "Alley Ways" Shall mean a recorded easement for public access near a residential property

or between residential properties.

B. 'Eiohazardous Waste" Shall mean laboratory waste including human or animal specimen

cultures from medical and pathology laboratories. Cultures and stock of infectious agents from
research and industrial laboratories. Waste from the production of bacteria, viruses, spores,

discarded live and attenuated vaccines used in human health care or rcsearch, discarded animal
vaccines. Human or animal surgery specimens or tissues, which may contain infectious agents

known to be contagious to humans. Waste containing discarded materials contaminated with
excrction exudates or secretions from humans that are required to be isolated by infection control
staff the attending physician or local health officer to protect others from highly communicable
diseases.

C. "Containertt Shall mean commercially manufactured plastic or steel solid waste containers
owned by the City designed to bc lifted, dumped and returned by City solid waste packers.
Containers may be described as: automated carts, bins, commercial containers, drop box, roll-off
or compactor contai ners.

D. "Curbside Recycling" Shall mean the placement of recyclables in a city supplied cart for
collection by the city.

E. "Department" Shall mean the City of Folsom, Utilities Department

F. "Director" Shall mean the City of Folsom Director of Utilities or his/her designee unless
othenvise stated or indicated by context.

G. "Division" Shall mean the Utilities Department, Solid Waste Division.

H. "Garbage" Shall mean all putr€scible animal and vegetable waste resulting from packaging,
storing, handling, preparation, cooking and consumption of food and all other materials not
defined as recyclables or yard waste. Garbage to be removed from places of business shall
consist of garbage as above defined and packing boxes, crates and packing materials.

Ordinarrce No. 1049
Page 2 of 14

Page 284

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



I. ,,Hazardous Waste" Shall mean those wastes resulting from products purchased by the

general public for use which, because of the quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical or

infectious characteristics, may pose a substantial known or potcntial hazard to human health or

the environment when improperly trcated, disposed or othenvise managed. It shall be unlawful
for any person to deposit for collection in any receptacle(s) provided Pursuant to this Chapter any

item of "hazardous waste" as defined by an applicable federal, state or local law.

J. (,Household Hazardous Waste" Shall mean those hazardous waste materials discarded,

typically in small quantities, by households (as opposed to large quantities disposed by business),

Typical household hazardous waste includes used motor oil and oil filters, antifreeze and other

vehicle fluids, paints and vamish, pesticides, electronic waste and cleaning supplies.

K. ,,Illegal Dumpingl' Shall mean to throw or place, or direct another person, to throw or place,

other than in receptacles provided therefore, upon the private land or waters of another person,

without the permission of the owner, or upon public lands or waters, or upon any public place

any rubbish, trash, garbage, debris, or recyclable material.

L. "Inertstt Shall mean waste materials that do not react in the environment.

M. ,.Medical Waste" Shall mean waste which is generated or produced as a result of any of the

following actions: diagnosis, treatment, or immunization of humans or animals. Research
pertaining to the above. The production or testing of biologicals and sharps waste.

N. 'Neighborhood Clean-Up" Shall mean a city program designed to provide clean-up of bulky
items that will not fit into a residential container. This may include appliances, lumber and toys.

An appointment is required.

O. t'Persontt Shall mean an individual, trust, firm, joint stock company, business concem,
partnership, association, limited liability company, and corporation, including, but not limited to
a government corporation.

P. "Private Driveways" Shall mean a private roadway owned by a private percon or business.

Q. "Prcmises" Shall mean a specific lot or area of real property served by the City or any such
lot or area in general. "Premises" includes permanent and transient human dwellings and places

of accommodation, commerce or recreation.

R. "Premises with Multi-unit Dwellings" Shall mean an area of one or more premises
operating in whole or part under unified management or ownership, with housing facilities for
morc than a single-family residence. Such facilities include duplex or multiplex dwellings,
apartments, condominiums, and trailer parks. Distinguished from this definition for purposes of
requircments affecting premises with multi-unit dwellings are hotels, motels, hospitals, nursing
homes or other congregate-care or institutional facilities, which are generally served as a
commercial -service account.

S. "hrtrescible" Shall mean to rot, subject to decomposition by microorganisms.

Ordinarrce No. 1049
Pag€ 3 of 14

Page 285

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



T. "Recyclables" Shall mean recyclable material including, but not limited to: newspaper,
magazines, mixed pop€r, plastic bottles, cardboard, glass bottles, aluminum and steelcans and

other materials not defined as garbage.

U. "Sharps" Shall mean any device having acute rigid cornert, edges, or protuberances capable
of cutting or piercing, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

a. Hypodermic needles, hypodermic needles with syringes, blades, needles with attached
tubing, syringes contained with biohazardous waste, acupuncture needles, and root
canal files.

b. Broken glass items, such as Pasteur pipettes and blood vials contaminated with
biohazardous waste.

c. Any item capable of cutting or piercing that is contaminated with trauma scene waste.

V. "Solid Waste" Shall mean nonhazardous, noninfectious waste materials including garbage,
yard waste, and recyclable material.

W. "Utilities Director" Shall mean the City of Folsom Director of Utilities or hiVher designee.

X. "Yard waste" or "Gr€€n Waste" Shall mean materials consist of trimmings from lawns,
shrubs, plants, and foliage from trees and gardens.

8.32.010 City responsibility.
The city, its duly authorized agent, servants, or employees, shall have the exclusive right

to gather, collect, recycle or dispose of solid waste within the city.

8,32.020 Permission required.
No person may collect, gather, recycle or dispose of solid waste within the city without

permission of the City Council.

8.32.030 Burning, Burying, On-site Private Disposal Prohibited; Compost Exception.
No person shall burn, bury, or otherwise dispose of or process solid waste on any

premises in the City except for composting of garden wastes in a compost process, approved by
the Utilities Director,

832.440 Privateremovalrequirements.
This chapter shall not be construed as prohibiting the owner or tenant of any premises in

the city from carrying away any such solid waste, on an infrequent or occasional basis in order to
reduce the amount to be taken away by the city or its duly authorized agents, but no person shall
be authorized by this section to carry away such solid waste if such pe6on receives the benefits
of the use of any such solid waste for feed for poultry, hogs, or other livestock unless such
person receives permission from the Utilities Director. This section shall not be construed as
relieving any person from paying the regular solid waste fees.

8.32.050 Placing in containers-Generally.
The person in charge of any premises in thc City shall gather the solid waste together and

put it into a receptacle provided by the Utilities Department for that premises.

Ordinanco No. 1049
Page 4 ol 14

Page 286

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



8.32.070 Department--Removal intervals.
All solid waste accumulated at, or on any premises within the city, shall be removed by

the Utilities, Department, Solid Waste Division, at regular intervals, as determined by the
Utilities Director.

8.32.080 Residential containerization.
All garbage, recyclables and yard waste shall be containerized as follows:

A. Garbage/Putrescible waste must be placed in the standard plastic garbage containers
provided by the City not exceeding ninety six gallons with a total weight limit of two
hundred pounds per container.

B. Yard waste shall be placed in standard plastic containers provided by the City. Tree limbs
shall not exceed four inches in diameter and shall not protrude above the lid of the
container. Loose branches, cuttings, trimmings, etc. which are not containerized shall not
be collected except through the Neighbor hood Clean-up as defined under section
8.32.250.

C. Recyclables shall be placed in the standard plastic container provided by the City.

D. Municipal solid waste which docs not fall into the above categories (A, B and C) is
Garbage and must be placed in the appropriate container

8.32.090 ResidentiaUCommercialprohibitedmaterials.
A. Materials which will not be collected in 60-65 gallon and 90-95 gallon containers include:

l. Dirt, rocks, sod, concrete, large metal objects, furniture;

2. Construction and remodeling debris;

B. Materials which will not be collected in any City container include:

l. Flammables;

2. Live ammunition;

3. Household Hazardous Waste;

4 Hazardous Waste;

C. No person shall place any wearing apparel, bedding or other refuse from homes or other
places where highly infectious or contagious diseases have prevailed or any explosive
substance, poison, hazardous chemical, offal, or fecal matter.

Ordlnarrc:e No. 1049
Page 5 of 14

Page 287

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



D, Hazardous medical waste, including, but not limited to sharps, shall be handled by a
licensed medical waste hauler and shall not be disposed of in materials offered for
collection by the city.

8.32.100 Residential container location and holiday rcquirements.
A. Residences having street frontage only. Residential containers for solid waste, recycling

and yard waste shall be placed for collection at the street curb or edge of road right-of-way
by 6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays included, and be removed from the
street and screened from public view by 6:00 a.m. of the following day. The wheels of the
containers will be placed in the gutter with the handle facing the residence. Containers will
be at least three (3) feet from any obstruction such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes,
fences, lampposts, portable basketball hoops, mailboxes, or other automated containers.
Containers are not to block pedestrian access.

B. Residences with alley way access. Residential containers for solid waste, recycling and
yard waste shall be placed for collection adjacent to the alley property line, with direct
access from the alley way by 6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays included.
The base of the container will be placed on a stable, level surface with the handle facing
the residence. Containers will be at least three (3) feet from any obstructions such as
automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences, portable basketball hoops, lampposts,
mailboxes, or other automated containers.

C. Residences with private driveways. All solid waste, recycling and yard waste must be
placed at the nearest road right-of-way by 6:00 a.m. on scheduled collection day, holidays
included and removed from the right-of-way and screened from public view by 6:00 a.m.
of the following day, The conuiner must be placed on a level surface with the handle
facing the shoulder of the road. Containers will be at least thr€e (3) feet from any
obstructions such as automobiles, trailers, motor homes, fences, portable basket ball hoops,
lampposts, mailboxes, or other automated containers.

D. Collection trucks will come back for solid waste, recycling, and yard waste put out after
the truck has passed a residence upon payment of an extra pick-up service charge.

E. For purposes of this Section, "Screen" means blocked from public view from the street or
Public right-of-way with a pennanent fence, enclosure, landscaping, or other comparable
facility as approved by the Director.

8.32.101 Service to below-ground containers prohibited.
Utilities Depanment personnel shall not service containers stored below the surface of the

ground.

8,32.1 l0 Location requirements.
The Utilities Department shall not collect garbage from above the first floor of any

premises, nor from the basement of any premises.

8.32.1I I Automated solid waste containers.

A. Fee Established. Each dwelling unit to be serviced by City-owned sixty-five and
ninety-five gallon automated container collection shall pay a fee upon issuance of a
building permit equal to the then cost of providing the containers. The fee shall be

Ordinarrs No. 1049
Page 6 ol 14

Page 288

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



adjusted on July l't of each fiscal year by the Utilities Director to reflect the most rccent

cost per container actually purchased by the City, plus the cost of labor and equipment
necessary to deliver the containers to the new dwelling. Containers shall be delivered upon

issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the residence by the chief building inspector.

B. Ownership. The City shall retain ownership of the sixty-five and ninety'five gallon
automated solid waste containers. Persons owning or rcnting property served by such

containers are responsible for the security of the containers. In the event of fire, theft, or other

disappearance of container from the property a replacement container shall be obtained from
the City upon payment of the fce established in subsection A of this section. Persons owning
or renting property served by such containers shall, upon vacating the premises, leave the

primary containers for the next occupant in a secure location upon the premises. Persons who

have ordered an extra container shall, upon vacating the premises, contact the city to have the

extra container rcmoved. Persons owning or renting property served by such containers are

responsible for the appearance and cleanliness ofthe container.

C. Replacement Containers. A replacement container may be obtained upon payment

of the fee established in subsection A of this scction. Replacement of a container no longer
usable due to normal wear shall not be subject to a replacement fee.

8.32.120 ContainerlDumpsterEnclosure--Businesslocation.
Solid waste containerVdumpster enclosures at places of business shall be located in such

place as shall be convenient to the Solid Waste Division and must be approved by the Utilities
Director. City approved solid waste enclosures are to be used for solid waste removalequipment
only. Storage of other equipment or material will not be allowed. The property owner shall be

liable for damage to or spills from any other equipment stored in the solid waste enclosure.

8.32.130 Special solid waste service.
A. Container Service. The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee of any premises in the city may
obtain a city commercial container for the purpose of disposing of brush and tree cuttings,
trash and inorganic solid waste, excluding the following materials: (a) dirt, rocks, sod,
concrete, large metal objects, fumiture.; (b) flammables and liquids; (c) live ammunition; (d)
paints, oils, and acids. The person requesting special trash service is responsible to pay for the
service in accordance with a fee set by the City Council. The city shall be responsible for
delivery and pick-up of the commercial bin to and from the premises of the persons requesting
service.

B. Container/Roll-off Service - The tenant, occupant, owncr or lessee of any premises in the
city may obtain a city commercial ten, twenty, thirty or forty yard roll-off container for the
purpose of disposing of recyclables, brush and tree cuttings, trash and inorganic solid waste,
excluding the following materials: (a) dirt, sod, large metal objects, furniture; (b) flammables
and liquids; (c) live ammunition; (d) paints, oils and acids. The person rcquesting special trash
service is responsible to pay for the service in accordance with a fee set by the City Council.
The city shall be responsible for delivery and pickup of the commercial container to and from
the premises of the persons requesting service.

Ordinarrce No. 1049
Page 7 ol '14

Page 289

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



C. Collection of Household Hazardous Waste (HHW)- The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee

of any residential premises in the city may request special collection of the following materials

through appointment with the City's Utilities Department HHW Division: flammables and

liquids, pesticides, paints, oils and oil filters batteries, anti freeze, pool chemicals, propane

tanks, TV's and computer monitors.

D. Disposal of Medical and Bio-hazardous Waste - The tenant, occupant, owner or lessee of
any premises in the city shall not dispose of any medical or bio-hazardous waste in a city-
owned collection container. Disposal of medical or bio-hazardous waste shall be performed
through a licensed collection and disposalcompany, which complies with all applicable laws
and regulations, including but not limited to, California Health & Safety Code, Sections

I 17600-l 18360.

8.32.135 Collectioncharges-EstablishedbyCityCouncil.
All charges for solid waste collection shall be established or modified by resolution of the

City Council. The schedule of fees shall remain on file and be available in the office of the
Finance Director. The Utilities Director shall, with the approval of the city manager, recommend
changes in the above fees when the cost of solid waste collection makes it appropriate.

8.32.140 Charges for Collection.
A. Residential

I Each and every householder or tenant occupying any dwelling, house, or
residence, shall pay to the City, or its authorized agent, a fixed minimum solid
waste fee based upon current established solid waste rates which shall be set by
City Council. Such fee is based upon service of one (l) call per week for garbage
and one (l) call every other week for recyclables and yard waste without
consideration of whether there is any garbage, recyclables or yard waste to remove
from the premises.

2. Solid waste service may be discontinued upon written request for a period of no
less than two (2) months when a dwelling, house, or residence will be unoccupied.
The minimum time of discontinuing service will be two (2) months. A service
charge equal to two (2) months solid waste charge will be charged to the utility
user for the removal and redelivery of the assigned automated containers when
service has been temporarily discontinued. This service charge will be paid at the
time service is discontinued. Upon occupancy of a dwellinS, house or residence the
utility user must contact the City Finance Department to restart service. If the
occupant of a dwelling, house, or residence does not contact the City to restart
service, the City may bill back to the discontinuance of service all monthly
charges.

For collection of additional containers beyond those covered by the fixed
minimum charges established in this chapter, the collection charge shall be set by
Resolution of the City Council for each additional solid waste container.

An additional or special pickup may be requested beyond the minimum service
required by this chapter. Each such additional or special pickup shall be subject to

3

4

Ordinance No. 1M9
Page 8 ol 14

Page 290

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



a fixed fee. The fixed fee for additional or special pickups shall be sct by
Resolution of the City Council.

B. Commercial

l. A landlord, property owner, or property manager or management company of each
and every store, shop, apartment, house, rooming house, or factory that has a
commercial container shall pay to the City, or its authorized agent, a fixed
minimum charge as set forth by the City Council as a solid waste fee. Such fixed
minimum charge is based upon service of (l) call per week, without consideration
of whether there is any solid waste to remove from the premises.

A landlord, property owner! or property manager or management company with
multiple tenants who must share a commercial container shall be responsible for
the solid waste urility bill of the tenants. Responsibility to pay the solid waste
utility bill of the landlord, property owner, or property manager or management
company will become mandatory effective six months from the date of the
adoption of this ordinance to allow time to renew rental or lease confacts with
tenants

2, Commercial Container, Roll-off, and Additional Services. The Utilities Director
may approve the placing of solid waste in containen other than ninety-five (95)
gallon'iutomated'cans iuch as roll-off containers. The fixed fee and'additidnal
service charges will be set by Resolution of the City Council. Such charge shall
include all costs to the City, including, but not limited to, labor, equipment
operation, maintenance and depreciation, administrative overhead, recycling,
landfill closure and landfill operation costs. Standard, commercial, charges for
commercial containers and roll-off containerc may be established by the Utilities
Director subject to the approval of the City Council.

3. An additional or special pickup may be requested beyond the minimum service
required by this chapter. Each such additional or special pickup shall be subject to
a fixed fee. The fixed fee for additional or special pickups shall be set by
Resolution of the City Council.

C. Adjustment of Bills for Billing Error.

l. Where the City overcharges or undercharges a customer's solid waste bill as the
result of a billing error, the City may render an adjusted bill for the amount of the
undercharge, without intercst, and shall issue a refund or credit to the customer for
the amount of the overcharge, without intercst, for the same periods as for the
billing error. Adjusted billing shall be computed back to the date that the City
determines the billing eror commenced, except that the period of adjustment shall
not exceed one (l) year for a refund and six (6) months for an undercharge.

8.32.150 Fees and Charges-Due date.
Solid waste service fees and charges shall be paid on the first of each and every month

and are delinquent on the tenth day of each month and shall bc paid in advance.

8.32.160 Charges-Collection authority.
The city Finance Department shall collect all charges and fees with the assistance of the

City Anorney as necessary or appropriate.

Orclinance No. 1049
Pago 9 ot 14

Page 291

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



8.32.170 Charges-Nonpayment--Violation.
The nonpayment by any person of the solid waste fee after notice given by the city

Finance Department by bill rendered to such penion, or left on the premises is a violation of this
chapter.

8.32.180 Charges-Nonpayment--Discontinuance.
The city shall have the right in addition to any other remedies to discontinue solid waste

service for nonpayment of solid waste fees or charges.

8.32.190 Accumulation prohibited.
No person shall permit solid waste to accumulate upon the premises owned or occupied

by such person.

8,32,191 SufficientServiceRequired.
Customers must accept solid waste collection service sufficient to r€move solid waste

generated by or accumulating weekly from the premises. The Utilities Director may order
additional service on behalf of the customer where the department determines necessary. If
additional service is needed, a customer may use additional containers or select a larger-capacity
container from the container choices available from the department. Commercial-route
customers may also request more frequent container collection or dumps more than once a week.

8.32.192 Exclusive use of containers.
A. It is unlawful for any person to dump or place any material into, or to utilize, any solid waste
container, bin or dumpster without consent of the property owner or tenant in charge of the
property.

B. It is unlawful for any person, without the consent of the property owner or tenant
in charge of the property, to enter into a solid waste container, whether or not a
notice has been placed on such container, for the purpose of salvaging solid waste
therein or for the purpose of utilizing the receptacle to rest or sleep therein.

8.32.?10 Scavenging of recyclable materials.
No person shall rcmove recyclable materials from residential containers or commercial
dumpsters that are designated for city collection. Such material includes, but is not limited to:
newspapers, magazines, yard trimmings, wood waste, books, glass bottles, cardboard, plastic
bottles, aluminum and steel cans.

832.220 Exemption from participation in Residential Curbside Recycling.
At the discretion of the Utilities Director, an exemption may be granted to individual(s) from
participating in Residential Curbside Recycling upon approval from the Utilities Director, in
his/her sole discretion. Exemptions may be granted based on the following criteria:

A. Individual(s) who perform back yard composring at rheir household
B. Individual(s) who perform grass cycling at their household
C, Individual(s) or Home Owner's Associations whose gardener takes green waste to a

recycler
D. A lack of yard waste or recyclables being generated at household

Ordinanoe No. 1049
Page 10 of 14

Page 292

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



E. Health rclated reasons which prevent individual(s) from wheeling carts to the curb
F. Severe space constraints which prcvents the placement of additional containers at

household

Individuals must rcquest an exemption in writing and such request must provide a detailed
explanation of the basis for the request, include supporting documentation and any other
information or documentation reasonably requested by the Utilities Director. Exemptions may be
revoked by the Utilities Director at any time at the discretion of the Utilities Director.
Exemptions are conditioned upon and subject to l) the requesting party continuing to reside at
the location specified in the request; and,2) the circumstances justifying the exemption
remaining unchanged. Individuals or associations who are granted an exemption must notify the
Utilities Director, in writing, of any change in the circumstances supporting the grant of
exemption within 30 days of such change in circumstances.

8.32.230 Contamination of containerized recyclables & yard waste,
No person shall place non-recyclable materials into city-provided Containers, roll-off

containers or dumpsters that are designated for the city collection of Recyclables or Yard Waste.
Commercial or residential recycling or yard waste containers may be removed from service if
excessive and frequent contamination is found in the container. Excessive and frequent
contamination is defined as three violations within a one-year period. If a rcsidential container is
removed from service, no rate reduction will be provided. If a commercial container is removed
from service, for contamination, the existing charge will be discontinued concurrently with the
removal of the bin.

83224A Replacement fee for damaged containers.
The Utilities Director shall have the authority to assess the cost for the replacement of

containers, roll offs or dumpsters that have been damaged or destroyed due to the customer's
negligence or misuse.

8.32.250 Neighborhood Cleanup Requirements.
Any and all materials deposited curbside for the purposes of participating in the

Neighborhood Clean-up program must meet the following criteria:

A. All pickups must be secured by an appointment
B. All piles must be no more than five cubic yards in size (7' x 6' x 3')
C. All materials must be placed curbside by 6:00 a.m. on the scheduled collection date
D. Material must be placed at the edge of the street and not on a sidewalk
E. All materials must only consist of
l. Yard waste (leaves and grass must be bagged)
2. Lumber/wood
3. Furniture/mattresses
4. I-awn mowers (remove gas & oil)
5. Barbeques (remove propane tanks)
6. Metals
7. Large appliances
8. Tires (no more than thrce)

Ordlnance No. 1ql9
Page 11 of 14

Page 293

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



Any materials placed curbside that do not meet the above requirements shall be considered
illegal dumping and any p€nion who commits such act(s) shall be subject to the penalties set

forth in Folsom MunicipalCode Section 8.34.040.

8.32.260 Frequency of Residential Service Change Requests.
Residents will be allowed three service change requests after receiving the residential

solid waste, recycling and yard waste carts at no charge for one year of the City's recycling
program applicable to all categories of service. Additional service change requests will be

charged an administrative fee of $20.00 or as otherwise sct by the City Council by Resolution

The categories of service change include:

A. Changing the size and number of garbagc containers
B. Changing the size and number of recycling containers
C. Changing the size and number of yard waste containers

8.32.210 Enforcement.

A. This chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 1.08 to 1.10,

inclusive, of Title I of the Folsom Municipal Code and any other enforcement
mechanism available to the City under the Folsom Municipal Code and/or applicable law.

B. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Chapter, the Utilities Director shall
enforce the provisions of this chapter.

8.32.280 Penalties.

A. Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Chapter, a violation of this chapter shall be

an administrative violation as defined in Section 1.08.020 of this code. In addition to
enforcement by any procedure set forth in Chapters L08 to 1.10, inclusive, except as

provided in this section, any violation of this chapter shall be punishable as an infraction
and shall be punishable by: (l) a fine not exceeding fifty dollars for a first violation; (2) a
fine not exceeding one hundred dollars for a second violation within one year; (3) a fine
not exceeding two hundred fifty dollars for each additional violation within one year.

B. Each and every day during which a stationary violation continues, except in cases in
which a given time has been allowed for corrpctive action to be taken, shall be a separate
and distinct offense.

C. Violations of Section 8.32.090 (B), (C), and (D); 8.32,190, and 8.32.210 shall be a

misdemeanor, which shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed $1,000, or by
imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 6 months, or by both such fine and
imprisonment.

D. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Chapter t.09 of this
code shall be available for enforcement of the provisions of this chapter. The range of

Ordinance No. 1O49
Page 12 ol 14

Page 294

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



monetary sanctions available for a violation of this chapter shall bc as set forth in Section
1.09.012(A)(5) and may be imposed on a per day basis for each violation.

8.32.290 Enforcement procedures, notice to correct.

A. hior to the suspension, r€vocation, or denial of any permit, or the assessment of any
fee, penalty, or charge, or the commencement of any other enforcement action pursuant to
this chapter, the enforcement authority may pursue the procedures set forth in Chapter 1.09

of this code. The rights to judicial review set forth in Sections 1.09.050 to 1.09.059,
inclusive, of this code shall apply.

B. A notice to correct shall not be requircd to commence the administrative hearing
procedures set forth in Chapters 1.08 to 1.10, inclusive, of this code. Pursuant to Section
1.09.024(A) of this code, a notice of administrative violation shall be served in accordance
with the provisions of Section 1.09.O27 of this code.

8.32.300 Remedies cumulative.

The remedies set forth in this chapter are cumulative to any other remedy available to the
city. Pursuit of one remedy shall not prcclude any other remedy, and nothing contained in this
chapter shall limit or be deemed to prevent the city from pursuing any other remedy available to
the city under the city's code or any other applicable law.

SECTION 3

Except as set forth in this ordinance, all other provisions of Chapter 8.32 remain
in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any
rcason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance and each
section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion thercof, inespective of the fact that any
one or more sections, subsections, clauses, phrases or portions be declared invalid or
unconstitutional.

SECTION 5 EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage
and adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its
adoption in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Folsom.

Ordinance No. 1049
Page 13 ol 14

Page 295

11/09/2021 Item No.17.



This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof rcad at the regular meeting of the City
Councilon January 24,2006, and by a majority vote of the Council Members Prcsent, further

reading was waived.

On a motion by Council Member Miklos, seconded by Council Member Starsky, the

forcgoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Folsom, State of
California, this l4th day of February 2006 by the following roll-call vote, to wit:

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 14ft day of February 2006, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Council Member(s)

Miklos, Starsky, Morin

Howell

King

None

J. Morin, MA

ATTEST:

yn , DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Effective: March 16, 2006

Ordinance No. 1O49
Page 14 ol 14

Page 296

11/09/2021 Item No.17.


	Top
	11/09/2021 Item No.1.	Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming the Month of November as Veterans and Military Families Month in the City of Folsom
	11-09 STAFF REPORT PROCLAMATION VETERANS AND MILITARY FAMILIES

	11/09/2021 Item No.2.	City Manager's Financial Update for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2021-22
	11-09 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION CITY MANAGER FIRST QUARTER FINANCIAL UPDATE

	11/09/2021 Item No.3.	Resolution No. 10738 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-052) with Holistic System Integration Solutions for Additional Professional Services for the Implementation of the New TRAKiT Permitting System
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10738 AMEND 1 TRAKIT PERMITTING SYSTEM

	11/09/2021 Item No.4.	Resolution No. 10739 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Allied Construction Services for the Fire Station No. 36 Roof Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10739 FIRE STATION NO. 36 ROOF REPLACEMENT

	11/09/2021 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 10740 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Two Ford Trucks for the Parks & Recreation Department and Appropriation of Additional Funds
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10740 2 FORD TRUCKS FOR P&R DEPT

	11/09/2021 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 10741 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Professional Services Agreement with Solitude Lake Management for the American River Canyon North Waterfall Rehabilitation Project
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10741 ARC NORTH WATERFALL REHAB PROJECT

	11/09/2021 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10742 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement F029 Rev. 1 to Administering Agency-State Agreement for Federal-Aid Projects No. 03-5288F15 with Caltrans for the Empire Ranch Interchange US-50 at Empire Ranch Road Project, Federal Project No. 5288(043), Project No. PW1804 and Appropriation of Funds
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10742 EMPIRE RANCH INTERCHANGE PROGRAM SUPP AGREEMENT

	11/09/2021 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10743 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Water Systems Optimization, Inc. to Complete the Water Distribution System Leak and Loss Detection Survey
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10743 WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM LEAK AND LOSS DETECTION SURVEY

	11/09/2021 Item No.9.	Resolution No. 10745 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the South Coast Air Quality Management District for the Replacement of Two Diesel Refuse Trucks with Two Zero Emission Electric Refuse Trucks
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10745 REPLACE 2 REFUSE TRUCKS

	11/09/2021 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 10746 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Bennett Engineering Services Inc. for Design Services for the Basin 4 Sewer Phase 1 Project
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10746 DESIGN SERVICES BASIN 4 SEWER PHASE 1 PROJECT

	11/09/2021 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 10750 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford to Purchase Eight Ford Pickup Trucks for the Public Works Department and the Environmental and Water Resources Department
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10750 PURCHASE 8 FOLRD PICKUP TRUCKS FOR PW AND EWR

	11/09/2021 Item No.12.	Appointment of At-Large Utility Commissioner
	11-09 STAFF REPORT UTILITY COMMISSION AT-LARGE APPOINTMENT

	11/09/2021 Item No.13.	City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Amended Improvement Area No. 3 and Improvement Area No. 7
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10747 10748 10749 CFD 23 AMENDED AREAS 3 AND 7

	11/09/2021 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 10744 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Fiber Networks Installation Agreement with SiFi Networks Folsom LLC for the Installation of a Fiber Optic Network in the City of Folsom
	11-09 STAFF REPORT RES 10744 FIBER NETWORK SIFI FIBER OPTIC NETWORK

	11/09/2021 Item No.15.	Ordinance No. 1318 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 10.20.510 of the Folsom Municipal Code to Increase Parking Penalty in Certain Areas of the Historic District (Introduction and First Reading)
	11-09 STAFF REPORT ORD 1318 PARKING PENALTIES IN HISTORIC DISTRICT

	11/09/2021 Item No.16.	Ordinance No. 1319 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 3.20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Responsible Parties for Municipal Services (Introduction and First Reading)
	11-09 STAFF REPORT ORD 1319 RESPONSIBLE PARTIES FOR MUNICIPAL SERVICES

	11/09/2021 Item No.17.	Ordinance No. 1320 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Replacing the Garbage Collection Ordinance as Set Forth in Chapter 8.32 of the Folsom Municipal Code to Incorporate New State Law Mandates (Introduction and First Reading)
	11-09 STAFF REPORT ORD 1320 REPEAL AND REPLACE GARBAGE COLLECTION ORD

	Bottom

